
 

 

July 10, 2024 

To, 
The Manager, 
The Department of Corporate Services 
BSE Limited  
PJ Towers 
Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001 
Scrip code: 540775 
  

 
The Manager, 
The Listing Department 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited  
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex 
Bandra (East), Mumbai – 400051 
Symbol: KHADIM 
 

Dear Sir / Madam, 
 

Sub: Notice convening Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Khadim India Limited (the ‘Company’) pursuant 
to the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench vide Order dated June 18, 
2024 

 

1. This is to inform that pursuant to the order dated June 18, 2024 (“Order”), the Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (“Tribunal”) in the Company Application (CAA) 120/KB/2024, a meeting of the Equity 
Shareholders of Khadim India Limited (‘Company’ or ‘Demerged Company’) is scheduled to be held on 
Monday, August 12, 2024 at 10:30 AM (IST), through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means 
(‘OAVM’) (‘Meeting’) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving the proposed Scheme of 
Arrangement between the Company and KSR Footwear Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors 
(‘Scheme’).  
 

2. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the name of the Shareholders of 
the Company on July 24, 2024 (‘cut-off date’). Only those Shareholders whose names are recorded in the 
Register of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as 
on the cut-off date will be entitled to cast their votes by remote e-voting or by e-voting at the Meeting. 
 

3. We enclose herewith the Notice of the aforesaid Meeting along with the Explanatory Statement under Sections 
102, 230 - 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013  read with Rule 6 of the Companies 
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and applicable SEBI Circulars.  

 

This is for your information and dissemination on your website. 
 

Thanking you, 
 
For Khadim India Limited 
 
 
Company Secretary & Head – Legal 
ICSI Membership No.: A21358 

Encl.: as above 
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HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH) 

 
MEETING 

Day Monday 
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Time  10:30 a.m. (IST) 

Mode of Meeting Through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio 
Visual Means (OAVM) 
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BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH COMPANY 
APPLICATION (CAA) NO. 120/KB/2024 

 
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

AND 
 

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN KHADIM INDIA LIMITED 
AND KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS 

 
In the Matter of: 
The Companies Act, 2013  
 
And 
 
In the Matter of: 
An application made under Sections 230 and 232 
along with other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 Act and Rules framed there 
under as in force from time to time. 
 
And 
 
In the matter of: 
KHADIM INDIA LIMITED, a company incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, 
and being a Company within the meaning of the 
Companies Act, 2013, having its Registered Office at 
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park, 08 Major Arterial 
Road, Block-AF, New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 
700156, CIN - L19129WB1981PLC034337, within 
the aforesaid jurisdiction. 
 
And 
 
In the matter of: 
KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED, a company 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, having its Registered Office at Flat No. 
4A, 4th Floor, Kalyani Complex, P-22, Block - A, 
Bangur Avenue, North 24 Parganas - 700055, CIN - 
U46413WB2023PLC264443, within the aforesaid 
jurisdiction. 

 
 

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 
 

To 
The Equity Shareholders of  
Khadim India Limited 

 
1. NOTICE is hereby given that, pursuant to the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law 

Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘Tribunal’) vide Order dated June 18, 2024 (‘Tribunal Order’), a 
meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Khadim India Limited will be held on Monday, August 12, 
2024, at 10:30 a.m. (IST) (‘Meeting’) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving 
the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim India Limited (‘KIL’ or ‘Demerged 
Company’ or ‘Company’) and KSR Footwear Limited (‘KFL’ or ‘Resulting Company’) and their 
respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’).  
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2. Pursuant to the Tribunal Order and as directed therein, the Meeting will be held through Video 
Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the Circulars issued thereunder, and the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to 
consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution for approval of the Scheme by requisite 
majority, as prescribed under Section 230(6) of the Act:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with the Rules framed thereunder, 
including the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the Master 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 issued by the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) and any other Circulars / Guidelines issued by SEBI 
applicable to schemes of arrangement from time to time, Section 2(19AA) and other relevant 
provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and the Rules framed thereunder [including, in each case, 
any amendment(s), statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s), for the time being in force] and 
pursuant all other provisions of applicable laws read with the relevant clauses of the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of Khadim India Limited, and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘Tribunal’), and such other approvals as may be 
necessary or as may be directed by the Tribunal and subject to such amendments or modifications 
as may be deemed appropriate by the parties to the Scheme, at any time and for any reason 
whatsoever, or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or as may be prescribed or 
imposed by the Tribunal or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such approvals, 
permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (‘the 
Board’, which term shall be deemed to mean and include Committee(s) of directors constituted by 
the Board or any other person(s) authorised by the Board of Directors to exercise its power including 
the powers conferred by this Resolution), the Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim India Limited 
and KSR Footwear Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’) be and is 
hereby approved. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Khadim India Limited be and is hereby authorised to 
perform and execute all such acts, deeds, matters and things, including delegation of all or any of 
the powers conferred herein, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect to this Resolution and for the matters connected therewith or incidental 
thereto, and to effectively implement the arrangement embodied in the Scheme and to make any 
modification(s) or amendment(s) to the Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever, and to 
accept such modification(s), amendment(s) or condition(s), if any, which may be required and / or 
imposed by the Tribunal while sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, and to waive 
any condition(s) of the Scheme, and also to settle any issue, question, difficulty or doubt that may 
arise in this regard, including passing of such accounting entries and / or making adjustments in 
the books of accounts of Khadim India Limited and deciding on transfer / vesting of assets and 
liabilities, as the Board in its absolute discretion may deem fit, proper or desirable, subject to 
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, without the Board being required to seek any 
further consent / approval of the Shareholders.” 
 

3. TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Equity Shareholders shall have the facility of casting their 
votes on the Resolution for approval of the Scheme either by (a) remote electronic voting (‘remote 
e-voting’) or by (b) e-voting at the Meeting, during the respective voting period as stated below: 
 

 
Remote e-voting and e-voting at the Meeting shall not be allowed beyond the respective voting 
period, as stated above. Shareholders may exercise their votes in only one mode i.e., either by 
remote e-voting or by e-voting at the Meeting. Shareholders who cast their votes by remote e-voting 

Manner of voting Commencement of voting End of voting 

Remote e-voting Monday, July 29, 2024 at 9:00 
a.m. (IST) 

Sunday, August 11, 2024 at 
5:00 p.m. (IST) 

E-voting at the 
Meeting 

Monday, August 12, 2024 
(Upon voting being announced by 
the Chairperson of the Meeting) 

Monday, August 12, 2024 
(Till 15 minutes after the 
conclusion of the proceedings of 
the Meeting) 
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may attend the Meeting, but will not be entitled to cast their votes again. Once the vote on a 
resolution is cast by the Shareholder, the Shareholder shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently. 
 

4. Voting rights will be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the name of the 
Shareholders of the Company on Wednesday, July 24, 2024 (‘cut-off date’). Only those 
Shareholders whose names are recorded in the Register of Members of the Company or in the 
Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date will be entitled 
to cast their votes by remote e-voting or by e-voting at the Meeting. Those who are not Shareholders 
as on the cut-off date should accordingly treat this Notice  for information purpose only. 
 

5. The Company has engaged National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) as the agency for 
providing the platform for both remote e-voting and e-voting at the Meeting.  

 
6. The Tribunal has appointed (a) Ms. Madhuja Barman, Advocate, to be the Chairperson of the 

Meeting, and (b) Mr. M.R. Goenka, Practising Company Secretary to be the Scrutinizer for the 
Meeting. 

 
7. The voting results shall be declared by the Chairperson of the Meeting within two working days 

from the conclusion of the Meeting and the same shall be displayed on the Notice Board of the 
Company at its Registered Office and posted on the websites of the Company at 
https://www.khadims.com/demerger-distribution-business, and NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
The results shall also be forwarded to the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (‘NSE’), and 
BSE Limited (‘BSE’), where the Company’s shares are listed. 

 
8. The Resolution for approval of the Scheme shall, if passed by a majority in number representing 

three-fourths in value of the Equity Shareholders of the Company casting their votes, as aforesaid, 
pursuant to Section 230(6) of the Act, shall be deemed to have been duly passed on the date of 
the Meeting i.e., Monday, August 12, 2024. 

 
9. The Scheme, if approved at the aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent sanction of 

the Tribunal and such other approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) of regulatory or other 
authorities, as may be necessary. 
 

10. A copy each of the Scheme and the Explanatory Statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with 
Section 102 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, 
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 along with all the Annexures are enclosed 
herewith. A copy of this Notice and the Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying 
documents are also placed on the websites of the Company at 
https://www.khadims.com/demerger-distribution-business, NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com, 
NSE at https://www.nseindia.com, and BSE at www.bseindia.com. 

 
 
 

Sd/- 
Advocate Madhuja Barman  

Chairperson appointed by  
the Tribunal for the meeting 

 
  

Kolkata, July 08, 2024  
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NOTES: 
 
i. Pursuant to the directions of the Tribunal vide its order dated June 18, 2024, the Meeting is being 

conducted through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) facility to 
transact the business as set out in the Notice convening this Meeting.  

 
ii. Explanatory Statement under Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, 
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is enclosed to this Notice as Exhibit A. Further, 
additional information as required under the SEBI Master Circular dated June 20, 2023 are also 
enclosed. 
 

iii. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is 
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote at the Meeting on his / her behalf and the proxy need 
not be a Shareholder of the Demerged Company. Since this Meeting is being held through VC / 
OAVM, (a) Shareholders will not be able to appoint proxies for the Meeting, and (b) Attendance Slip 
& Route Map are not annexed to this Notice.  
 

iv. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than 
individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send legible scan of certified true copy of its Board or 
governing body Resolution / Power of attorney / Authority letter etc. authorizing their representative 
to attend this Meeting, through e-mail to the Scrutinizer at goenkamohan@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 

 
v. In case of joint holders, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names in the Register 

of Members of the Company or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by National 
Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) / Central Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘Depositories’) in respect of such joint holding, will be entitled 
to attend and vote.  
 

vi. Shareholders are requested to quote the ledger folio / DP ID and Client ID in all communication 
with the Company. 

 
vii. The Notice and the Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents are being 

sent only through electronic mode to those Shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses 
with the Company or with the Depositories. These documents are also available on the Company’s 
corporate website at https://www.khadims.com/demerger-distribution-business. 
 

viii. Shareholders desirous of obtaining physical copies of the said Notice and the Explanatory Statement 
together with the accompanying documents, free of charge, may send a request to the Company 
Secretary & Head - Legal, mentioning their name and DP ID & Client ID / folio number, through           
e-mail at compliance@khadims.com.  

 
ix. Shareholders who hold shares in the certificate form / demat mode and who have not registered 

their e-mail addresses with the Company / RTA or with the Depositories and wish to receive the 
Notice and the Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying documents, or attend the 
Meeting, or cast their votes through remote e-voting or by e-voting at the Meeting, are required to 
register their e-mail address by sending email to the Company at compliance@khadims.com                     
and / or as per the instructions provided elsewhere in this Notice. 
 

x. Equity Shareholders attending the Meeting through VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose 
of quorum. Quorum for the Meeting shall be in terms of the Tribunal Order and Section 103 of the 
Act. 
 

xi. Shareholders who would like to express their views or ask questions during the Meeting with respect 
to the agenda item of the Meeting will be required to register themselves as speaker by sending                   
e-mail to the Company Secretary & Head – Legal at compliance@khadims.com  from their registered 
e-mail address from Thursday, August 01, 2024 (10:00 a.m. IST) to Wednesday, August 07, 
2024 (5:00 p.m. IST), mentioning their name, DP ID & Client ID / folio number, PAN and mobile 
number. Only those Shareholders who have registered themselves as speaker will be allowed to 
speak at the Meeting. The Chairperson of the Meeting reserves the right to restrict the number of 
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questions and / or number of speakers, depending upon availability of time, for smooth conduct of 
the Meeting. 

 
Further, Shareholders who would like to have their questions / queries responded to during the 
Meeting are requested to send such questions / queries in advance to the Company Secretary & 
Head – Legal at compliance@khadims.com within the aforesaid time period. 
 

xii. Procedure for attending the Meeting through VC / OAVM: 
 
a. Shareholders will be able to attend the Meeting through VC / OAVM through the NSDL e-voting 

system. 
 
b. The facility of joining the Meeting through VC / OAVM will be opened 30 minutes before and will 

remain open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the Meeting, i.e., from 10:00 a.m. 
IST to 10:45 a.m. IST and will be available for 1,000 Shareholders on a first-come first-served 
basis. This restriction would however not apply to participation of Shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding of the Company, promoters, institutional investors, directors, key and senior 
managerial personnel, auditors, scrutinizer, etc. 
 

c. The instruction to attend the Meeting through VC / OAVM is enclosed herewith and marked as 
Exhibit B and the same shall form part of this Notice. 
 

xiii. Voting through electronic means: 
 
a. As stated in the Notice, Shareholders shall have the facility and option of casting their votes on 

the Resolution for approval of the Scheme either by remote e-voting or by e-voting at the Meeting. 
The Company has engaged NSDL as the agency for providing the platform for both remote e-
voting and e-voting at the Meeting.  

 
b. Detailed instruction for e-voting is enclosed herewith and marked as Exhibit C and the same 

shall form part of this Notice.  
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Exhibit A 
 

BEFORE THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, KOLKATA BENCH 
COMPANY APPLICATION (CAA) NO. 120/KB/2024 

 
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

AND 
 

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN KHADIM INDIA LIMITED 
AND KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS 

 
In the Matter of: 
The Companies Act, 2013  
 
And 
In the Matter of: 
An application made under Sections 230 and 232 
along with other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 Act and Rules framed there 
under as in force from time to time. 
 
And 
 
In the matter of: 
KHADIM INDIA LIMITED, a company incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, 
and being a Company within the meaning of the 
Companies Act, 2013, having its Registered Office at 
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park, 08 Major Arterial 
Road, Block-AF, New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata-
700156, CIN - L19129WB1981PLC034337, within 
the aforesaid jurisdiction. 
 
And 
In the matter of: 
KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED, a company 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, having its Registered Office at Flat No. 
4A, 4th Floor, Kalyani Complex, P-22, Block - A, 
Bangur Avenue, North 24 Parganas - 700055, CIN - 
U46413WB2023PLC264443, within the aforesaid 
jurisdiction. 
 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 AND 232 READ WITH SECTION 102 AND 
OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULE 6 OF THE 
COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 

 
1. Meeting to consider the Scheme of Arrangement 

 

a) Pursuant to the Order dated June 18, 2024 (‘Tribunal Order’) of the Hon’ble National Company 
Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘Tribunal’), the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of Khadim 
India Limited is being convened on Monday, August 12, 2024, at 10:30 a.m. (IST) through 
Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual means, in compliance with the applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the circulars issued thereunder, and the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’), for considering, and if thought fit, approving the proposed 
Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim India Limited (‘KIL’ or ‘Demerged Company’ or 
‘Company’) and KSR Footwear Limited (‘KFL’ or ‘Resulting Company’) and their respective 
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shareholders and creditors (‘Scheme’). This is a Statement accompanying the Notice convening 
such Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company. 
 

b) The Scheme, inter alia, provides for: 
 
(i) Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) of the Demerged 

Company comprising of the Distribution Business i.e., the Demerged Company’s 
distribution segment which provides branded and affordable footwear in the mass 
footwear category, into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis and in 
consideration, the issuance of equity shares by the Resulting Company to all the Equity 
Shareholders of the Demerged Company as per the Share Entitlement Ratio i.e., 1 (One) 
equity share of face value of INR 10/- each fully paid up of the Resulting Company for 
every 1 (One) equity share of face value of INR 10/- each fully paid up held by Equity 
Shareholders of the Demerged Company, and in accordance with the provisions of Section 
2(19AA) read with other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (‘IT Act’);  
 

(ii) Reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up share capital of the Resulting 
Company;  

 
(iii) Listing of equity shares of the Resulting Company on National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited (‘NSE’), and BSE Limited (‘BSE’); and 
 

(iv) various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith. 
 

A copy of the Scheme is enclosed as Annexure I. 
 

2. Rationale and Benefits of the Scheme 
 

The Demerged Company has 2 (two) distinct businesses viz. (i) Retail Business and (ii) Distribution 
Business. The retail business operates through 848 retail stores (as on June 30, 2023) and caters 
to the middle and upper middle-income consumers, while the distribution business operates 
through a wide network of 732 distributors (as on June 30, 2023) selling to multi-brand-outlets 
across India and caters to lower and middle-income consumers. The transfer and vesting of the 
Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) comprising of Distribution Business into the 
Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme shall be in the interest of all concerned stakeholders 
including shareholders, customers, creditors, employees and general public, in the following ways: 
 
(i) The Demerged Undertaking and the Remaining Business (as defined in the Scheme) address 

different market segments with divergic dynamics in terms of business strategy, customer set 
and distinct capital requirements. The transfer of the Demerged Undertaking into the 
Resulting Company will enable both the Demerged and Resulting Company to focus on their 
activities in the respective segments. This would help to improve their competitiveness, 
operational efficiency, agility and strengthen their position in relevant markets. 
 

(ii) The nature of risk, competition, challenges, opportunities, market segment, target customer 
and business methods for the Distribution Business (as defined in the Scheme) is separate 
and distinct from the Remaining Business (as defined in the Scheme) carried out by the 
Demerged Company. 

 
(iii) The segregation of the business vertical shall enable them to move forward independently, 

with specialization building on their respective capabilities. It will also help to channelize 
resources required for all the businesses to focus on the growing businesses and attracting 
right talent and providing enhanced growth opportunities to existing talent in line with a 
sharper strategic focus on each business segment under separate entities. 

 
(iv) The Scheme will also enable the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to focus and 

enhance their respective management structure ensuring better and more efficient 
management control. 

 
(v) Bifurcation of these businesses will enable unlocking value of each vertical thereby paving 

way for focused growth with a view to create significant stakeholder value, will attract distinct 
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investor base and at the same time allow investors to allocate their portfolio into separate 
entities, focused on the distinct entities. Further, it will enable independent and distinct 
capital allocation approach and balance sheet management based on the distinct needs of 
each business. 

 
(vi) Thus, the demerger would help in achieving the desired operating structure and shall inter 

alia have following benefits: 
 
 Create sector focused companies; 
 Attract business specific investors; 
 Streamline the management structure; 
 Unlock value for shareholders; 
 Ring-fence businesses from each other;  
 Better risk management; and 
 Better Management Bandwidth utilization. 

 
3. Background of the companies 

 

I. Particulars of the Demerged Company:  
 

(a) Khadim India Limited was incorporated on December 03, 1981 as a private company 
limited by shares under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 under the name and 
style of “S. N. Footwear Industries Private Limited”. Subsequently, with effect from                    
April 17, 1998, the name was changed to “Khadim Chain Stores Private Limited”. 
Thereafter, the Demerged Company was converted into a public limited company. Upon 
conversion into public limited company, with effect from June 24, 2005, the name was 
changed to “Khadim Chain Stores Limited”. Thereafter, again with effect from August 26, 
2005, the name was changed to its present name, “Khadim India Limited”. The Demerged 
Company is a company within the meaning of the Act.  
 

(b) The Corporate Identification Number of the Demerged Company is 
L19129WB1981PLC034337 and its Permanent Account Number allotted by the Income 
Tax Department is AABCK3341A. The Demerged Company has its Registered Office at 7th 
Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park, 8 Major Arterial Road, Block AF, New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata 
– 700156, West Bengal, India. The email address of the Demerged Company is 
compliance@khadims.com and its website is www.khadims.com. The Demerged Company 
is engaged in the manufacturing / retail business of footwear and accessories.  
 

(c) During the last five years, there has been no change in the objects clause and name of the 
Company. However, the registered office of the Demerged Company has been changed from 
“Kankaria Estate, 5th Floor, 6, Little Russell Street, Kolkata -700 071” to “7th Floor, Tower 
C, DLF IT Park, 08 Major Arterial Road, Block - AF, New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 700156”, 
with effect from September 01, 2021".   

 
(d) The equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on the National Stock Exchange of 

India Limited (‘NSE’) and BSE Limited (‘BSE’) (hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘Stock 
Exchanges’). 

 
(e) The main objects of the Demerged Company are contained in Clause III of its Memorandum 

of Association.  
 

They are, inter alia, as follows: 
 

“A1.To carry on the Business of manufacturer, importer, exporter, buyer, seller, wholesaler, 
retailer, agency, broker, distributors, dealers, contractors, consignors, consignee and 
franchisee of various footwear and related accessories of all form, specification, quality, 
kind, and size made of or out of natural leather, synthetic leather, rubber, plastic, 
polymers, textile, canvas or any other raw material suitable for human use. 
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A2. To carry on the business of manufacturer, importer, exporter, tanner, dealer, processor, 
agent, broker, distributor and contractor in leather, hides, skin and leather substance. 

 
A3. To manufacture, process, design and decorate, stitch, recondition, repair, manipulate, 

sale, purchase, export, import, deal, trade, act as an agent in all garments, textiles, all 
seasonal wear like rain wear, winter wear, gloves, caps, umbrellas, bags, dress materials 
and related accessories.” 

 
(f) The Share Capital of the Demerged Company as on June 21, 2024 is as follows: 

 

Particulars Amount (in INR) 

Authorised Share Capital  

6,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 60,00,00,000/- 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

1,82,98,382 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up 18,29,83,820/- 
 

The Demerged Company had allotted 4,08,768 fully convertible equity share warrants 
(‘warrants’) on February 02, 2024 on a preferential basis. 
 
Out of 4,08,768 warrants, the Demerged Company has allotted equity shares in the 
following manner consequent to conversion of 3,28,768 warrants: 
 
(i) 1,64,384 Equity shares of INR 10/- each on conversion of 1,64,384 warrants on March 

22, 2024 to Mr. Siddhartha Roy Burman, one of the Promoters of the Company; and 
 

(ii) 1,64,384 Equity shares of INR 10/- each on conversion of 1,64,384 warrants on           
May 29, 2024 to Girish Gulati (HUF), Non-Promoter Entity. However, these 1,64,384 
Equity Shares will be credited to the Allottee’s account post obtaining listing approval 
from the stock exchanges.  

 
Accordingly, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Demerged Company 
increased to INR 18,29,83,820/- from INR 17,96,96,140/ (as on the date of approval of the 
Scheme by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company i.e., as on September 29, 
2023). 
 
Subsequent to June 21, 2024, there has been no change in the Authorised, Issued, 
Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Resulting Company. 
 

(g) The last annual financial statements of the Demerged Company have been audited for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024. The audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial 
Results of the Demerged Company for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024 are 
enclosed as Annexure II. 

 
 

(h) Details of the Directors and Promoters (as on the date of the Notice): 
 

The details of the Directors of the Demerged Company as on the date of this Notice, along 
with their addresses, are mentioned herein below:  

 

Directors 

SL. No. Name Category Address 

1.  Mr. Siddhartha 
Roy Burman 

Chairman & 
Managing Director 

BH-164, Sector – II, 
P.O. – Mayukh Bhavan, 
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas, 
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700091 
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2.  Mr. Rittick Roy 
Burman 

Whole-time Director BH-164, Sector – II, 
P.O. – Mayukh Bhavan, 
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas, 
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700091 

3.  Mr. Ritoban 
Roy Burman 

Non-Executive 
Non Independent 
Director 

BH-164, Sector – II, 
P.O. – Mayukh Bhavan, 
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas, 
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700091 

4.  Dr. Indra Nath 
Chatterjee 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

A/1201, 12th Floor, 
Lalani Grandeur, 
Valentine Complex, 
Gen. A. K. Vaidya Marg, 
Malad East, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra – 400097 

5.  Prof. (Dr.) 
Surabhi 
Banerjee 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

28/6B, Nakuleshwar 
Bhattacharjee Lane, 
P.O. – Kalighat, 
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700026 

6.  Mr. Alok 
Chauthmal 
Churiwala 

Non-Executive 
Independent Director 

C/6, Ferreira Mansion, 
Sitladevi Temple Road, 
Mahim West, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra – 400016 

 
The details of the Promoters of the Demerged Company as on the date of this Notice, along 
with their addresses, are mentioned herein below: 
 

Promoters 

Sl. No. Name Category Address 

1. Mr. Siddhartha 
Roy Burman 

Promoter BH-164, Sector – II,  
P.O. – Mayukh Bhavan,  
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas,  
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700091 

2. Mrs. Tanusree 
Roy Burman 

Promoter Group BH-164, Sector – II,  
P.O. – Mayukh Bhavan,  
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas,  
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700091 

3. Mr. Rittick Roy 
Burman 

Promoter Group BH-164, Sector – II,  
P.O. – Mayukh Bhavan,  
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas,  
Kolkata, West Bengal – 700091 

4. Khadim 
Development 
Company Private 
Limited 

Promoter 7th Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park,  
08 Major Arterial Road,  
Block-AF, New Town (Rajarhat), 
Kolkata – 700156 

 
II. Particulars of the Resulting Company: 

 
(a) The Resulting Company was incorporated on August 22, 2023 under the provisions of the 

Act as a public company limited by shares. The Corporate Identification Number of the 
Resulting Company is U46413WB2023PLC264443 and its Permanent Account Number 
allotted by the Income Tax Department is AAKCK4627J. The Resulting Company has its 
Registered Office at Flat No. 4A, 4th Floor, Kalyani Complex, P-22, Block A, Bangur Avenue, 
North 24 Parganas - 700055, West Bengal, India. The email address of the Resulting 
Company is ksr082023@gmail.com.  
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(b) The Resulting Company is yet to commence its business. As per the main object mentioned 
in the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company, it is engaged in the business 
of manufacturing and wholesaling of footwear and accessories.  

 

(c) Since incorporation, there has been no change in the Objects Clause, name and registered 
office of the Resulting Company.  

 
(d) Presently, the Equity Shares of the Resulting Company are not listed on any Stock 

Exchange. 
 

(e) The main objects of the Resulting Company are contained in Clause III of its Memorandum 
of Association. They are as follows: 

 
“A1. To carry on the Business of manufacturer, importer, exporter, buyer, seller, wholesaler, 

agency, broker, distributors, dealers, Job workers, contract manufacturers and seller of 
other Brands as licensee or otherwise, contractors, consignors and consignee of various 
footwear and accessories of all form, specification, quality, kind, and size made of or out 
of natural leather, synthetic leather, rubber, plastic, polymers, textile, canvas or any 
other raw material suitable for human use. 

 
A2.  To carry on the business of manufacturer, importer, exporter, tanner, dealer, processor, 

agency, broker, distributor and contractor in leather, hides, skin and leather substance.” 
 

(f) The Share Capital of the Resulting Company as on March 31, 2024 is as follows: 
 

Particulars Amount (in INR) 

Authorised Share Capital  

1,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 15,00,000/- 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

10,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each, fully paid-up 1,00,000/- 

 
Subsequent to the date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of the Resulting 
Company i.e., as on September 29, 2023, there has been no change in the Authorised, 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Resulting Company.  
 
Accordingly, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Resulting Company 
as on June 21,2024 is same as that of March 31,2024. 

 
(g) The Resulting Company has prepared its first financial statements for the period from 

August, 22, 2023 to March 31, 2024. The said audited financial statements are enclosed 
as Annexure III.  
 

(h) Details of the Directors and Promoters (as on the date of the Notice): 
 

The details of the Directors of the Resulting Company as on the date of this Notice, along 
with their addresses, are mentioned herein below:  

 
Directors 

SL. No. Name Category Address 
1.  Mr. Suman Barman Roy Director Flat No. 82, 2nd Floor,  

Ekante Apartment, 
23 Prince Park,  
Kalikapur Kolkata - 700099 

2.  Mr. Rittick Roy Burman Director BH-164, Sector - II,  
P.O. - Mayukh Bhavan,  
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas,  
Kolkata, West Bengal - 700091 
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3.  Mr. Ritoban Roy Burman Director BH-164, Sector - II,  
P.O. - Mayukh Bhavan,  
Salt Lake, North 24 Parganas,  
Kolkata, West Bengal - 700091 

 

The details of the Promoter of the Resulting Company as on the date of this Notice, along 
with its address, is mentioned herein below:  
 

Promoter 
Name  Address 
Khadim India Limited 7th Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park, 8 Major Arterial 

Road, Block AF, New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata – 
700156, West Bengal, India 

 
4. Salient features of the Scheme 

 

The salient features of the Scheme are stated below. The capitalised terms used in the salient 
features shall have the same meaning as ascribed to them in Clause 1 of Part A of the Scheme 
and the salient features are to be read subject to the same rules of interpretation as stated in 
Clause 2 of Part A of the Scheme. 

 
(a) The Scheme, inter alia, provides for demerger of the Demerged Undertaking comprising the 

Distribution Business of the Demerged Company, along with all properties, assets, rights, 
powers, encumbrances, debts, liabilities, duties and obligations relating to the Demerged 
Undertaking, into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis and in consideration, the 
consequent issuance and allotment of equity shares by the Resulting Company to all the 
Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company as per the Share Entitlement Ratio i.e., 1 
(One) Equity Share of the face value of INR 10/- each fully paid up of the Resulting Company 
for every 1 (One) Equity Share of face value of INR 10/- each fully paid up held by Equity 
Shareholders of the Demerged Company, in accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 
to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Section 2(19AA) read with other relevant 
provisions of the IT Act.  
 

(b) The Scheme shall be operative from the ‘Effective Date’, date which will be the first day of 
the month following the month in which parties mutually acknowledge in writing that all the 
conditions referred to in Clause 25.1 of the Scheme have occurred or have been fulfilled, 
obtained or waived, as applicable, in accordance with the Scheme. References in the Scheme 
to the “date of coming into effect of this Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or 
“effectiveness of the scheme” shall mean the Effective Date. 

 
(c) Appointed Date shall mean the same date as the Effective Date or such other date as may be 

mutually agreed by the Companies. The Scheme shall be effective from the Appointed Date 
and shall be operative from the Effective Date. 

 
(d) The Remaining Business shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be managed by the 

Demerged Company.  
 

(e) On the Scheme becoming effective, all the Transferring Employees shall be deemed to have 
become employees of the Resulting Company with effect from the Appointed Date, without 
any interruption in service, on the terms and conditions not less favourable than those on 
which they are engaged by the Demerged Company.  

 
(f) All Equity Shares of the Resulting Company, post the Scheme, will be listed and / or admitted 

to trading on the NSE and BSE, which have nation-wide trading terminals. 
 

(g) The fractional entitlements, if any, shall be aggregated and held by the trust nominated by 
the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company in this behalf , who shall sell such shares in 
the market at such price, within a period of ninety (90) days from the date of allotment of 
shares, as per the Scheme and on such sale, shall pay to the Resulting company, the net sale 
proceeds (after deduction of applicable taxes and other expenses incurred), whereupon the 
Resulting Company shall, subject to withholding tax, if any, distribute such sale proceeds to 
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the concerned shareholders of the Demerged Company in proportion to their respective 
fractional entitlements so sold by the trustee. 

 
(h) Upon coming into effect of the Scheme and in consideration for the demerger of the Demerged 

Undertaking of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, the Board of the 
Demerged Company shall decide the manner in which difference in the intrinsic value created 
pursuant to the demerger of the Distribution Business is to be compensated to the ESOPs 
holders of the Demerged Company.  
 
The Board of the Demerged company shall take such actions and execute such further 
documents as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid 
provisions, if required. Approval granted to the Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged 
Company shall also be deemed to be approval granted to any modifications made to the ESOP 
Plans of the Demerged Company. 

 
Note: The above details are only salient features of the Scheme. Shareholders are requested 
to read the entire text of the Scheme which is enclosed as Annexure I to get fully acquainted 
with the provisions thereof. 

 

5.  Relationship subsisting between Parties to the Scheme 
 

The Resulting Company is presently a Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Demerged Company. 
 

6. Board approvals 
 

(a) The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company at its Meeting held on September 29, 2023 
by unanimous resolution approved the Scheme. The names of the then Directors and their 
manner of voting are set out below: 
 

SL. No. Name of Director 
Voted in favour / against / did 

not participate or vote 

1. Mr. Siddhartha Roy Burman Voted in favour 
2. Mr. Rittick Roy Burman Voted in favour 
3. Mr. Ritoban Roy Burman Voted in favour 
4. Dr. Indra Nath Chatterjee Voted in favour 
5. Prof. (Dr.) Surabhi Banerjee Voted in favour 

6. Mr. Alok Chauthmal Churiwala Voted in favour 

 
(b) The Board of Directors of the Resulting Company at its Meeting held on September 29, 2023 

by unanimous resolution approved the Scheme. The names of the then Directors and their 
manner of voting are set out below: 

 

SL. No. Name of Director 
Voted in favour / against / did 

not participate or vote 

1. Mr. Rittick Roy Burman Voted in favour 
2. Mr. Ritoban Roy Burman Voted in favour 
3. Mr. Suman Barman Roy Voted in favour 

 
7. Interest of Directors, Key Managerial Personnels (‘KMPs’), their relatives and Debenture 

Trustee 
 

(a) Khadim India Limited (‘Demerged Company’): 
 

None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of the 
Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) 
have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their directorship and shareholding, if 
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any, in the Company. The Company has not issued any debentures and hence, does not have 
Debenture Trustee. 

 
(b) KSR Footwear Limited (‘Resulting Company’): 
 

None of the Directors, KMPs (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) of the 
Resulting Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed 
thereunder), have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of their directorship and 
shareholding, if any in the Resulting Company. The Resulting Company has not issued any 
debentures and hence, does not have Debenture Trustee. 

 
The Registers of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding of the Demerged 
Company and the Resulting Company will be available for inspection at the Registered Office of 
the Demerged Company between 11.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on any working day up to the date of the 
Meeting, for which purpose Shareholders are required to send an e-mail to the Company Secretary 
& Head – Legal at compliance@khadims.com. 
 

8. Effect of the Scheme on the stakeholders 
 

The effect of the Scheme on various stakeholders is summarised below: 
 

(a) Shareholders, KMPs, Promoter and Non-Promoter Shareholders 
 
The effects of the Scheme on the Shareholders, KMPs, Promoter and Non-Promoter 
Shareholders of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are mentioned in the 
Reports adopted by the respective Board of Directors of the said companies at their Meetings 
held on September 29, 2023, pursuant to the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act. The 
said Reports are enclosed as Annexure IV and V respectively. 
 

(b) Directors 
 

(i) The Scheme will have no effect on the office of the existing Directors of the Demerged 
Company and the Resulting Company. Further, no change in the Board of the Directors of 
the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company is envisaged on account of the Scheme. 
  

(ii) It is clarified that the composition of the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and 
the Resulting Company may change by appointments, retirements or resignations in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations, other applicable laws, 
and the Memorandum and Articles of Association of these companies but the Scheme itself 
does not affect the office of Directors of such companies. 

 
(iii) The effect of the Scheme on the Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting 

Company in their capacity as shareholders of the said companies is the same as in case of 
other shareholders of the said companies, as mentioned in the aforesaid Reports enclosed 
as Annexure IV and V respectively. 

 
(c) Employees 

 

(i) On the Scheme becoming effective, all the Transferring Employees (as defined in the Scheme) 
shall be deemed to have become employees of the Resulting Company with effect from the 
Appointed Date, without any interruption in service, on the terms and conditions not less 
favourable than those on which they are engaged by the Demerged Company, as provided 
in Clause 9 of the Scheme. 
 

(ii) The Scheme will have no effect on the existing employees, if any, of the Resulting Company.  
 

(d) Creditors 
 

(i) The demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company into the Resulting 
Company will not adversely impact the rights and interests of the creditors of the Demerged 
Company and the Resulting Company. 
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(ii) The creditors of the Demerged Company not forming part of the Demerged Undertaking shall 

continue to be the creditors of the Demerged Company and shall be paid in the ordinary 
course of business by the Demerged Company. 

 
(iii) The creditors of the Demerged Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking will cease to 

be creditors of the Demerged Company and become creditors of the Resulting Company on 
the same terms and conditions, as before, and shall be paid in the ordinary course of 
business by the Resulting Company.  

 
(iv) The effect of the Scheme on creditors is further detailed in paragraph 10(c) below. 

 
(e) Debenture holders, Debenture Trustees, Depositors and Deposit Trustees 

 

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company have neither issued any debentures nor 
taken any public deposits. Hence, there are no debenture holders, debenture trustees, 
depositors and deposit trustees.  
 

There will be no adverse effect on account of the Scheme on the aforesaid stakeholders. The 
Scheme is proposed to the advantage of all concerned, including the said stakeholders.  

 
9. No investigation proceedings 

 

There are no investigation proceedings pending under Sections 210 to 227 of the Act against the 
Demerged Company and / or the Resulting Company. 
 

10. Amounts due to creditors  
 

(a) The respective amounts due to Secured Creditors are as follows:  
 

Sl. No. Company Amount (in INR) As on 

1. Demerged Company 1,46,01,62,016/- March 01, 2024 

2. Resulting Company Nil March 31, 2024 

 
(b) The respective amounts due to Unsecured Creditors are as follows: 

 

Sl. No. Company Amount (in INR) As on 

1. Demerged Company 1,46,82,78,413/- March 01, 2024 

2. Resulting Company 1,38,306/- March 31, 2024 

 
(c) The Scheme embodies the arrangement between the Demerged Company and the Resulting 

Company and their respective shareholders and creditors. No change in value or terms or any 
compromise or arrangement is proposed under the Scheme with any of the creditors of the 
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. The Tribunal has therefore dispensed with 
the meetings of the unsecured creditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 
to consider the Scheme, since there is no compromise or arrangement with them and their 
rights are not affected by the Scheme in any manner. 
  

(d) The Scheme does not involve any debt restructuring and hence, the requirement to disclose 
details of debt restructuring is not applicable. 

 
11. Summary of Share Entitlement Ratio Report and Fairness Opinion 

 

(a) The Share Entitlement Ratio in consideration for the demerger has been fixed on a fair and 
reasonable basis, based on the Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated September 29, 2023 
issued by Mr. Vikram Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer under IBBI (SFA), Regn. No. – 
IBBI/RV/06/2019/11320, which is enclosed as Annexure VI.  
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(b) Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, an independent SEBI Registered Merchant Banker 
(SEBI Registration No. INM000011211) in their Fairness Opinion dated September 29, 2023, 
has also opined that the Share Entitlement Ratio is fair and reasonable from a financial point 
of view to the Shareholders of the Demerged Company. The said Fairness Opinion is enclosed 
as Annexure VII. 

 
(c) The Share Entitlement Ratio has accordingly been recommended as follows: 

 
“1 (One) equity share of the face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up of the Resulting Company 
shall be issued and allotted for every 1 (One) equity share of face value INR 10/- each fully paid 
up held by equity shareholders of the Demerged Company.” (“Share Entitlement Ratio”) 
 

(d) The Audit Committee of the Demerged Company at its Meeting held on September 29, 2023 
has recommended the Scheme, including the Share Entitlement Ratio, after taking into 
consideration, inter alia, the aforesaid Report and Opinion. The Independent Directors 
Committee of the Demerged Company at its Meeting held on September 29, 2023 has also 
recommended the Scheme. 
 

12. Shareholding pattern and Capital Structure of the Demerged Company and the Resulting 
Company 

 

(a) There will be no change in the pre-arrangement and post-arrangement shareholding pattern 
of the Demerged Company as on June 21, 2024. 
 
The pre-arrangement and post-arrangement shareholding pattern* of the Resulting Company 
as on June 21, 2024 shall be as follows: 
 

Pre - Arrangement shareholding pattern as on June 21, 2024 

Category No. of shares % 

Promoter  10,000 100% 

Public NIL NIL 

Total 10,000 100% 

 

Post - Arrangement shareholding pattern as on June 21, 2024* 

Category No. of shares % 

Promoter  1,09,95,167 60.09% 

Public 73,03,215 39.91% 

Total 1,82,98,382 100% 

*Post shareholding may vary depending on the actual shareholding as on the record date. 
 

The detailed pre and post-arrangement shareholding pattern of the Demerged and the 
Resulting Company as on June 21, 2024, are enclosed as Annexure VIII. 

 
(b) The pre-arrangement capital structure of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company 

is given in paragraphs 3(I)(f) and 3(II)(f) respectively. 
 

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, the authorised 
share capital of the Demerged Company in terms of its Memorandum of Association and 
Articles of Association shall stand reduced by 2,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each 
which shall be transferred to and form part of the authorised share capital of the Resulting 
Company. 
 
The post-arrangement capital structure of the Resulting Company (based on the shareholding 
pattern of the Demerged Company as on June 21, 2024) will be as follows: 
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Particulars Amount (in INR) 

Authorised Share Capital 

2,01,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each  20,15,00,000/- 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital  

1,82,98,382 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up$ 18,29,83,820/- 
$Post shareholding may vary depending on the actual shareholding as on the record date. 

 
13. Auditors’ Certificates of conformity of accounting treatment in the Scheme with the 

Accounting Standards 
 

The respective Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company have 
confirmed that the accounting treatment specified in the Scheme is in conformity with the 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 

 
14. No-objection of the Stock Exchanges  

 

The Demerged Company had filed the Scheme with NSE and BSE in terms of the SEBI Master 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 (‘SEBI Master 
Circular’) for their approval. Apart from the same, the Demerged Company had also submitted the 
Report of its Audit Committee on the Scheme and various other documents to the Stock 
Exchanges, and also displayed the same on its website in terms of the SEBI Master Circular and 
addressed all queries on the said documents.  
 
Further, the Demerged Company did not receive any complaint relating to the Scheme and ‘Nil’ 
Complaint Reports were filed by the Demerged Company with the BSE and NSE in terms of the 
SEBI Master Circular, copies of which are enclosed as Annexure IX and X respectively.  
 
BSE and NSE by their respective Observation Letters dated April 30, 2024 have given their no-
objection to the Scheme. Copies of the said Observation Letters issued by BSE and NSE to the 
Demerged Company are enclosed as Annexure XI and XII respectively. 
 
Further documents and information, as advised by the Stock Exchanges, are also provided as 
under: 
 
(a) Annexure XIII: Details of ongoing adjudication and recovery proceedings, prosecution 

initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Demerged Company, its 
Promoters and Directors. 
 

(b) Annexure XIV: Information pertaining to the Resulting Company in the format specified for 
abridged prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 read with 
SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 04, 2022. 

 
(c) Annexure XV:  
 

i. Details of assets, liabilities, net worth and revenue of the companies involved, pre and 
post Scheme (as submitted to the Stock Exchanges). 
 

ii. Impact of Scheme on revenue generating capacity of the Demerged Company. 
 

iii. Need and Rationale of the Scheme, Synergies of business of the companies involved in 
the Scheme, Impact of the Scheme on the shareholders and cost benefit analysis of the 
Scheme (as submitted to the Stock Exchanges). 

20



 

 

 
iv. Value of assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company that are being transferred to the 

Resulting Company (as submitted to the Stock Exchanges). 
 

(d) Annexure XVI: Information submitted to NSE and SEBI, as Annexure Y to the application 
dated October 19, 2023. 
 

(e) Annexure XVII: Information submitted against query 10 raised by the Exchange on the BSE 
Listing Portal on October 30, 2023. 

 
15. Approvals and intimations in relation to the Scheme 

 

(a) The details of approvals and no objections required for the proposed arrangement are 
mentioned in Clause 25 of the Scheme. The Stock Exchanges have since given their no-
objection to the Scheme as mentioned in the preceding paragraph. Further, all shareholders of 
the Resulting Company have given their consent to the Scheme, and therefore, the Tribunal 
has dispensed with the meeting of the shareholders of the Resulting Company. The companies 
are in the process of obtaining other approvals and no objections from regulatory and / or 
government authorities, as required.  
 

(b) The Scheme, if approved at this Meeting, will be subject to subsequent sanction of the Tribunal 
and such other approval(s), permission(s) and sanction(s) of regulatory or other authorities, as 
may be necessary. 

 
(c) The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company confirm that they have filed the Scheme 

with the Registrar of Companies, West Bengal. Further, the Demerged Company confirms that 
the Notice of the Scheme in the prescribed form is also being served on all the Authorities in 
terms of the Tribunal Order dated June 18, 2024. 

 
16. Inspection of Documents 

 

In addition to the documents annexed hereto, copies of the following documents will be available 
for inspection through electronic mode on the Company’s corporate website at 
https://www.khadims.com/demerger-distribution-business and also at the Registered Office of 
the Company between 11.00 a.m. to 3.00 p.m. on any working day up to the date of the Meeting, 
for which purpose Shareholders are required to send an e-mail to the Company Secretary &                
Head – Legal at compliance@khadims.com.  
 
(a) Copy of the Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim India Limited and KSR Footwear Limited 

and their respective shareholders and creditors; 
 

(b) Order dated June 18, 2024 passed by the Tribunal in Company Application (CAA) No. 
120/KB/2024; 

 
(c) Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Demerged Company and the Resulting 

Company; 
 

(d) Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results of the Demerged Company for the 
quarter and year ended March 31, 2024; 

 
(e) Audited Financial Statements of the Resulting Company for the period ended March 31, 2024; 

 
(f) Certificates from the respective Statutory Auditors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting 

Company confirming that the accounting treatment specified in the Scheme is in conformity 
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act; 
 

(g) Reports of the Audit Committee and the Independent Directors Committee of the Demerged 
Company dated September 29, 2023 recommending the Scheme; 

 
(h) Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated September 29, 2023 issued by Mr. Vikram Kumar Singh, 

Registered Valuer under IBBI (SFA), Regn. No. – IBBI/RV/06/2019/11320; 
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(i) Fairness Opinion dated September 29, 2023 issued by Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, 

an independent SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, SEBI Registration No. INM000011211; 
 

(j) Information submitted to NSE and SEBI, as Annexure Y to the application, dated October 19, 
2023; 

 
(k) Information submitted against query 10 raised by the Exchange on the BSE Listing Portal on 

October 30, 2023; 
 

(l) Net worth certificate of the Demerged Company as on June 30, 2023, both pre and post Scheme; 
 

(m) Information pertaining to the Resulting Company in the format specified for abridged 
prospectus as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 read with SEBI Master 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 dated June 20, 2023 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 04, 2022 along with Certificate issued 
by Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited, SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, certifying the 
accuracy and adequacy of disclosures made therein. 

 
(n) All other documents displayed on the Demerged Company’s website in terms of the SEBI 

Circular. 
 

Shareholders can also obtain extract(s) from or copy(ies) of the documents listed above.  
 

Based on the above, and considering the rationale and benefits, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, 
the Scheme will be of advantage to, beneficial and in the best interests of the companies and their 
respective shareholders, creditors, employees and other stakeholders, and the terms thereof are fair 
and reasonable. The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company recommends the Scheme for the 
approval of its Shareholders.  

 
 

Sd/- 
Advocate Madhuja Barman  

Chairperson appointed by 
The Tribunal for the Meeting 

 
Kolkata, July 08, 2024  
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Exhibit B 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC / OAVM 

 

1. Shareholders will be provided with a facility to attend this Meeting through VC / OAVM through 
the NSDL e-Voting system. Shareholders may access the same by following the instructions 
mentioned in Exhibit C to this Notice. After successful login, you can see “VC / OAVM link” placed 
under “Join Meeting” menu against the Company name. You are requested to click on VC / OAVM 
link placed under “Join Meeting” menu. The link for VC / OAVM will be available in Shareholder / 
Member login where the EVEN of the Company will be displayed. Please note that the Shareholders 
who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password 
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the Notice to 
avoid last minute rush. 
 

2. Shareholders who need assistance before or during the Meeting, can contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, 
Senior Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com or call 022 - 4886 7000. 

 
3. Shareholders under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend the Meeting 

and also vote through remote e-Voting or e-Voting during the Meeting. 
 

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

5. Further, Shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 
any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
6. Please note that Participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio / Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
7. When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the 

next speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a 
device with a video / camera along with good internet speed. 
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Exhibit C 
 

A. INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING: 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join the Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system 

 
Details on Step 1 are mentioned below: 

 
a) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode 
 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
Login method for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 
under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-
Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
Company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 
 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

 
3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder / Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e., your sixteen digit demat account number 
held with NSDL), Password / OTP and a Verification Code as shown 
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
Company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. 
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Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

4. Shareholders / Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 
 

 
  

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then use your existing Myeasi username & password. 
 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote               
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. Additionally, there are also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

 
3. If the user is not registered for Easi / Easiest, option to register is 

available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

 
4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from e-Voting link available 
on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option where the e-Voting is in progress and 
also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for                  
e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see                 
e-Voting feature. Click on the Company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e., NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Shareholders/Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are 
advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned 
website. 
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000  

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800 22 55 33 
  

 
b) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Shareholders other than 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and Shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder / Member’ section. 

 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password / OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e., IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e., Cast your vote electronically. 
 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 

Sl. No. Manner of holding shares i.e., 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical 

Your User ID is: 

a. For Members/Shareholders who 
hold shares in demat account with 
NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID. 
  
For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12****** 
 

b. For Members/Shareholders who 
hold shares in demat account with 
CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID.  
 
For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 
 

c. For Members/Shareholders 
holding shares in Physical Form, if 
any 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the Company.  
 
For example, if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 
 

 
5. Password details for Shareholders other than Individual Shareholders are given below:  
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a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to 
login and cast your vote.  

 
b) b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve 

the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password.  

 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?  

 
i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to 
you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e., 
a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client 
ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’.  

 
ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned under 

“Instructions for Shareholders whose e-mail ids are not registered / updated”. 
 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 
your password:  
 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details / Password?” (If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

b) Click on “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number / folio number, 
your PAN, your name, your registered address etc.  

 
d) Shareholders can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.  
 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on 
the check box.  
 

8.  Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.  
 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.  
 

Details on Step 2 is mentioned below:  
 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?  
 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and the Meeting is in active status.  
 

2. Select “EVEN” of the Company to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting 
your vote during the Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC / OAVM” 
link placed under “Join Meeting”.  
 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the voting page opens.  
 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify / modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted.  

 
5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
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6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page.  

 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

B. INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING: 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the Meeting is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 
 

2. Only those Shareholders who will be present in the Meeting through VC / OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not 
barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the Meeting. 

 
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the Meeting. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the Meeting. 
 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 
for e-Voting on the day of the Meeting shall be the same person mentioned for Remote                        
e-voting. 

 
C. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

 
1. Institutional Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send a 

scanned copy (PDF / JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / 
Authority Letter etc. with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies) 
who are authorized to vote, to the Scruntizer by e-mail to goenkamohan@gmail.com with a 
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 
 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled 
upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will 
need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

 
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the “Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders” and “e-voting user manual for Shareholders” available at the download section 
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, 
Senior Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.com. 

 
4. The voting rights of the Shareholder shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity 

share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, July 24, 2024. 
 

5. A person whose name appears in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial 
owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, July 24, 2024 
only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting as well as voting at the Meeting 
through electronic means. A person who is not a member as on the cut-off date, i.e., 
Wednesday, July 24, 2024 should treat this Notice for information purpose only.  

 
6. Any person holding shares in physical form or non-individual shareholders, who acquires 

shares of the Company and become a member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of 
the Meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, July 24, 2024 may 
obtain the login User Id and password / PIN by sending a request to NSDL at 
evoting@nsdl.com or RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in. However, if you are already 
registered with NSDL for remote e-Voting then you can use your existing User ID and 
password / PIN for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your 
password by using “Forgot User Details / Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on 022 - 4886 7000.  
 
In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares of 
the Company and becomes a member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding 
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shares as of the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, July 24, 2024 may follow steps mentioned above 
under Step 1: “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”.  

 
7. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Instructions for Shareholders whose e-mail ids are not registered / updated: 

 
Physical 
Holding 

Send a request to the Company at compliance@khadims.com or to the 
Company’s RTA at rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in by providing Folio No., Name 
of the Shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN 
(self-attested scanned copy), AADHAAR (self-attested scanned copy) for 
registering / updating the e-mail address. 

Demat 
Holding 

Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register / update your              
e-mail address as per the process advised by your DP. The DP ID - Client ID (16 
Digit DP ID + Client ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID), Name of the Shareholder, 
client master or copy of consolidated account statement, PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy), AADHAAR (self-attested scanned copy) shall be required for the 
aforesaid purpose. 

 
Alternatively, Shareholder / Member may send an e-mail request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
obtaining User Id and Password by providing the above-mentioned documents. 
 

 
****************************** 
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CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE COPY

For Khadirn India Lirnited
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Company Secretary & Head Legal

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

BETWEEN

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

("DEMERGED COMPANY" or "Klt")

KSR FOOTWEA

;fu
FrectorlArtho

R LIMITED

{
ris6d Signalory

AND

(UNDER SECTTONS 230 TO 232 READ W|TH SECTTON 66 AND OTHER APPUCABTE PROVISIONS OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013}

1 This Scheme of Arrangement ("scheme" or "this Scheme", as more particularly defined hereinafter) is

presented under Sections 23O to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act

(as defined below) read with Section 2(19AA) and other applicable provisions of the lncome Tax Act,

1961, including the rules and regulations issued thereunder, as may be applicable, between Khadim

lndia Limited ("Demerged company" or "KlL") and KSR Footwear Limited ("Resulting Company" or

"KFL") and their respective shareholders and creditors.

This Scheme provides for the following:

(i) the transfer by way of a demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as more particularly defined

hereinafter) of the Demerged company into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis

and the consequent issue of New Equity Shares (as defined hereinafter) by the Resulting

company to the shareholders of the Demerged Company;

(i0 Reduction and cancellation of the existing paid up share capital of the Resulting Company;

(iii) Listing of equity shares of Resulting company on the stock Exchanges (as defined hereinafter);

and

(iv) various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

2

KSR FOOTWEAR TIMITED

("RESULTING COMPANY" or "KFt")

AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOTDERS AND CREDITORS

PREAMBTE AND OVERVIEW OF THE SCHEME

Annexure B

Annexure I
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II. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OFTHE COMPANIES

Khadim lndia Limited (hereinafter referred to as "KlL" or "Demerged company'') is a public listed

company engaged in the manufacturing / retail business of footwear and accessories. lt was

incorporated on December 03, 1981 under the provisions of the lndian Companies Act, 1955, having

CIN 119129W81981P1C034337. lts registered office is situated at 7th Floor, Tower c, DLF lT Park, 08

Major Arterial Road, Block-AF, New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 700156, West Bengal. The equity shares

of KIL are listed on the Stock Exchanges (defined below).

KSR Footwear Limit€d (hereinafter referred to as "KFL" or "Resulting Company'') is an unlisted public

company incorporated on August 22, 2023 under the provisions of the Act having clN

U46413W82023P1C264443. lts registered office is situated at Ftat No.4A,4th Floor, Kalyani Complex,

P-22, Block - A, Bangur Avenue, North 24 Parganas - 700055, West Bengal. lt is a Wholly-owned

Subsidiary of KlL. As per Memorandum of Association of KFL, it is engaged in the business of

manufacturing and wholesaling of footwear and accessories.

The Demerged Company has 2 (two) distinct businesses viz. (i) Retail Business and (ii) Distribution

Business. The retail business operates through 848 retail stores (as on June 30, 2023) and caters to the

middle and upper middle-income consumers, while the distribution business operates through a wide

network of 732 distributors (as on June 30, 2023) selling to multi-brand-outlets across lndia and caters

to lower and middle-income consumers. The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking

(defined hereinafter) comprising of Distribution Business into the Resulting Company pursuant to this

Scheme shall be in the interest of all concerned stakeholders including shareholders, customers,

creditors, employees and general public, in the following ways:

(i) The Demerged Undertaking and the Remaining Business (defined hereinafter) address different

market segments with divergic dynamics in terms of business strategy, customer set and distinct

capital requirements. The transfer of the Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company will

enable both the Demerged and Resulting Company to focus on their activities in the respective

segments. This would help to improve their competitiveness, operational efficiency, agility and

strengthen their position in relevant markets.

(;i) The nature of risk, competition, challenges, opportunities, market segment, target customer and

business methods for the Distribution Business (as defined hereinafter) is separate and distinct

from the Remaining Business (as defined hereinafter) carried out by the Demerged company'
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(iii) The segregation of the business vertical shall enable them to move forward independently, with

specialization building on their respective capabilities. lt will also help to channelize resources

required for all the businesses to focus on the growing businesses and attracting right talent and

providing enhanced groMh opportunities to existing talent in line with a sharper strategic focus

on each business segment under separate entities.

(iv) The Scheme will also enable the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to focus and

enhance their respective management structure ensuring better and more efficient management

control,

(v) Bifurcation of these businesses will enable unlocking value of each vertical thereby paving way for

focused growth with a view to create significant stakeholder value, will attract distinct investor

base and at the same time allow investors to allocate their portfolio into separate entities, focused

on the distinct entities. Further, it will enable independent and distinct capital allocation approach

and balance sheet management based on the distinct needs of each business.

Create sector focused companies;

Attract business specific investors;

Streamline the management structure;

Unlock value for shareholders;

Ring-fence businesses from each other;

Better risk management; and

Better Management Bandwidth utilization.

This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

Part A - Deals with Definitions, lnterpretation, Date of taking effect and Share Capital;

Part B - Deals with transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company;

Part c - Deals with the general terms and conditions applicable to this Scheme.

a

a
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(vi) Thus, the demerger would help in achieving the desired operating structure and shall inter alia

have following benefits:

PARTS OF THE SCHEME
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The provisions of this Scheme have been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to

"Demerger" as defined under Section 2(19AA) read with other applicable provisions of the lncome Tax

Act, L961. lf, at a later date, any of the terms or provisions of the Scheme are found or interpreted to

be inconsistent with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the lncome Tax Act, 1961, including as a result

of an amendment of law or enactment of new legislation or any other reason whatsoever, the

provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the lncome Tax Act, 1961, or corresponding provisions of any amended

or newly enacted law, shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined

necessary to comply with Section 2(19AA) of the lncome Tax Act, 1.961 or such newly enacted law or

new legislation. Such modifications will, however, not affect the other provisions of the Scheme.

PART A

DEFINITIONS, INTERPRETATION, DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND SHARE CAPITAT

I DEFINITIONS

ln this Scheme (as defined hereinafter), unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the

following expressions shall have the meanings ascribed herein below:

1,.2

1.3

"Applicable Law" means (a) all applicable statutes, enactments, acts of legislature or parliament, laws,

ordinances, rules , bye-laws, regulations, listing agreements, notifications, guidelines or policies of any

applicable country and/ or jurisdiction, (b) administrative interpretation, writ, injunction, directions,

directives, judgement, arbitral award, decree, orders or governmental approvals of or agreements with

any governmental authority or recognized stock exchange, and (c) international treaties, conventions

and protocols, as may be in force from time to time.

"Appointed Date" means the same date as the Effective Date or such other date as may be mutually

agreed by the Companies;

l).s
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V. TREATMENT OF THE SCHEME FOR THE PURPOSES OF INCOME TAX ACT, 1961

1.1 "Act" means the companies Act, 2013 and the rules, circulars, notifications made thereunder as the

case may be, and shall include any statutory modifications, re-enactment or amendments thereof for

the time being in force;
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l.4 "AppropriateAuthority"means:

7.4.1, the Bovernment of any jurisdiction (including any central, state, provincial, municipal or local

government or any political or administrative subdivision thereof) and any department, ministry,

a8ency, court, instrumentality, central bank, commission or other authority thereof;

any governmental, quasi-governmental or private body or agency lawfully exercising, or entitled to

exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial, Iegislative, regulatory, statutory, licensing,

competition, tax, importing, exporting or other governmental or quasi-governmental authority

including (without limitation) SEBI (as defined hereinafter) and NCLT (as defined hereinafter);

I.4.3 Stock Exchanges (as defined hereinafter);

'J..4.4 Such other sectoral regulators or authorities as may be applicable.

"Board of Directors" or "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company or of the

Resulting Company or both as the context may require and shall, unless it be repugnant to the context

or otherwise, include a duly constituted committee of directors or any person(s) authorised by the

Board of Directors or such committee of directors;

1.6 "Demerged UndertakinB" shall mean and include the entire Distribution Business as a going concern

including all its activities and operations as identified by the Board of Directors of the Demerged

Company, with all properties, assets, technical experience, related employees, personnel and

credentials, including all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations, litigations, working capital (including

all inventories), whether tangible or intangible, and such other ventures and shall include ancillary and

support services in relation to the same, to be tansferred to the Resulting Company with effect from

the Appointed Date, and shall include (without limitation):

1.6.1 All the movable and immovable properties tangible or intangible, investments, plant and machinery,

electrical installations, equipment, furniture, fixtures, vehicles, stocks and inventory, leasehold assets

and other properties, real, corporeal or incorporeal, in possession or reversion, present and contingent

assets (whether tangible or intangible) of whatsoever nature, assets, pertaining to the Distribution

Business including cash in hand, amounts lying in the banks, escrow accounts, claims, powers,

authorities, allotments, approvals, consents, letters of intent, registrations, contracts, engagements,

arrangements, rights, credits, titles, interests, benefits, advantages, freehold, leasehold rights, brands,

sub-letting tenancy rights, leave and license permissions, no objection certificates, goodwill, other

intangibles, customer relationships, registration, approvals, permits, authorisations, trademarks, trade

names, patents, patent rights, copyrights, and other industrial and intellectual properties and

DI,+

1,.4.2
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credential and rights of any nature whatsoever including know-how, websites, portals, domain names,

or any applications for the above, assignments and grants in respect thereof, import quotas and other

quota rights, right to use and avail of services of every kind, nature and description whatsoever,

provisions, funds, and benefits (including all work-in progress), of all agreements, arrangements,

deposits, advances, recoverable and receivables, whether from government, semi-government, local

authorities or any other Person including customers, contractors or other counter parties, etc., all

earnest monies and/or deposits, privileges, liberties, easements, advantages, benefits, exemptions,

licenses, privileges and approvals of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated, belonging to or in

the ownership, power or possession or control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the

Demerged Company in relation to and pertaining to the Distribution Business;

All other interests or rights (including claim, arbitration awards, etc.) or, accumulated experience or

performance qualifications including financial, technical, manufacturing and other qualifications, in or

arising out of relating to the Distribution Business together with all respective powers, interests,

charges, privileges, benefits, entitlements, past experience and credentials, business track record,

brands and trademarks, patents, copyrights, other intellectual property rights, industrial and other

registrations, licenses, quotas, subsidies, grants, powers and facilities of every kind, nature and

descriptions whatsoever, income tax (including advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular assessment

tax, tax deducted at source) paid by Demerged Company pertaining to Distribution Business, unutilized

credits relating to excise duties, sales tax, service tax, Valued Added Tax ("VAf), Goods and Services

Tax ("GST") or any other Taxes by whatever name called belonging to Distribution Business, tax benefits

and other claims and powers, rights to use and avail of telephones, facsimile connections and other

communication facilities, connections, installations and equipment, utilities, email, internet and leased

lines, utilities, electricity, water and other services, and all other interests in connection with or relating

to the Distribution Business;

Right to use the work experience, credential, qualifications, capabilities, legacies and track record with

Government/Non-Government agencies/bodies, contracts with clients and with vendors (including

technical parameters, past performance, track record, financials etc.) of the Demerged Company,

whether or not pertaining to the Distribution Business, acquired by reason of the completion of various

pro.iects and works, certificates of completion of projects or works issued by the clients and the right

to use all these for qualifying for any tender or project that may be issued at any time;

All receivables, loans and advances, including accrued interest thereon, all advance payments, earnest

monies and/or security deposits, payment against warrants, if any, or other entitlements of the

Demerged Company in relation to and pertaining to the Distribution Business;

o

7.6.4
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1.6.3
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All the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations, funded and non-funded facilities, whether secured or

unsecured, bank guarantees, performance guarantees, corporate guarantees, letters of credit, deferred

tax liabilities including contingent liabilities of the Demerged Company in relation to and pertaining to

the Distribution Business after following the due process prescribed by lenders/ Persons wherever

required;

All contracts (including vendor contracts, lease contracts, customer contracts of every nature and

revenue and receipts associated therewith), agreements, entitlements, pre-qualifications, purchase

orders/service orders, operation and maintenance contracts, memoranda of understanding,

memoranda of undertaking, memoranda of agreements, memoranda of agreed points, bids, tenders,

tariff orders, open order book(s), expression of interest, letter of intent, hire purchase agreements,

lease/license agreements, tenancy rights, agreements/panchnamas for right of way, equipment

purchase agreements, agreement with customers, purchase and other agreements with the

supplier/manufacturer of goods/service providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds,

schemes, insurance covers and claims and clearances and other instruments of whatsoever nature and

description, whether written, oral or otherwise and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits

thereunder in relation to and pertaining to the Distribution Business;

1.6.1 All litigations and proceedings in relation to the Distribution Businessi

1.6.8 All books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, records of standard operating

procedures, computer programsf software along with their licenses, drawings, manuals, data,

catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials, lists of present and former customers and

suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing information and other records whether in

physical or electronic form, in connection with or relating to the Distribution Business; and

1.6.9 AllTransferring Employees (as defined hereinafter)

1,.7 "Distribution business" means the Company's distribution segment which provides branded and

affordable footwear in the mass footwear category catering to lower- & middle-income consumers in

Tier I to Tier lll cities. The distribution business operates through a network of 732 distributors selling

to multi-brand-outlets across lndia. The distribution segment manufactures approximately 96% of the

products of this category to have better control over quality, supply and cost.

"Effective Date" means the date which will be the first day of the month following the month in which

parties mutually acknowledge in writing that all the conditions referred to in Clause 25.1 of the Scheme

have occurred or have been fulfilled, obtained or waived, as applicable, in accordance with this scheme.

=
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"Encumbrance" means (i) any charge, lien (statutory or other), or mortgage, any easement,

encroachment, right of way, right of first refusal or other encumbrance or security interest securing any

obligation of any Person; (ii) pre-emption ri8ht, option, right to acquire, right to set off or other third

party right or claim of any kind, including any restriction on use, voting, selling, assigning, pledging,

hypothecating, or creating a security interest in, place in trust (voting or otherwise), receipt of income

or exercise; or (iii) any equity, assignments, hypothecation, title retention, restriction, power of sale or

other type of preferential arrangements; or (iv) any agreement to create any of the above; and the

terms "Encumber" or "Encumbrances" shall be construed accordingly;

1.10 "ESOP Plans" means

Employee stock Option Plan 2017 approved at the general meeting dated 17th June, 2017 (ratified

at the general meeting dated 6th september, 2o18.This plan being presently not viable is not in use.

Khadim Employee Stock option Plan 2o2! formulated in accordance with special resolutions

passed via postal ballot dated 7th May, 2o21.However, post the approval, no options have been

allotted under the plan.

1.1L "Fund(s) "shall have the meaninB set out in clause 9.2

1.13 ,,New Equity shares" means the equity shares of the Resulting company issued and allotted pursuant

to the Scheme;

1,.1,4 "NCLT" or "Tribunal" means the relevant bench of the Hon'ble National company Law Tribunal having

jurisdiction over Demerged company and/or Resulting company, as the case may be, sanctioning this

Scheme pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act;

1.15 "Options" shall mean the stock options Sranted by KIL as per the ESOP Plans of KIL;

"Parties" shall mean collectively the Demerged company and the Resulting Company and "Party" shall

mean each of them, individually;

"Permits" means all consents, licences, permissions, authorisations, rights, clarifications, approvals,

clearances, confirmations, declarations, waivers, exemptions, registrations, filings, whether

SOVern atutory, regulatory under Applicable Law;

s Itt

7.77
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References in this scheme to the "date of coming into effect of this Scheme" or "upon the Scheme

becoming effective" or "effectiveness of the scheme" shall mean the Effective Date;

7.1.2 "lNR" means lndian Rupee, the lawful currency ofthe Republic of lndia;

1.16
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"Person" means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability partnership, a limited

liability company, an association, a joint stock company, a trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated

organization or an Appropriate Authority;

"Record Date" means the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors or a committee thereof, if any, of

the Demerged Company and Resulting company for the purpose of determining the members of the

Demerged Company to whom New Equity Shares will be allotted pursuant to the Scheme;

"Remaining Business" means all the business, assets and liabilities of the Demerged company other

than those forming part of the Demerged Undertaking, and includes the Retail Business;

"Roc" means the relevant Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction over the Parties, as the case may

be;

"Scheme" or "this Scheme" means this scheme of arrangement in its present form or with any

modification(s) made under Clause 24 of this Scheme as approved or directed by the Appropriate

Authority;

"SEBI" means the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia, established under the Securities and

Exchange Board of lndia Act, 1992;

"SEBI Circular" shall mean the circular issued by the sEBl, being Master circular SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-

2/P/ClRl2023l93 dated June 20, 2023, and any amendments thereot modifications issued pursuant to

Regulations 11, 37 and 94 of the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 as amended;

"Stock Exchanges" means BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited, collectively

and Stock Exchange shall mean each of them individually;

"Taxation" or "Tax" or "Taxes" means all forms oftaxes and statutory, governmental, state, provincial,

international, local governmental or municipal impositions, duties, contributions and levies and

whether levied by reference to income, profits, book profits, gains, net wealth, asset values, turnover,

added value or otherwise and shall further include payments in respect of or on account ofTax, whether

by way of deduction at source, advance tax, minimum alternate tax or otherwise or attributable directly

or primarily to the Demerged Company or the Resulting company or any other Person and all penalties,

charges, costs and interest relating thereto;

TA +-o
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7.21 "Transferring Employees" means (i) all the employees of the Demerged Undertaking, i.e., Distribution

Business as on the Effective Date and (ii) such other employees as identified by the Demerged Company

as on the Effective Date.

2 INTERPRETATION

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or

meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the lncome-tax Act, 1961,

the Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1.956, the Depositories Act, 1996 or other Applicable Laws,

rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof

from time to time.

ln this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

words denoting singular shall include plural and vice-versa;

headings and bold typeface are only for convenience and shall be ignored for the purposes of

interpretation;

references to the word "include" or "including" shall be construed without limitation;

a reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or schedule is, unless indicated to the

contrary, a reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or schedule of this Scheme;

unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word "days" shall mean calendar days;

references to dates and times shall be construed to be references to lndian dates and times;

reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or replacement or novation

of, that document; and

reference to any law or legislation or regulation shall include amendment(s), circulars,

notifications, clarifications or supplement(s) to, or replacement, re-enactment, restatement or

amendment of, that law or legislation or regulation and shall include the rules and regulations

thereunder; and word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in the scheme will have the

meaning(s) respectively ascribed to them.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT

The scheme in its present form or with any modification(s) approved or directed by the NCLT or any

amendment(s) made under Clause 24 of this Scheme shall be deemed to be effective from the

51
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Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date,
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4. SHARE CAPITAT

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company as on

September 22, 2023 is as under:

Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital

6,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 60,00,00,000

TOTAL 60,00,00,000

lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

f ,79,69,674 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up 17,96,96,740

TOTAL

4.2 The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company as on September

22,2023 is as under:

Share capital Amount (in INR)

Authorised Share Capital

1,50,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 15,00,000

TOTAL 15,00,000

lssued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

10,000 Equity shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up

TOTAT 1,00,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and

paid-up capital of the Resulting company until the date of approval of the scheme by the Board of the

Resulting Company

4.3 The Demerged Company may, from time to time, in accordance with the Act, rules and regulations

framed by the SEBI including the SEBI (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018

and other Applicable Laws, issue securities to any persons (including by way of a rights issue,

preferential allotment or bonus issue).

Amount (in INR)

L7,96,96,t4O

subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and

paid-up capital of the Demerged company until the date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of the

Demerged Company.

1,00,000
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5

5.2

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

Without prejudice to the generality of the above and to the extent applicable, unless otherwise stated

herein:

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, with respect to the assets

of the Demerged Undertaking that are movable in nature or are otherwise capable of being transferred

by manual delivery or endorsement and/or delivery, the same may be so transferred by the Demerged

Company by operation of law without any further act or execution of an instrument with the intent of

vesting such assets with the Resulting Company

LJpon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, with respect to the assets

of the Demerged Undertaking, other than those referred to in Clause 5.2.1 above, including all rights,

title and interests in the agreements (including agreements for lease or license of the properties),

contracts, deeds, arrangements, investment in shares, fixed deposits, mutual funds, bonds and any

other securities, sundry debtors, outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind

or for value to be received, bank balances, earnest moneys and deposits, if any, with Government, semi-

Government, local and other authorlties and bodies, customers and other persons, whether or not the

same is held in the name of the Demerged Company, shall, without any further act, instrument or deed,

be transferred to and vested in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting

Company, by way of delivery of the respective documents in this regard in favour of the Resulting

Company. It is clarified that all agreements with customer, agreements with SEBI, agreement with

banksfund reements, s

(q
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rad emarks or third party licenses, statutory and regulatory

PART B

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the opening of business hours ofthe Appointed

Date, and subject to the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the

whole of the Demerged undertaking of the Demerged company shall stand transferred and vested in

the Resulting Company on a going concern basis and all assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements,

employees, permits, licenses, records, no objection certificates, approvals, credentials, litigations, etc.

of the Demerged Undertaking shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, stand transferred to

and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company, so as to

become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements, employees,

Permits, licenses, records, approvals, etc. of the Resulting Company by virtue of, and in the manner

provided in this Scheme.

5.2.2
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permissions, environmental approvals and consents, registrations or other licenses and power of

attorneys in relation to the Demerged Undertaking would get transferred to and vested in the Resulting

Company, with effect from the Appointed Date by operation of law, as the case may be, in favour of

the Resulting Company and shall have been deemed to have been entered into by the Resulting

Company with such respective parties.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, without prejudice to the

aforesaid, all the immovable property whether or not included in the books of the Demerged Company

pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, whether freehold or leasehold (including but not limited to

any other document of title, rights, interest and easements in relation thereto, and any shares in

cooperative housing societies associated with such immovable property) shall stand transferred to and

be vested in the Resulting Company, without any act or deed to be done or executed by the Demerged

Company and/or the Resulting Company. The Resulting Company shall be entitled to and shall exercise

all rights and privileges attached to the aforesaid immovable properties and shall be liable to pay the

ground rent and taxes and fulfil all obligations in relation to or applicable to such immovable properties.

The mutation or substitution of the title to the immovable properties shall, upon this Scheme becoming

effective and with effect from the Appointed date, be made and duly recorded in the name of the

Resulting Company by the Appropriate Authorities, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT

in accordance with the terms hereof.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, duties

and obligations (debentures, bonds, notes and other debt securities), bank guarantees, performance

guarantees, corporate guarantees, letters of credit including contingent liabilities of the Demerged

Company in relation to and pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall, without any further act,

instrument or deed or wherever required after following the due process prescribed by lenders/

Persons, be transferred to, and vested in, and/ or deemed to have been transferred to, and vested in,

the Resulting Company, so as to become, the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations (debentures,

bonds, notes and other debt securities), bank guarantees, performance guarantees, corporate

guarantees, letters of credit including contingent liabilities ofthe Resulting Company on the same terms

and conditions as were applicable to the Demerged Company, and it shall not be necessary to obtain

the consent of any Person who is a party to contract or arrangement by virtue of which such liabilities

have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause 5.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, all benefits, incentives,

losses, credits (including, without limitation lncome tax, tax deducted at source, wealth tax, service tax,

excise duty, central sales tax, goods and services tax, applicable state value added tax etc.) to which the

4Dr\
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Demerged undertaking of the Demerged company is entitled to in terms of Applicable Laws shall be

available to and vest in the Resulting Company.

The vesting of the Demerged Undertaking, as aforesaid, shall be subject to the Encumbrances, if any,

over or in respect of any ofthe assets or any part thereot in respect of any financing, borrowings and/or

debts pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking which shall be transferred to the Resulting Company,

provided however that such Encumbrances shall be confined only to the relevant assets of the

Demerged Undertaking or part thereof on or over which they are subsisting on and no such

Encumbrances shall extend over or apply to any other asset(s) of the Resulting Company. Any reference

in any security documents or arrangements (to which the Demerged Company is a party) related to any

assets of the Demerged Undertaking shall be so construed to the end and intent that such security shall

not extend, nor be deemed to extend, to any of the other asset(s) of the Resulting Company. Similarly,

the Resulting Company shall not be required to create any additional security over assets vested under

this Scheme for any loans, debentures, deposits or other financial assistance already availed of/to be

availed of by it, and the Encumbrances in respect of such indebtedness of the Resulting Company shall

not automatically extend or be deemed to extend or apply to the assets so vested,

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, the work experience,

qualifications, capabilities, legacies and track record with Government / Non-Government agencies /
bodies, contracts with clients and with vendors (including technical parameters, past performance,

track record, financials, etc.) of the Demerged Company acquired by reason of the completion of

various projects and works pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall be deemed to be part of and

belonging to the Resulting Company and shall for all purposes be regarded as the work experience,

credentials and qualification, capabilities and legacies (including technical parameters, past

performance, track record, financials etc-) of the Resulting Company.

On and from the Effective Date and t,ll such time that the name of the bank accounts of the Demerged

Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, if any, has been replaced with that ofthe Resulting

Company, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to maintain and operate the bank accounts of the

Demerged Undertaking in the name of the Demerged Company and for such time as may be

determined to be necessary by the Resulting Company- All cheques and other negotiable instruments,

payment orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the Demerged

Company and pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking after the Effective Date shall be accepted by

the bankers of the Resulting Company and credited to the account of the Resulting Company, if

presented by the Resulting Company.

D 1,1
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5.2.9 Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions of this Scheme, the Demerged Company and/or the

Resulting Company shall be entitled to apply to the Appropriate Authorities as are necessary under any

law for such consents, approvals and sanctions which the Resulting Company may require and execute

any and all instruments or documents and do all the acts and deeds as may be required, including filing

of necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of charge, with the concerned RoC or filing of necessary

applications, notices, intimations or letters with any Appropriate Authority or Person, to give effect to

the above provisions.

6. PERMITS

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, all the Permits, estates,

assets, title, interests and authorities held or availed of by, and all rights and benefits that have accrued

to, the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, shall be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company and the

concerned grantors of such Permits shall endorse where necessary, and record the Resulting Company

on such Permits so as to empower and facilitate the approval and vesting ofthe oemerged Undertaking

in the Resulting Company and continuation of operations pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking in

the Resulting Company without any hindrance, and shall stand transferred to and vested in or be

deemed to have been transferred to, and vested in, and be available to, the Resulting Company so as

to become as and from the Appointed Date, the Permits, estates, assets, rights, title, interests and

authorities of the Resulting Company and shall remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same

terms and conditions to the extent permissible in Applicable Laws.

6.1

6.2 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, and until the license and/or

permit and/or approval are transferred, vested, recorded, effected, and/or perfected, in the record of

the Appropriate Authority, in favour ofthe Resulting Company, the Resulting Company is authorized to

carry on business in the name and style of the Demerged Company, and under the relevant license

and/or permit and/or approval, as the case may be, and the Resulting Company shall keep a record

and/or account of such transactions.

Subject to the other provisions of the Scheme, all contracts, guarantees, deeds, bonds, agreements,

arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged Undertaking,

to which the Demerged Company is a party and which is subsisting or having effect on or immediately

before the Appointed Date shall remain in full force and effect against or in favour of the Resulting

company and shall be binding on and be enfo
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effectually as if the Resultint Company had at all material times been a party or beneficiary or obligee

thereto. The Resulting Company will, if required, enter into a novation agreement, sub-contracting

agreement, deeds, writings, or confirmations in relation to such contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements,

arrangements, and other instruments as stated above and, if required, cause such contracts, deeds,

bonds, agreements, arrangements and other instruments as stated above to be formally taken on

record/ recognized by the Appropriate Authorities.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that vesting of

the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company occurs by virtue of this Scheme, the Demerged

Company and/or the Resulting Company may, at any time in accordance with the provisions hereof, if

so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such deeds (including

deeds of adherence), confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements with any party to any

contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings as may be

necessary in order to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The Resulting Company shall under

the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of

the Demerged Company, to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above

on the part of the Demerged Company pertaining to Demerged Undertaking.

On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to enforce all

pending contracts and transactions and to accept stock returns and issue credit notes, where the

Demerged Company is a party, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, in the

name of the Resulting Company in so far as may be necessary until the transfer of rights and obligations

of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company under this Scheme have been given effect to

under such contracts and transactions.

ln an event where any contracts, agreements, arrangements, and other instruments of whatsoever

nature pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking are not transferrable for any reasons, the Demerged

Company shall sub-contract such contracts to the Resulting Company by entering into applicable

agreements/ deeds as per the Applicable Law. ln such cases, the Resulting Company, if required shall

indemnify the Demerged Company for any risks or loss or reward associated with such contracts sub-

contracted, Further, if any contracts, agreements, arrangements and other instruments of whatsoever

nature pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking are not transferrable for any reasons and cannot be

sub-contracted to the Resulting Company then, the Resulting Company shall allow the Demerged

Company the right to use such performance qualifications, technical experience and credentials, if

required, which will be transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme to complete/

impiement only such contracts, agreements, arrangements.
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8. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, proceedings by or against the Demerged Undertaking

pending and/or arising on or before the Effective date or which may be instituted at any time thereafter

shall not abate or be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of this scheme or

by anything contained in this scheme but shall be continued and be enforced by or against the Resulting

company with effect from the Effective Date in the same manner and to the same extent as would or

might have been continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company.

8.2 The Resulting Company: (a) shall be replaced/added as party to such proceedings relating to the

Demerged Undertaking; and (b) shall prosecute or defend such proceedings at its own cost and the

liability of the Demerged Company shall consequently stand nullified.

8.3 It is clarified that except as otherwise provided herein, the Demerged Company shall in no event be

responsible or liable in relation to any proceedings relating to the Demerged Undertaking that stand

transferred to the Resulting Company.

9 STAFF & EMPTOYEES

9.1 On the Scheme becoming effective, all the Transferring Employees shall be deemed to have become

employees of the Resulting Company with effect from the Appointed Date, without any interruption in

service, on the terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the

Demerged Company. The Resulting Company undertakes to continue to abide by any

agreement/settlement or arrangement, if any, entered into or deemed to have been entered into by

the Demerged Company with any of the aforesaid Transferring Employees or union representing them.

The Resulting Company agrees that the services of all such Transferring Employees with the Demerged

Company prior to the demerger shall be taken into account for the purposes of all existing benefits to

which the said Transferring Employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any

retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other retiral / terminal benefits.

9.2 The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of such Transferring Employees in the existing

provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund or any other special fund / trusts relating to retiral

benefits lcollectively referred to as the "Fund(s]"] of which they are members will be transferred to

such similar Funds nominated bythe Resu lting Compa ny and/ or such new Fundsto be established by

the Resulting Company in accordance with Applicable Law and caused to be recognized by the

Appropriate Authorities. Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the Fund dues of the said employees would

be continued to be deposited in the existing Funds of the Demerged Company. lt is clarified that the
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services of the Employees forming part of the Demerged undertaking will be treated as having been

continuous for the purpose of the said Funds.

The decision on whether or not rransferring Employee is part of the Demerged Undertaking shall be

decided by the Demerged Company and shall be final and binding on all concerned.

9.4 EmDlovee stock options:

Upon coming into effect of the scheme and in consideration for the demerger of the Demerged

Undertaking of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, the Board of the Demerged

Company shall decide the manner in which difference in the intrinsic value created pursuant to the

demerger of the Distribution Business is to be compensated to the ESOps holders of the Demerged

Company.

9.4.2 The Board of the Demerged company shall take such actions and execute such further documents as

may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to the provisions of clause 9.4.1, if

required. Approval granted to the Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged Company shall also be

deemed to be approval granted to any modifications made to the ESOP plans of the Demerged

Company.

10. OTHER ENTITTEMENTS

10.1 All cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment orders received in the name of Demerged

Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the

bankers of Resulting Company and credited to the account of Resulting Company. Similarly, the bankers

of Resulting Company shall honour cheques issued by Oemerged Company in relation to the Demerged

Undertaking for payment after the Effective Date.

70.2 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme the resolutions, if any, of Demerged Company in relation

to the Demerged Undertaking which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date shall continue to be

valid and subsisting and be considered as resolutions of Resulting Company.

11. CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of and subject to the provisions of the

Scheme, the Resulting Company shall without any application or deed, issue and allot j.,79,69,614 New

Equity Shares of face value of INR 10/- each, credited as fully paid up, to the extent indicated below, to

the equity shareholders holding fully paid up equity shares of the Demerged Company and whose name

appear in the register of members ofthe Deme Company as on the Record Date or to such of their
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respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representatives or other successors in title as

may be recognized by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company in the following proportion,

subject to the Clause 11.5 and Clause 1.1..6 of the Scheme;

"7l0ne) equity shore oJ the fqce volue of INR 10/- eoch fully poid-up ofthe Resulting Compony shqll be

issued ond allotted for every 1(One) equity shore offoce volue INR 10/- each fully poid up held by equity

shoreholders oJ the Demerged Company. "(",hdrc Entitlement Rdtio")

The fractional entitlements, if any shall be aggregated and held by the trust nominated by the Board of

Directors of the Resulting Company in this behalf, who shall sell such shares in the market at such price,

within a period of ninety (90) days from the date of allotment of shares, as per the Scheme and on such

sale, shall pay to the Resulting company, the net sale proceeds (after deduction of applicable taxes and

other expenses incurred), whereupon the Resulting Company shall, subject to withholding tax, if any,

distribute such sale proceeds to the concerned shareholders of the Demerged Company in proportion

to their respective fractional entitlements so sold by the trustee.

The New Equity Shares to be issued to the shareholders of the Demerged Company as above shall be

su b.iect to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Resulting

Company. Further, the New Equity Shares issued shall rank pari passu with the existing equity shares of

the Resulting Company in all respects including dividends, if any that may be declared by the Resulting

Company on or after the scheme becoming effective, as the case may be.

The issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company as

provided in Clause 11 of this Scheme, is an integral part of the Scheme, and shall be deemed to be

carried out without requiring any further act on the part of the Resulting Company or its shareholders

as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 of the Act and any other applicable provisions of the

Act, were duly complied with.

The New Equity Shares to be issued and allotted by the Resulting Company to the shareholders of the

Demerged Company shall be issued in dematerialized form. All the shareholders who hold shares of the

Demerged Company in physical form shall receive the equity shares, in dematerialized form provided

the details of their account with the Depository Participant are intimated in writing to the Demerged

Company and/or its Registrar and Transfer Agent on or before the Record Date. lf the Resulting

Company has not received the demat account details of such shareholders of the Demerged company,

the Resulting Company shall issue and allot such shares in lieu of the new equity share entitlement of

such shareholders, into a Demat Suspense account, which shall be operated by one of the directors of

the Resulting Company, duly authorised in this regard, who shall upon receipt of appropriate evidence

from such sha regarding th
4
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into the individual demat account of such claimant shareholders, such number of shares as may be

required in terms of this scheme.

11.6 Reorganisation of Authorised Share Capital of DemerBed and Resulting Company

Authorised Share Capital Amount (in INR)

2,00,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each 20,00,00,000

11.6.2 It is hereby clarified that under the accepted principle of single widow clearance, the consent

of the shareholders of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to this Scheme

shall be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the aforesaid amendments in the

Memorandum of Association of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and that

no further resolutions, whether under the applicable provisions of the Act or under the Articles

of Association, shall be required to be separately passed.

11.6.3 The fees and the stamp duty if any, paid by the Demerged Company on its authorised share

capital shall be set off against any fee payable by the Resulting Company on increase in its

authorised capital, subsequent to the demerger and balance fees, if any, shall be duly paid

upon the sanctioning of the Scheme. The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall

file with the jurisdictional RoC, all requisite forms and complete the requirements under the

Act, if any.

ln the event that the Companies restructure their equity share capital by way of share split /
consolidation / issue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Scheme, the share entitlement ratio

shall be adjusted accordingly to take into account the effect of any such corporate actions.

The New Equity Shares to be issued by the Resulting Company pursuant to clause 11.1 of the Scheme

in respect of such equity shares of the Demerged Company, the allotment or transfer of which is held

in abeyance under Applicable Law shall, pending allotment or settlement of dispute by order of the

appropriate court or otherwise, also be kept in abeyance in like manner by the Resulting Company.
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11.6.L Upon this Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the Appointed Date, the authorised

share capital of the Demerged Company in terms of its Memorandum of Association and

Articles of Association shall stand reduced by 2,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each which

shall be transferred to and form part of the authorised share capital of the Resulting Company,

without any further act or deed and simultaneously , the authorised share capital of the

Resulting Company shall stand increased in accordance with the provisions of section 61 of the

Act as follows;
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REDUCTION AND CANCETTATION OF THE EXISTING EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING

COMPANY

The aforesaid capital reduction of the paid up eq uity share capital of the Resulting Company shall have

no effect on the authorised share capital of the Resulting Company.

The reduction of the paid up equity share capital of the Resulting Company shall be effected as an

integral part of this Scheme itselt without having to follow the process under Sections 66 of the Act

separately and the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under

Section 66 of the Act confirming the reduction. Further, it is clarified that the approval of the members

of the Resulting Company to this Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/approval for the

reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company under appllcable provisions of the Act.

On effecting the reduction of the share capital as stated in Clause 12.1 above, the share certificates, if

any, in respect ofthe Resulting Company Cancelled Shares held by their respective holders shall also be

deemed to have been cancelled.

On the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall debit its share capital account in its books of account

with the aggregate face value of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares and credit capital reserve for

the same amount.

Pursuant to the capital reduction, there shall be no outflow of or payout of any funds from the Resulting

Company and hence, the interest of the shareholders/ creditors shall not be affected. Further this

capital reduction shall not, in any way, result into extinguishment of any liability or diminution of any

liability in respect of unpaid share capital or the payment to any shareholder of any paid-up share

capital.

The said capital reduction shall not have any adverse impact on the operations of the Resulting

Company or the ability of the Resulting Company to honour its commitment or to pay its debts in the

ordinary course of business. Further, the said capital reduction does not in any manner alter, vary or

affect the payment of any dues or outstanding amounts including all or any of the statutory dues

payable or outstanding.

t)j {

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the existing paid up equity share capital of the Resulting

Company comprising of 10,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each aggregating to tNR t,0O,OO0/- (Rupees

One Lakh Only) ("Resulting Company Cancelled Shares") shall stand reduced and cancelled pursuant to

Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Act.

12.4
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13. TISTING OF THE RESUTTING COMPANY

13.1

1,3.2 Further, there shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of or control in the Resulting Company

between the Record Date and the listing of the New Equity Shares, which may affect the status of

approval of the Stock Exchanges, other than as provided in the Scheme.

Resulting Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/or

undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with Applicable Law for complying with the formalities

of the Stock Exchanges.

74.! The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall account for the Scheme in their respective

books/financial statements in accordance with applicable lndian Accounting Standards (lnd-AS) notified

under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles in lndia as amended from time to time including as provided herein below:

Accountint treatment in the books of the Demerged Company:

1,4.1,.1, Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the appointed date, the respective carrying

value of assets, liabilities and identified reserves pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred

shall be reduced from the books of accounts of Demerged Company.

14.1.2 The Demerged Company shall derecognise the carrying amount of investments, if any, in the Resulting

Company pursuant to the Scheme.

14.1..4 The excess/deficit if any, of the net assets transferred to the Result!ng Company pursuant to Clause

14.1.1 afte
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ncellation as mentioned in Clause 14.1.2 and effect to
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Notwithstanding the reduction in the equity share capital of the Resulting Company, the Resulting

Company shall not be required to add "And Reduced" as suffix to its name.

Resulting Company shall apply for listing of its equity shares on the Stock Exchanges in terms of and in

compliance of SEBI Circular and other relevant provisions as may be applicable. The equity shares

allotted by the Resulting Company in terms of Clause 11 above, pursuant to the Scheme, shall remain

frozen in the depository system till listing/ trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.

13.3

L4. ACCOUNTINGTREATMENT

14.1.3 Loans and advances, receivables, payables and other dues outstanding between the Demerged

company and the Resulting Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking will stand cancelled and

there shall be no further obligation / outstanding in that behalf.
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elimination of balances as mentioned in Clause 14.1.3, shall be adjusted with the Capital Reserve,

General Reserve and Retained Earnings of the Demerged Company.

Accounting treatment in the books of the Resulting Company:

14.1.5 The Resulting Company shall record the assets, liabilities and identified reserves pertaining to the

Demerged Undertaking, transferred to and vested in it at their respective carrying values as appearing

in the books of the Demerged Company.

14.1.6 Loans and advances, receivables, payables and other dues outstanding between the Demerged

Company and the Resulting Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking will stand cancelled and

there shall be no further obligation / outstanding in that behalf.

1.4.1.7 The Resulting Company shall credit to its share capital in its books of accounts the aggregate face value

of equity shares issued by it to the shareholders of the Demerged Company pursuant to Clause 11 of

this Scheme.

14.1.8 The excess/deficit if any, of the net assets transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to Clause

14.1.5 after giving effect to Clause 14.1.6 and Clause 14.1.7, shall be transferred to the Capital Reserve

of the Resulting Company.

14.1.9 ln case of any difference in accounting policy between the Demerged Company and the Resulting

Company, the accounting policies followed by the Resulting Company shall prevail and the difference

shall be adjusted appropriately as per the applicable lnd-AS.

14.1.10 The Resulting Company's share capital cancelled pursuant to Clause 12 shall be credited to the Capital

Reserve account.

14.1.11 On the Effective Date, the financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior periods

will be restated as if the demerger had occurred from the beginning of the preceding period or the date

of incorporation of the Resulting Company, whichever is later, irrespective of the actual date of the

combination.

ls. TAXES/ DUTTES/ CESS ETC.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all taxes (including income tax, sales tax, service tax, goods and

service tax, etc.) paid or payable by Demerged Company, in respect ofthe operations and / or the profits

of the Demerged Undertaking before the Appointed Date, shall be on account of Demerged Company,

save and except otherwise, the same shall continue to be on account of Demerged Company even after
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15.3

15.4

15.5

the Etfective Date until the time required for giving effect to Scheme which shall include filing of

necessary forms, communication to vendors, customers and other stakeholders, opening of Bank

accounts, and necessary changes as per GST laws, lncome Tax, Customs etc. Further, Demerged

Company and Resulting company shalljointly and severally be liable to pay tax, interest or any penalty

due from the Demerged Company up to the time of transfer of Demerged Undertaking in compliance

with the relevant provisions of the Central Goods and Services Act, 2017.

For taxes paid or payable (including, without limitation, sales tax, income tax, service tax, goods and

service tax etc.), whether by way of deduction or collection at source, advance tax or otherwise

howsoever, by Demer8ed Company in respect of the profits or activities or operation of the Demerged

Undertaking after the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid or

payable by the Resulting Company, and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, on and from the Appointed Date, if any certificate

for tax deducted or collected at source or any other tax credit certiflcate relating to the Demerged

Undertaking is received in the name of Demerged Company, or tax credit relating to the Demerged

Undertaking is appearing in Form 26A5 of the Demerged Company, it shall be deemed to have been

received by and in the name of the Resulting Company which alone shall be entitled to claim credit for

such tax deducted or paid.

The unutilized credits relating to excise duties, sales tax, service tax, VAT, GST or anY other Taxes by

whatever name called as applicable which remain unutilized in the electronic ledger of the Demerged

Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall be transferred to and vest in the Resulting

Company upon filing of requisite forms in consonance with and in compliance of relevant provisions of

respective enactments.

Upon Scheme becoming effective, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly

permitted to revise and file their respective financial statements and income tax returns along with

prescribed forms, filings and annexures under the lncome-Tax Act, 1961 and other statutory returns,

including but not limited to income tax return, tax deducted/collected at source returns, service tax

returns, excise tax returns, sales tax/VAT/GST returns, as may be applicable for the period commencing

on and from the Appointed Date to give effect to the demerger and transfer of the Demerged

Undertaking from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company and any matters connected

therewith, and to claim all refunds, credits, etc., pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, pursuant to

the provisions of this Scheme without any further act, deed or instrument or consent or approval of

any third party.
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Benefit of all accumulated tax losses including brought forward business loss, unabsorbed depreciation,

etc., pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as on and up to the Appointed Date, shall be available to

Resulting Company in terms of Section 72A of lncome Tax Act. Where such loss or unabsorbed

depreciation is not directly relatable to the Demerged Undertaking transferred to the Resulting

Company, it shall be apponioned between the Demerged Company and Resulting Company in

accordance with the provisions of lncome Tax Act. lt is expressly clarified that all the accumulated losses

and unabsorbed depreciatlon as are transferred, shall be eligible to be carried forward and set off in

the hands of the Resulting company.

lncome tax benefits and exemptions, all tax holidays, rebates, indirect tax benefits and exemptions

(including benefits, entitlements, incentives, exemptions, subsidies, refunds, customs, excise, service

tax, VAT, sales tax, goods and services tax, as applicable), in connection with or relating to the

Demerged Undertaking whether on, before or after the Appointed Date, if any, shall, without any

further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge and without any notice or other intimation to any third

party for the transfer of the same be and stand vested in and/or be deemed to be vested in Resulting

company as a part of the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking as a going concern, so as to become,

as and from the Appointed Date, the income tax benefits and exemptions, tax holidays, rebates, indirect

tax benefits and exemptions (including benefits, entitlements, incentives, exemptions, subsidies,

refunds, customs, excise, service tax, VAT, sales tax, goods and services tax, as applicable), other rights,

benefits and liabilities related thereto, of Resulting Company and shall remain valid, effective and

enforceable on the same terms and conditions. lt is further clarified that they shall be deemed to have

originally been given by, issued to or executed in favour of Resulting Company, and Resulting Company

shall be bound by the terms thereof and the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and

benefits under the same shall be available to Resulting company.

Upon the coming into effect of this scheme, tax assessment proceedings/ appeals by or against the

Demerged Undertaking pending and/or arising on or before the Appointed date or which may be

instituted at any time thereafter shall be continued and enforced by or against the Resulting Company

relating in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and

enforced by or against the Demerged Company. All tax proceedings of whatsoever nature (including

any suits, appeals, arbitrations, execution proceedings, revisions, writ petitions, if any), whether civil or

criminal (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) by or against, pertaining

to the Demerged Undertaking, shall not abate, be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected

by reason of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking or anything contained in this
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15.9 All the expenses incurred by Demerged Company and the Resulting Company in relation to the Scheme,

includin8 stamp duty expenses, if any, shall be allowed as deduction to Demerged Company and the

Resulting Company in accordance with the Section 35DD of the lncome Tax Act over a period of five

years beginning with the previous year in which the Scheme becomes effective.

15.10 The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company shall be empowered to determine if any specific tax

liability or any tax proceeding relates to the Demerged Undertaking and therefore is required to be

transferred to the Resulting Company.

16. SAVING OF CONCTUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company as above and the

continuance of proceedings by or against the Resulting Company shall not affect any transaction or

proceedings already concluded on and after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and

intent that the Resulting Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by

the Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, in respect thereto as done and

executed on behalf of the Resulting Company.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The Remaining Business shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be managed by the Demerged

Company.

17.2 All legal, Taxation and/or other proceedings by or against the Demerged company under any statute,

whether pending on the Effective Date or which may be instituted at any time thereafter and relating

to the Remaining Business of the Demerged company (including those relating to any property, right,

power, liability, obligation or duties of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining Business)

shall be continued and enforced against the Demerged Company. The Resulting Company shall in no

event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal, Taxation and/or other proceedings in relation

to the Remaining Business.

lf proceedings are taken against the Resulting Company in respect to the Remaining Business, it shall

defend the same in accordance with the advice of the Demerged Company and at the cost of the

Demerged company, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify the Resulting company, against all

liabilities and obligations incur

+'^\

\\ r.:

17.3

DI

e Resulting Company in respect thereof

PART C

I7. REMAINING BUSINESS

77.7

K) 55



Page 27 of 32

18. DIVIDENDS

18.1 During the pendency of the Scheme, the Parties shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends, to their

respective shareholders in consistent with the past practice or in ordinary course of business, whether

interim or final. Any other dividend shall be recommended/declared only by the mutual consent of the

concerned Parties.

18.2 It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends (whether interim or

final) are enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any shareholder of

the Parties to demand or claim or be entitled to any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the

said Act, shall be entirely at the discretion of the respective Boards of the Parties as the case may be,

and subject to approval, if required, of the shareholders of the Parties as the case may be.

19. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS/ TRANSACTIONS UPTO THE EFFECTIVE DATE BY THE DEMERGED COMPANY

19.1 The Demerged company (with respect to the Demerged Undertaking) shall be deemed to have been

carrying on and shall carry on its business and activities and shall be deemed to have held and stood

possessed of and shall hold and stand possessed of the assets for and on account of, and in trust for

the Resulting Company.

19.2 The Demerged Company with respect to the Demerged Undertaking shall carry on their business with

reasonable diligence and business prudence and in the same manner as it had been doing hitherto, and

shall not undertake any additional financial commitments of any nature whatsoever, borrow any

amounts or incur any other liabilities or expenditure, issue any additional guarantees, indemnities,

letters of comfort or commitment either for themselves or on behalf of its respective affiliates or

associates or any third party, or sell, transfer, alienate, charge, mortgage or Encumber or deal in any of

its properties/assets, except:

19.2-:J. when the same is expressly provided in this Scheme; or

19.2.2 when the same is in the ordinary course of business as carried on, as on the date of filing of

this Scheme in the NCLT; or

19.2.3 when written consent ofthe Resulting Company has been obtained in this regard

\D 4
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From the earlier of the; (i) Scheme being approved by the respective Board of Directors of the

Demerged Company and the Resulting Company; and (ii) Appointed Date and up to and including the

Effective Date:
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The Demerged Company with respect to Demerged Undertaking shall not alter or substantially expand

its business, or undertake, except with the written concurrence of the Resulting Company: (i) any

material decision in relation to its business and affairs and operations other than that in the ordinary

course of business; (ii) any agreement or transaction (other than an agreement or transaction in the

ordinary course of business); (iii) any new business, or discontinue any existing business or change the

capacity offacilities other than that in the ordinary course of business; and (iv) any material amendment

to contracts with customers or vendors of the Demerged Undertaking.

The Demerged Company with respect to Demerged Undertaking shall not vary the terms and conditions

of employment of any of its Transferring Employees, except in the ordinary course of business or

pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken, except with the written concurrence of the

Resulting Company.

The Demerged Company and/or the Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the

Scheme, to apply to the Appropriate Authorities concerned as are necessary under any law for such

consents, approvals and sanctions which the Resulting Company may require to carry on the business

of the Demerged Company with respect to the Demerged Undertaking and to give effect to the Scheme.

With effect from the Appointed Date, all profits or income arising or accruing to the Demerged

Company with respect to the Demerged Undertaking and all taxes paid thereon (including but not

limited to advance tax, tax deducted at source, securities transaction tax, taxes withheld/ paid in a

foreign country, etc.) or losses arising or incurred by the Demerged Company with respect to the

Demerged Undertaking shall, for all purposes, be treated as and deemed to be the profits or income,

taxes or losses, of the Resulting Company.

All loans raised and all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company with respect to

the Demerged Undertaking after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, shall, subject to

the terms of this Scheme, be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of the

Resulting Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also, without any

further act or deed be deemed to become the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Resulting

Company.

execute any plea
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applications, , as may be required to remove any difficulties and

For the purpose of giving effect to the order passed under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable

provisions of the Act in respect of this Scheme by the NCLT, the Resulting Company shall, at any time

pursuant to the orders approving this Scheme, be entitled to get the recordal of the change in the legal

right(s) upon the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking, in accordance with the provisions of Sections

230 to 232 of the Act. The Resulting Company shall always be deemed to have been authorized to
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facilitate and carry out any formalities or compliances as are necessary for the implementation of this

Scheme. For the purpose of giving effect to the vesting order passed under Sections 230 to 232 of the

Act in respect of this Scheme, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to exercise all rights and

privileges, and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all its obligations, in relation to or

applicable to all immovable properties, including mutation and/or substitution ofthe ownership or the

title to, or interest in the immovable properties which shall be made and duly recorded by the

Appropriate Authority(ies) in favour of the Resulting Company pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme

by the NCLT and upon the effectiveness of this Scheme in accordance with the terms hereof, without

any further act or deed to be done or executed by the Demerged Companies as the case may be. lt is

clarified that the Resulting Company shall be entitled to engage in such correspondence and make such

representations, as may be necessary, for the purposes of the aforesaid mutation and/ or substitution.

20. ADDITIONATARRANGEMENTS

With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company may enter

into a separate arrangement in relation to the licensing of brands and trademarks, patents, copyrights,

other intellectual property rights which forms part of the Remaining Business (for the avoidance of

doubt, including brands and trademarks, patents, copyrights, other intellectual property rights jointly

used by Retail Business and Distribution Business) from the Demerged Company to the Resulting

Company and the use of the assets and properties of the Remaining Business belonging to the

Demerged Company, which are required for the operation of the Distribution Business, by the Resulting

Company, for such period and on such terms as may be mutually determined by the Companies.

2I. FACITITATIONPROVISIONS

27.7 lmmediately upon the Scheme being effective, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company

shall enter into necessary arrangements including brand licensing agreements, sub-contracting

agreements, sub-licensing agreements and shared services agreements, as may be necessary, inter alia

in relation to use by the Resulting Company of brands, office space, infrastructure facilities, information

technology services, employee/ staff, tax, audit, finance, secretarial, human resource service, security

personnel, legal, administrative and other services, etc. of the Demerged Company, and so as to give

full effect to the provisions of this Scheme, each, on such terms and conditions that may be agreed

between the Parties and on payment of consideration on an arm's length basis and which are in the

ordinary course of business.

.{t)
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27.2 It is clarified that approval of the Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged and Resulting Company

under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act shall be deemed to have their approval under, Sectlon 188 and

other applicable provisions of the Act and Regulation 23 and other applicable regulations of the

Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

20L5 and that no separate approval of the Board and/or Audit committee or shareholders shall be

required to be sought by the Parties.

22. PROPERry IN TRUST

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, until any property, asset, license, approval,

permission, contract, agreement and rights are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and/or

perfected, in the records of the Appropriate Authority(ies), regulatory bodies or otherwise, in favour of

the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company is deemed to be authorized to enjoythe property, asset

or the rights and benefits arising from the license, approval, permission, contract or agreement as if it

were the owner of the property or asset or as if it were the original party to the license, approval,

permission, contract or agree ment. lt is clarified that till entry is made in the records of the Appropriate

Authority(ies) and till such time as may be mutually agreed by the Demerged Company and the

Resulting Company, the Demerged Company will continue to hold the property, asset, license, approval,

permission, contract, agreement, and rights as the case may be in trust on behalf of the Resulting

Company. lt is further clarified that on the Effective Date, notwithstanding the Scheme being made

effective, any asset/liability identified as part of the Demerged Undertaking and pending transfer due

to the pendency of any approval/consent and/or sanction shall be held in trust by the Demerged

Company for the Resulting Company. lmmediately upon receipt of such approval/consent and/or

sanction such asset and/or liability forming part of the Demerged Undertaking shall without any further

act/deed or consideration be transferred/vested in the Resulting Company, with all such benefits,

obligations and rights with effect from the Effective Date. All costs, payments and other liabilities that

the Demerged Company shall be required to bear to give effect to this Clause 22 shall be borne solely

by the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company shall reimburse and indemnify the Demerged

Company against all liabilities and obligations incurred by the Demerged Company in respect thereof.

23. APPLTCATTONS / PE IONS TO THE NCtr

The Parties shall make and file all applications and petitions under Sections 23O to 232 and other

applicable provisions of the Act before the Tribunal, under whose jurisdiction, the registered offices of

the respective Parties are situated, for sanction of this Scheme under the provisions of Applicable Law,

and shall apply for such approvals as may be required under Applicable Law.

4
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23.2 The Parties shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any Appropriate Authority,

if required, under any Applicable Law for such consents and approvals which the Demerged Company

and the Resulting Company may require to own the assets and/or liabilities of the Demerged

Undertaking and to carry on the business of the Demerged Undertaking.

24.7

24.3 The Parties, acting through their respective Boards or through persons authorized by their respective

Boards or through sub-committee of the Board in their full and absolute discretion, may withdraw this

Scheme or any part of the Scheme prior to the Scheme becoming effective at any time.

25. CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME / CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

25.1, Unless otherwise decided (or waived) by the relevant Parties, this Scheme is conditional upon and

subject to the following:

25.L.L Obtaining no-objection from the Stock Exchanges in relation to the Scheme under Regulation 37 ofthe

Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations,

20L5 (as amended from time to time);

25.1..2 The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of persons

including the respective shareholders and/or creditors, if required, of the Parties, as may be directed

by the NCLT or any other Appro

r'.

o,
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uthority as may be applicable;

24. MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

On behalf of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, the Board of the respective companies

acting themselves or through authorized persons or through sub-committee of the Board, may consent

jointly but not individually, on behalf of all person concerned, to any modifications oramendments of

this Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever, or to any conditions or limitations that the

Tribunal or any other Appropriate Authority may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise

be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by all of them (i.e. the Board of Directors of the

Demerged Company and Resulting Company) and solve all difficulties that may arise for carrying out

this Scheme and do all acts, deeds and things necessary for putting this Scheme into effect.

24.2 For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification thereof, the Board of Directors

of the Demerged Company and Resulting company acting themselves or through authorized persons

or through sub-committee of the Board may jointly but not individually give and are jointly authorized

to give such directions including directions for settling any question of doubt or difficulty that may arise

and such determination or directions, as the case may be, shall be binding on all parties, in the same

manner as if the same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme.
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25.1.3 The sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT under Sections 230 to 2?2 of the Act, and other applicable

provisions, if any of the Act in favour of the Parties;

on the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged company and the Resulting

Company and such other classes of Persons of the said Parties, if any, pursuant to clause 25,1, such

shareholders and classes of Persons shall also be deemed to have resolved and accorded all relevant

consents under the Act or otherwise to the same extent applicable in relation to the Scheme and related

matters.

26.7 The Parties acting through their respective Boards shall each be at liberty to withdraw-this Scheme: (a)

in case any condition or alteration imposed by any Appropriate Authority is unacceptable to any of

them; or (b) they are of the view that coming into effect of this Scheme could have adverse implications

on the respective Parties,

26.2 ln the event of revocation/withdrawal under Clause 26.1 above, no rights and liabilities whatsoever

shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the Parties or their respective shareholders or creditors or

employees or any other Person, save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is

contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued pursuant

thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in the

Scheme or in accordance with the Applicable Law and in such case, each Party shall bear its own costs,

unless otherwise mutually agreed.

26.3 lf any parts and/or provisions of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the

same shall not, subject to the decision of the Parties through their respective Boards, affect the validity

or implementation of the other parts and/or provisions of this Scheme.

27. COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as expressly

otherwise agreed) of the Parties, in relation to carrying out, implementing and completing the terms

and provisions of the Scheme and/ or incidental to the completion of the scheme shall be borne as

mutually agreed by Board of Directo

=
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25.1.4 The certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme being filed with the RoC by the

Parties as may be applicable; and

25.1.5 Any other sanctions and orders as may be directed by the NCLT in respect of the Scheme.

25.2

26. EFFECT OF NON.RECEIPT OF APPROVATS
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Webel Bhavan, Ground Floor,
Block - EP & Ge Sector V
Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
Tel. : +91-334064 8107 / 8108 / 8109
E-mail : raynray@raynray.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying quarterly and year to date standalone annual
financial results of Khadim lndia Limited (the "Company") for the quarter and year
ended March 31,2024 (the "Statements"), attached herewith, being submitted by the
Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of lndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (the "Listing Regulations").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Statements:

are presented in accordance with the requirements the Listing Regulations; and

give a true and fuir view in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the applicable lndian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS")
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the net profit and other
comprehensive loss and other financial information for the year ended March 31,
2024.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ('SAs")
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'). Our
responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the "Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Annual Financial Results" section of our report. We are
independent of the Company, in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that

tlUMBAl . IEvY DELHI. BANGALORE. GHEN]lAl

E.mall :, raynrayho@rayniay.net

To the Board of Directos of Khadim lndia Limited

Basis for Opinion

Annexure II
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are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone annual financial results.

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

The Statements have been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual financial
statements. The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible
for the preparation and presentation of the Statements that give a true and fair view of
the net profit and other comprehensive loss of the Company and other financial
information in accordance with the applicable accounting standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting
principles generally accepted in lndia and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the
Listing Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting ftauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statements that give a true
and fair view and are free ftom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going conc€rn,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Annual Financial
Res u lts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
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could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Statements.

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors'
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. lf we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone annual financial
results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion- Our
conclusaons are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identiry during our audit.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
through a separate report on the complete set of financial statements on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The Statements include the results for the quarter ended March 3'l,2024 being the
balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended
March 31, 2024 and the published unaudited year to date figures up to the third quarter
of the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us, as required
under the Listing Regulations

For RAY & RAY

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 30107E

A";-+o-va- Ik;Lr4.
Amitava Ctrow8nury

Partner
(Membership No. 056060)

UDIN: 240560608KFSN181 24

Place: Kolkata

Date: 24th May 2024

,/oX-,w
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Webel Bhavan, Ground Floor,
Block - EP & GP, Sector V
Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
Tel. : +91-334064 8107 / 8108 / 8109
E-mail : raynray@raynray.net

INDEPENDENT AUD]TOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

To the Board of Directors of Khadim lndia Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Financial Results
of Khadim lndia Limited ("the Company") and its subsidiaries (the Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), for the quarter and year ended
March 31, 2024 (the "Statement'), being submitted by the Company pursuant to the
requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended ("the Listing Regulations").

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on
separate audited financial statements of the subsidiaries referred to in other matters
paragraph, the Statement:

(i) includes the audited financial results of the Parent company and its subsidiaries;

(ii) is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulations 33 of the Listing
Regulations; and

(iii) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement
principles laid down in the applicable lndian Accounting Standards ('lnd AS")
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") and other
accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, of the consolidated net profit
and consolidated total comprehensive income and other financial information
of the Group for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2024.

Basis for Opinion

We conduc-ted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs")
specifled under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Audrtor's ResponslbrTrlles for the Audit of the

liUi,lBAl o NEW DELHIo BANGALOREe CHENNAI

E-mail : l?ynrayho@raynray.net

RAY& RAY
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Consolidated Financial Resu/fs section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Results under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder and have fulfilled our other ethical responslbilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Results.

Management's Responsibilities for the Gonsolidated Financial Results

This Statement is the responsibility of the Parent Company's Management and has
bee n approved by the Board of Directors. The Parent Company's Board of Directors
are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a true
and fair view of the net profit, other comprehensive income and other financial
information of the Group in accordance with the recognition and measurement
principles as laid down in lnd AS, prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted
in lndia and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations.

The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Results, that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the Statement, the management and the respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the respective
entity's ability, to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the respective Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

@
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Auditor's Responslbilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated
Financial Results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or enor and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this Statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Obtain an understanding of intemal financial controls relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Parent company of which we are the independent auditors has
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
Management and the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. lf
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modifo our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report- However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concem.

RAY & RAY

ldentiry and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated
Financial Results, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovenide of intemal controls.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Results
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Perform procedures in accordance with the circular No. CIR/CFD/CMDI14412119
issued by the SEBI under Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, to the
extent applicable.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Statement of the
Group, to express an opinion on the Statement. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of
entity included in the Statement of which we are the independent auditors. For
the other entities included in the Consolidated Financial Results, which have
been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Results
that, individually or in the aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Results may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and (ii) evaluating the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Results.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company of
which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controls that we identlfy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Oth€r llatters

\Ab did not audit the financial statements/ financial informaticin of the two subsidiaries
included in the consolidated financial results. This financial statements/financial
information has been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial results, insofar
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries
is based solely on the reports ofthe other auditors and the procedures performed by
us as stated in the basis of opinion paragraph above.

The consolidated annual financial results include the results for the quarter ended 31
March 2O24 being the balancing figure between the audited figures in respect of the
full financial year and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to the third
quarter of the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us.

The Statement includes the results of Sre following entities

Parent:
Khadim lndia Limited

Subsidiaries:
Khadim Shoe Bangladesh Limited (100 % holding)
KSR Footwear Limited ('100 % holding)

For RAY & RAY

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 30107E

Atif"No- il^t W
Amitava ChowJhury

Partner
(Membership No. 056060)

UDIN: 240560608KFSNM4631
Place: Kolkata

Dale: 24th May 2024

The consolklated annual financial resul.ts deat with by this repod hale been prepared
for the express purpose of filing with the National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited and
BSE Limited. These results are based on and should be read with the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of ttle grcup for ttre year erded March 31, 2024,
on which we have issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our report dated May 24,
2024.

70



KHADIM tNDtA LIMITED (CtN . L19129W819A1PLCO34337)
statement of Audited standalone Fin.n.ial Resslts for th€ quart€r a.!.1 v€ar €nded 31st March, 2024

31st March 2024

2023
315t March 2023 M.rch 2024 tlarch 2O23

Revenue F.om Operatlons 1,561.96
77.44

1,579.40

1,592.04
65.33

,,637,41

6,149.O4
90.24

6,239.24

6,602.64
174,75

6,777.39

cost of mater als cons!med
Purchases of Stock in Trade

Chanqes n inventories offlnished goods, Stock_in _Trade and

Employee beneiits expense

Depreciation and amorUzation expense

320,89
121.66

330.59

177,74
84,57

too,7 )
317,08

1,453.30

32,74

t77,76
75.38
99,84

354.49

1,55S.10

4L7.04
420.05

48.86

147.21
79.\O
99.07

354,87

1,606,20

t,124.13
2,145.5t

(105.80)

72t.61
31t,02

t,357,21

6,156.72

r,626-62
2,457.34

( 250.71)

719,06
290,57
343.71

1,325.05

6,551.64

24.70 5!.21 82.56 225.71

(0.10)
3.76

2.89
5-21

(0.10)
19,50

3.10
4).54

Profit for the period/year 10.51 43.11 63.16 L75.O7

other Comprehensive (Loss)/!ncome
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement (loss)/9ains on deflned benefit plans

Income tax relatinq to ilems that will not be re€lassified to profit

(3.76)

4.94

(2.a2)

0.91

(0.23)

o,6a

(1.54)

0.41

(1,23)

2.43

(0.71)

2.L2

Total Comp.ehensive Income for the P€riod/vear 7.69 43.r9 61.93 !77,19

Paid-up equity share caPital
(Equity Shares oI Rs, 10/' each)

1a1.34 181.34 !79,70

Rese.vesexcluding Revaluation Reserves 2,2!6.44 ao73,85

Earninqs Per Equity share (of Rs. 10/_ each)

0.58

0.58

2.40

2,44

3.51

3,51

9.74

6.45

18.25

o,7l

(0.17)

0.54

LA.79

L79.70

t.a2

1.02

For FaAy & R^YCHARTERED ACCOUN NTg

4'ls***g
P.nh..it.Dtr..lhlE No._ o6aoao

EtA/,'t\a\ /'. _,wq

1,436.36
31.11

3t6.27
498,58

179.70

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

-5</ 
.d cJ-^-/.\

Ch;-rma! & Mataging Dnecror / Authcrised Signatory
-}rr.,,: 0oor{ 3f tS
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' KHADTH rNDrA LTMTTED (CrN - 119129W819a1PLCO34337)
Statement ot Consolidated Financaal Results for lhe quarter and year ended 31st lilarch, 2024

For RA\' & RAY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

A;+o't* 7tro111r*z
a. crrowoxuav (

M.6b...htp No.- oEaot'lt

Rs. In Millions

full financral Year
(#) The figures for the 3 months ended 3lst March 2024 and 31st l'larch 2023 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the

ina the y*l. to aut. Rgures upto the third quarter of the respective financial vears

Notes:

1. These Audited stafldatone and consotidated Financiat Resutts, the Balance sheet and cash Flow statem€nt ("the statemeof') for the quarter and year ended 31st

Iyarch, 2024 were reviewed by the audit committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the company at the meeting held on 24th l'4av 2024'

2. This statement is as per Regutation 33 of the securities and Exchange Board of tndia ("sEaI") (Listing obligations and Disctosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

as amended ("Listing Regulations"). .

3. The company is primarily engaged in one busin€ss segment namely Footwear and accessories as determined by the chief operating Decision Maker (coDl'l) in

accordance with Ifld AS 108 _ Operating Segments

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

---M-r.,l-l',/'a
ChairBat & Mala8ing Director / Authotised SiSoatory

brr.t: 000trllt j

Particulars 3 months ended
31st ilarch 2024

Preceding 3
months ended
3lst December

2023

12 Months ended
31st 14arch 2024

Audited (*) Unaudited

Reven!e From operations

Totallncome

t,436.36
31.11

Lr467.47

1,561.96
t7.84

1,S79.4O

1,592.08
65.34

L,657.42

6,149.04
90.24

6,239.24

6,602.64
714.76

6,777.4O

Expenses
Cost of materlals consumed
Pur.hases of Stock-in-Trade

Chanqes in invenlories of finished goods, Stock_ n -Trade and work-

Employee benelts expense

Deprec ation and amortizatron expense

Total

320.89
L21.66

330.59

1,77.74

84.57
L00.17
3\7.33

L,453,55

316.27
498.58

777.76
75,38
99.84

354.54

1,555.15

477.04
420.45

48.86

787.21
79.10
99.O7

355.09

!,6(,6,42

t,320.73
2,t45.5r

(10s.80)

721,6r
313.02

1,357.58

5tt57.O9

7,626.62
2,457.34

(25O.7r)

719.06
290.s7
383.7 L

1,325.35

6.551.94

Profit before tax 13,92 24.65 51,o0 42.19 225.42

Current tax
Deferred tax

(0.09)
3.76 6.45

2.49
5.21,

(0.09)
19.50

3.10
47.54

42.90 174.74

Other Comprehen5ive Income
ttems lhat will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measuremenr (loss)/gains on deflned benefit plans

lncome tax relating to items that w ll not be reclassified to profit

Items that will be reclassified to proflt or loss

Exchange differenceq in translating the financialstat€ments of
foreign op€rations

Other Com

(3.76)

0.94

(2.82)

0.77

(0.17)

0.54

0.91

(0.23)

(0.01)

o.67

( 1,64)

0.41

(1.23)

2.83

(0.71)

(0.01)

2.11

Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year 7.43 18.74 61.55 L7 6.89

Protit for the period attributable to:
Owners of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Total Comprehenslve Income for the perlod attributable to:

owners of th€ parent

Non-controlling interests

10.25 18.20

18.74

42.94

43.57

62.74

61.55

174.78

176.89

Paid-up equity share caPital
(Equity Shares of Rs. 1Ol- each)

141.34 179,70 t79.70 181.34 L79.70

Reserves excluding Revaluation R€serves
2,214-73

Earnings Per Equity Share (of R5. 1Ol- each)
(not annualised):

- Basic (Rs.)

- Diluted (Rs.)

o,57

0.51

1.01

1.01

9.73

9.73

12 Months ended
31st Iqarch 2023

corresponding 3
months ended

31st l,larch 2023

Auditedaudited (#)

32.74

62.7418.2010.25Profit for the period/year

43,57

7.43

2,O72.52

3.49

3.49

2.39

2.39
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4. Du.ing the year, the Company has issued 4,08,768 fully convertlble equity share warrants at Rs.365 each on a preferential basis to one Promoter and two Non-

promoters. The said warrants woutd be converti;te into fully paid-up equity sh;res of Rs,lo at a premium of Rs.355 each. Pursuant to th€ issue, the promoter has paid

Rs.60.00 millions in futl towards 1,64,384 share warrants which were lhen duly converted into an equivalent number of equity shares, Consequently, the issued and

paid,up share capital of the company stands increased to Rs. 181.34 millaons as on 3lst March, 2024. The remaining 2,214,384 share warrants were issued to two non'

promoiers wno nave paid 25% of the issue price amounting to Rs,22,30 millions, These warrants are outstanding for conversion as on the date of Balance She€t and are

aonvertible wilhin a period of l8 months from the date of allotment,

5. The Company has incorporated KSR Footwear Umited, a wholly owfled subsidiary company on 22nd Aug

the quarter and y€ar ended 3lst l,larch, 2024 have been prepared consideriflg the financials statements of
two subsidiaries viz. Khadim Shoe Bangladesh Limited and KSR Footwear Limited

ust,
Kha

2023. accordingly, the Consolidated Financial Resutts for
dim India Limited and audited finanoal statements of its

6. The Board of Directors of the Company. at its meeting dated 29th Septemb€r 2023, has approved a Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim India Limited (KIL) and

KSR Footwear Limited (KFL) and their respective shareholders and creditors under sections 230 to 232, 66 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2023
pursuant to the scheme, KIL shall demerge its distribution business, as a going concern, into KFL. Post the Scheme becoming €ffectlve, the existing paid up equity

shar€ captat i.e., t 1,00,000/- divided into 1o,0oo equity shares of face value I 10/- each of KFL shall stand reduced and cancelled pursuant to section 66 and other

applicabie provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and kFL will issue I (one) equity share of face value of { 1O/_ each fully paid up for every 1 (one) equitv share of Face

vaiue a 10/, each fully paid up hetd by equity sharehotde.s of KIL. KFL will reflect a mirror shareholding as that of KIL 6nd thereafter it will funclion as an independent

tisted Company. The Scheme is subject to a;proval of the shareholders, secured and unsecured credito6, Hon'ble National Company Law TribLrnal (NCLT), the stock

exchanges aad such other persons or governmental authorities as may be set out in the Schem€ of Arrangement The Scheme has been approved by ASE Limited (BSE)

and Naionat Stock Exchange ol India Limited (NSE) on 30th April, 2024 and the matter is presently pending with the Hon'ble NCLT.

7. The Company does not have any exceptlonal ifem to report for the above periods.

8. The audited standatone and consotidated financiat resutts will be posted on the webslte of the Company (www.khadims.com) and will be availab e on website of NSE

and 8SE.

Reqistered Office
DLF IT Park, Tower - C, 7th floor
08 lYajor Arterial Road, Block _ AF,

New Town (Rajarha!)
Kotkata - 700 156

For and on behalfofthe Board of Oirectors

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

& Managing

'C,,L 4)) b.
Dircctor / luthoriscd Si$rlol

'D,N I 0oo\ 31t5

Date: 24th May 2024

For RA'/ & RAY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Ailo-vo- llra,T*y''
A- CHO\ /DHuR\'/w

P..tn-r
M.mb...hl9 No.- OseO€o
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Registered Office
DLF IT Park. Tower - C, 7th floor
Og Major Arterial Road, Block - AF,
New Town (Rajarhat)
Kolkata - 700 156

Date:24th lvay 2024

For Fa/AY & Fi/qY
CHAFITEREO ACCOUNTANTA

A*;-l av a
A. CH<)\ 

'OHUF'Y

For and on behalf of the Board of Olrectors

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

' c,r =f-ru/ 11

Chaiman & Managing Dilc(or / Aulhoriscd SignatorY

Rs. In Millions
Particulars Standalone consolidated

As at 3lst
March 2024

As at 31st
Mar.h 2(124

As at 31st
Iqarch 2023

I
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

(s)
(h)
(i)

2
(a)
(b)

(c)

(a)
(b)

1
(a)

(
(
b )

)c

2
(a)

(b)
(c)

ASSETS

Non - current assets
Prop€rty, Plant and Equipment
Capital work - in - progress
Right of Use Assets
Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development
Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Others
Deferrecl tax assets (net)
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-corrent assets

Current assets
lnventories
FinancialAssets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash eqLllvalents
(iii) Other gank balances
(iv) Others
Other current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIAAILITIES

Equity
Equity Share caPital
Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabllitlcs
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabllities

Current ll.bllitles
Financial Liabilitles
(i) Borrowings
(il) Lease liabllities
(iil) Trade payables- _ 

Total outstandlng dues of mlcro enterprlses and
small enterprlses
Total outstanding dues of credltors other than mlcro
enterprises and small enteDrlses

(lv) Other financlal llabllltles
Other current llabllltles
Provislons

and LiabilitiesTotal u

Audited Audlted Audited

774.41
L.49

1,652,15
8.96

1.49
190.70
116.88
31.45

L03.44

1,936.3?

t,a47.02
55.28

116.39
85.87

394.59

830.13
4.38

1,603.28

3.20

1.39
212.68
\35.97
20.53
93.52

t,804.22

1,875.53
63.87
?a.96
92.38

524.94

774.41
L.49

1,652.15
8.96

190.70
116.88

31.45
103.44

r,936.37

1,847.O2
55.48

116.39
85.87

394.59

830.13
4.38

1,603.24
2.25
3.20

212-64
135.97
20.53
93.52

1,404.22

1,87S.53
64.30
78.96

52a.94

7,3L6.49 7,35\.23 7,3L5.2O 7,35O.27

181.34
2,216.44

62.45
L,74r.69

0.97
6.O7

1,160.51
241.10

1,556.35

104.78
41.54

1.15

179,70
2,073.45

118.48
1,684.57

0.60
8.16

1,073.93
220.72

1,808.43

128.09
53.68

1.02

181.34
2,2r4.73

62.45
1,74r.69

o.97
6.07

1,160.61
241.10

2.10

1,556.67

704.78
41.54

1.15

119.70
2,O72.52

118.48
1,684.57

0.60
8.16

1,073.93
220.72

1,808.75

128.09
53.73

1.02

7,3t6-49 7,35r.23 7,315.2O 7

M.mb.7.hlp No.- 01160O0

KHADIM INDIA LII.IITED (CIN . L19129WB1981PLC034337)
Standalone and Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 3lst I'ilarch 2024

2.to

I , a-s aElE l
March 2023

Audited

)rx:6q6.{3115
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3a3.71
(26.O7)
(37.60)
(33.82)
(18.07)
12.75)
(2.23)
15.23
(0.48)

290,57

(294.84)
(t24.90)

6,72
3AO.89

225.42

793.91

(26.07)
(37.60)
(33.82)
(18.07)

(2.75)
(2.23)

(0.48)
290.57

(294.A4)
(124.90)

6.65
341.11

12.88

794.20

(24.39)
(30.55)
(2.ss)

32.50
(0.29)

313.02

14t.75
(132.1s)
(267.97)
525.39

82.19

7A3.76

4,62

(24.39)
(l0.ss)
{2.55)

32.50
(0.29)

313.02

14t.15
(132.15)
(267.92)
525.81

82 56

784.!3

4.62

514,

39

(104.19)
4.65

(78.45)
14.30

(150.16)
247,34
113,79
(66.3s)
41.06

(150.16)
247.34
173.79
(66.35)
47.06
(0.s4)

( 104,19)
4.65

(78.4s)
74.30
{0.10)

(136.29)
1344.54)

(2.94)
35.00

(7!.1t)

82.30
{140.09)
(398.14)

(2.81)
66,00

(113.46)

(136.29)
(344.64)

(2.94)
35.00

(7t.1t)

82.30
(140.09)
(398.14)

(2-81)
66.00

(113.46)

(3s.48)(35.80) (85.84)(8s.6!)
53

Depreciation and amortizalion expense
Loss/(Gain) on dlsposalof p.operty, plant and equipment (net)
Gain on lease modification

uabllities/Provisions no lonqer requlred written back
Government qrant received
P.ovision for doubtf!ldebts,advances and other assets
Debtr/Advances written otr
Forelqn curenc'y lranslations and Uansactions _ Net

ope.ating Profit betore working CaPital Changes
Adjustments ror:
Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and Other Astets

Trade Payables, other Liabllilies and Provlsions
carh Generatcd from ope.ations
Net income tax {paid)/.efunds

et Cash generated from OPcrating Activltlc5

B CASH FIOW FROiI II{VESTII{G ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
sale ot propefty, plant and equipment, intanqlble assets
Receipts from lease modifications
lnvestments in bank deposits
llaturiw of bank deposits
Investment in Wholly_Owned Subsidiarv
Interest Received
llet cash (used ir)/generated from Investing Activities

C CASH FIOW TROM FTNANCING ACTIVITIES

Proce€ds f.om Issue of equitv share warrants
Interest paid
R€PaYme.l of lease lilbility
Paym€nt ofinitialdirect cost recognised as Right of use Asset

Lonq term loans taken
Lonq term loans reDaid
shoft term loans rePaid
Net cash used in FlnEn.ing Aclivities

Net D€crease in cash and cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
cash .nd Cash Eouivalents at besi.ning ofvear
Cash and Cash Equlv.lc.ts at end ofYe.r

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVT'ICS

Components of cash.nd cash Equiv.lcnts at end ofthe vear

Cash and cash equivalents
C.sh.nd cash equivalents as above

11,o34.42)
55.28

1957.40)
63,87

(t,a34.42)
55.48

(957.40)
64.30

For and on behalfofthe Board of Directors

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Cr.1 q{-ll-1t
ar & Managing Director / Authorised Signalory

) tN'.O0oq31lS

OLF IT Park, Tower - C, 7th floor
08 Major Arterial Road, Blo{k - AF,
New Town (Raiarhat)
Kolkata 700 156

Date: 24th l"lay 2024

CHAR i- . NTs

Ar'-*a:ra-a. cHar'.

,sla\

\p

KHADTM INDIA !IMITED (CIN - L19129W819A1PLC034337)
Standalone and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the vear end€d 31st Ma.ch 2024

ry

225.71

343.71
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AGARWAL & ASSOCIATES "Shakespeare Court,'
21A, Shakespeare Sarani,

8th Floor, Flat 8D, Kolkata-700017
Phr 40649046

Mobile : 9831579045
E-mail : nareshr'a agarwalandassociates,com

agam'als.associates(d gmail.com

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members of
KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as ar March 31,2024, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Iiicome), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confbrmity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("lnd AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as ar 3 I st March, 2024, the profit
and total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash Ilows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
lurther described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements section
ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by,

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

&ASS

Annexure III
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context ofour audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. There are no key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation ofthe other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate
Governance and Shareholder's lnformation, but does not include financial statements and our
auditor's repo( thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) ofthe Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Financial Position and Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows
and the statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2015, as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

& s

i,-
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company,s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken
on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professionaljudgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identi$, and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate intemal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date ofour auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
intemal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are

therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adyerse

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order') issued by

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 ofthe Act,

we give in the "Annexure - A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and

4 ofthe Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) ofthe Act, we further report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best

ofour knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as appears from our examination ofthose books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive

Income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash

Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified

under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 3 l,
2024, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
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disqualified as on March 31,2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy ofthe intemal financial controls over financial reporting

ofthe Company and the operating effectiveness ofsuch controls, refer to our separate

Report in "Annexure-B" to this report.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repo( in accordance

with the requirements ofsection 197(16) ofthe Act, as amended:

- In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is
in excess of the limit specified under provisions of section 197 of the Act. The same

has been approved by the members in the Annual General Meeting.

h. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations

given to us, we report as under with respect to other matters to be included in the

Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule ll of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules,20l4:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its

financial position.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative

contracts, as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses

thereon does not arise.

iii) There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under

report to transfer any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The

question ofdelay in transferring such sums does not arise.

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and beliet
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds

or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with

the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary

sha[[, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
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Place: Kolkata
Date:26.04.2024

writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on the audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books ofaccount for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course ofour audit we did not come across any instance
ofaudit trail feature being tampered with.

For Agarwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 323210E)

(CA. Naresh Agarwal)
(Partner)

(Membership No. 063049)

UDIN: 240530498KCFSX2707
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Annexure - ttA" to IndeDendent Auditor's Report

Statement referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements" section of our report of even date to the Members of KSR FOOTWEAR

LIMITED.

D According ro the information explanation provided to us, the Company does not hold any

Property, Plant and Equipment. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i)(a) to

(e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

ii) a) The company does not have inventory, accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph

3(ii) (a) ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company'

b) The company has not availed any working capital loan from banks or financial

institutions, hence clause 3(iiXb) ofthe Order is not applicable.

iii) According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any

investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the

nature ofloans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or

any other parties. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) of the order are not

applicable to the ComPanY.

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

has not either directly or indirectty, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other

person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185

of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more than two layers of
investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act.

Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts

which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies

Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to

report on clause 3(v) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi) The Company is not required to maintain the cost records as required under section 148(l)

of the Companies Act, hence clause 3(vi) ofthe Order is not applicable.

vii) a) As per records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given

to us, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including

a: lta
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Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State lnsurance, Income-tax, Duty of

Customs, Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there are no

undisputed amount in arrears as on 3 I st March 2024, for a period of more than six months

from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Coods

and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State lnsurance, Income-tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on

account of d isputes.

viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously not recorded in

the books of account, in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 1961 as income

during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) ofthe Order is not

applicable to the Company.

ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

does not have any loans or borrowings and repayment to lenders during the year'

Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

x) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised

moneys by way of initial pubtic offer, further public offer including debt instruments during

the year.

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally). Accordingly,
provisions ofclause 3(x)(b) ofthe order are not applicable.

xi) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the

Management and based on our examination ofthe books and records ofthe Company and in

accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in lndia, no case of material fraud by

the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

b) We have not submitted any report under subsection (12) ofsection 143 of the Companies

Act, 2013 in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule I 3 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules,20l4 with the Central Govemment, during the year and up to the date of this audit

report.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received

by the company during the year, accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xi)(c) of the order are

not applicable.
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xiD The company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the

Order are not applicable

xiii) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the

company's transactions with its related party are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188

ofthe companies Act,20l3, where applicable, and details ofrelated party transactions have

been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable Accounting

Standards.

xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to comply with

provision of section 138 ofthe Act. Accordingly, provisions ofclause 3(xiv) of the order

are not apPlicable.

xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the

year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or

persons connected with him and hence repo(ing under clause 3(xv) of the order is not

applicable to the Company

xvi) a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company

is not required to be registered under section 45-lA ofthe Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934,

and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable to the

Company.

b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not

conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities therefore the Company

is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank ol India Act, I 934.

Accordingly, provisions ofclause 3(xvi)(b) ofthe Order are not applicable'

c) The company is not a core Investment company as defined in the regulations made by

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to repo( on clause 3(xviXc) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvri) Based on overall review of financial statements, this is the first year of the Company

incorporation and it has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs 1,53,723l-.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year

provisions ofclause 3 (xviii) ofthe order are not applicable'

Accordingly,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial

ratios, ageing and expecied dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial

tiabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the

Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence

xix)
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supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe

that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not

capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they falt

due within a period ofone year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is

not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our

reporting is based on the facts up to the date ofthe audit report and we neither give any

guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from

the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx) The provisions of section 135 of the companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the

company, Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx) of the order is not

applicable.

For Agarwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn No: 323210E)

Uo,r^"1"
(CA. Naresh Agarwal)
(Partner)

(Membership No. 063049)

UDIN: 24063049BKCFSX2707

Place: Kolkata
Date:26.04.2024
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Annexure - "B" to Indenendent Auditor's Reoort

Statement referred to in paragraph 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements" section of our report of even date to the Members of KSR FOOTWEAR

LIMITED.

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING UNDER CLAusE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE

COMPANIES ACT.2OI3 T'THE ACT

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KSR FOOTWEAR
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial

statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONS IBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to

Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over

financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance

with the Guidance Note on Audit of lntemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the

"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants Of India and the Standards on

Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was established and

maintained and ifsuch controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
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audit of internal financial controls over financiat reporting included obtaining an understanding of

intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud

or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial

reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that ( I ) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generalty accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to

the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions, oI that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
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financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating

effectively as at March 31,2024, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Nore on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Agarwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn No: 3232108)

$o^l-

Place: Kolkata
Date:26.04.2024

(CA. Naresh Agarwal)
(Partner)

(Membership No. 063049)

UDIN: 24063049BKCFSX2707
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIi'IITEO
Balance Sheet as at 3'lst March 2024

(All amounts in Rupees thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No.
As at 31st March

2024

ASSETS

I Current assets
(a) Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 89.08

89.08

100.00
(153.721

100.00

38.30

4.50

89.08

TotalAssets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

a
b

Equity
) Equity Share capital

) Other Equity

LIABILITIES

'I Current liabilities
(a) FinancialLiabilities

(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Total outstianding dues of creditors other than micro
enterpnses and small enterprises

(b) Other current liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

ln terms of our Report attached For and on behalf of Board of Directors

For Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

/1

rJa^a
ittick Roy Burman

Dll€ctor
(DlN: 08537366)

Naresh AgaMal
Partner

\
Place: Kolkata
Date: 26th April 2024

Suman Barman Roy
Dircctor
(DlN: 07285500)
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIIIiIITED
Statemont ol Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st arch 2024
(AllamountE in Rupses thousands, unless otherwiso statcd)

Pa iculars

Revenue From Oporations

Other lncome

Totallncome(l+ll )

Expenses :

Other expenses

Totalexpenaea

Loss before tax (lll - lV)

Tax expensc

Loss for the year ( V - Vl )

Othgr Comprehensive lncomg

Total Comprehensive Losa for the y6ar

Earnings per equity share tNominalValue per Share Rs.10l
(1) Basic (ln Rs )
(2) Diluted (ln Rs.)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

ln terms of our Reporl attached

For Agarwal & Aaaociatga
Chadered Accountants

For and on b€half of Board of Directors

Roy Burma

Note No.

10

11

For lhe year
ended 3lat ltlarch

2024

153.72

153.72

fl53.72)

(153.72)

(25.r6)
(25.16)

WL Diroctor
(DlN: 08537366)

Naresh Agarwal
Partner

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26th April 2024

Suman Barman Roy
Director
(DlN: 07285500)
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Statemont ol Changes ln Equlty lor tho ysar endgd 31st ttiarch 202i1

(All amounts ln Rupeos thousands, unlosa othelwlse statod)

(a) E Sharo

Balancs as at
'lst Aprll 2023

Changes ln
equity sharo
capital due to
prlor porlod

eroiB

R@tatod
balanco aa at
lst Aprll 2023

Chsngeg ln
gqulty shars

cEpltal durlng
th9 ygal

Balanca.s at
31et lrlarch

2021

100.00 100.00

(b) Other u
Rot lnod
gamlng3

Total othsr
equlty

Balanco as at lst Aprll 2023

Loss for lhe year
Other comprehensive income (net of lax)
Total comprehensive loss

(153._721

(,r53.72)

(153.-72)

(r53.72)

Balance as at 3l3t arch 202,1 (153.121 t153.721

The Board of Directors ofthe Company has nol recommended any dividend for the cunent linancial year.

Rstatned earnings: This Reserve represenls the cumulative profits of the Company. This Reserve can be utilised in

accordance with the provisions o, the Companes Act, 2013.

See accompanying notes to the fnancial statements

ln terms of our Report anached For and on behall ol Board of Directo6

For Agarwal & As3oclates
Charlered Accountants ,/\

lwa!-
Roy gurman

OllEctor
(DlN: 0E537366)

Naresh Agarwal
Partnet \
Place: Kolkata
Date.26lh Apil2024

Suman Barman Roy
Olrgclor
(DlNr 07285500)
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement tor the yoar endod 3lst M.rch 202lt
(All amounts in Rupees lhou!.nd!, unless othorullo ltated)

Partlculaa!
For the yoal
onded 3lst
jterch 2OA

A CASH FLOW FRO I OPERATING ACNVflES

Loss before Tax for the year

Operatlng Profit betore Worklng Capltal Changes
Adiustments tor:
Trade Payables, Other Liabilities Bnd Provisions
C.sh Gonor.ted trom Op€ratlons
Nel lncome laxes paid
N.t Cath uaed in Oper.tlng Actlvltles

1153.721

(1s3.72)

12-E0
(r10.92)

{110.92)

'100.00

100.00
200.00

89.08

89,08

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
lssue of share capital
Shon tem loans received
Net Ca!h gonorated from Flnanclng Acuvitiga

Net Deqease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of year
Crlh rnd CEsh Equlv.lontr .t end ot year (Not 4)

Nolea:

I The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "lndirect lrethod" as sel out rn lnd AS - 7 on "Statement of Cash

See accompanying notes to the financral slatemenls-

ln terms ot our Report atiached For and on behalf ol Board of Direciors

For Agarwal t AB8ociates
Charlered Accountants

ilatuL
Roy Buman

Olaector
(OlN: 08537366)

Naresh Agaltval
Paatno, -.1Suman Barman Roy'

Dhectot
(OlN: 07285500)

Place: Kolkata
Date. 26th April 2024
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIM|TED

Nores to Financl.lst t mont tortt. ycrrcndcd 31rt it.rEh 204
(All amounE ln Rupo€. thou..nd!, unl.as otherwtB. .t t d)

1 CorpoEie infom.tlon
KSR Fooiwear Limn6d (the 'Compsnl/) is a Public timilod Company engaged in lhe business ot loolw€ar manufaciurinq and wnobsalo lr.dhg. The Company is

ncoDorated and domicited in Repubric of lndia. The addre$ of lB R6glsl6r6d ofic€ is Flal No 44, 4th Floor, Kaly8ni ComPlex, P-22, Bloct-A, gangu Avenue, Kolkat&

7ooo55. The Companywa3 in@rpomted on 22nd Augusl2023 and is a wnolv ownsd subsidiary ol Khadim lndla Llmitsd.

2 Signilic6nl rccountlng pollcloe

2-l Stltementof Complhnc.
These finarEat scatsmonis have b*n pEpsrd in aGoflanc6 wih lndian A..ounlirg SLerdads (lid AS!) nofed under Ul€ C(mPenios (hd|6n A..ounling Slandads)

Acl 2013 A.lounting potid€3 hav€ b€m consisEntly .ppli€d .xcspl yvi.rc a n€r|lrissEd accountng .l!n@,n is inilblly..bPt€d or a rvt6loo lo 3n arsling aEouniing
standaR EquiEs t changs ln sc.ounling Policy

2.2 BE3is or PrcP.rrilon

in fie accouniing policios.
Historicrlcosl is genorally based on lhe rair valuo of lhe consideralion giv€n ln o(change lorgoods and s€rvlcss.

fair value measurement is bas6d on the pr€sumplion ih.t lhe lransac on to selltho assel or Ldnsfer lhs llablfly lakos place eilher:

I ln he principalmE 6t for lh€ assst or li€bility, or
ll ln Ue absence or . pnndpal msrtel, in tha mosl advanlageous mafi8l lor lnc assel or liab iV.

The pnncipalor ths mosl.dv.nl696us martet musl bc accosliblo by iho Company.
The tair vatue ot En assot or s lisbility is mesu.€d using lh. assumptons lhal ma et paniciPanls would 

',rs6 
when pdcing the assel or liabiliy, .ssumrng that maftsl

padtjpdb 8ct in lhsir basl .conornic inleEsr.
Fair vatue to. measuEfi6nt and / or disdosurE purpo*s 

'n 
hes6 frnsncial suslomenls is detemined on such a basis, exePt for shars-bassd Psymanl lransacions, if .ny

lnat are witiin ihe s@pe ot tnd AS 102 - SharE-bas€d PEymen( leasing Eanssctions tnai aE wilhm h€ scop€ or lnd AS 116 - Leases, and mealurcm.nls hal have $me
simitar ies io fair v.tu6 but ars not fat value, such as net rc.risablo v6lu€ in lnd AS 2 - lnventories or valuo h uss in |tx, AS 36 - rmPanment ol Ass€ls.

tn addition, Ior financial roponing puQoses, hn valr6 msssur.monts aro categodsed inlo Lov6l 1, 2 or 3 based on he d,ogreo io whic}l ti6 inPuts lo lhe hr valus

measurements ar6obsorvablo and the signmence of lhe inpuls lo lh6 fair vslue measuremenl in ns snlir89

2.3 Oper.tlng cyclo
AI assers and tiabitirios hav€ been crassiried as c!rcnt or noFclmnl as per lhe Comp6nys nomal op€r.Ung qde and oher.ritons sol oul in lho Soedule lll lo lh6

Companies A6t, 2013 and tnd AS 1 - "PEsenrarion of Frnanclal St.tsm6nts", based on lr|€ naturc of product 8nd fie time betw€sn lho acquEi0on sl ass€ls for Prcessing
and oteir realis3uon in cash 6nd @sh equiv6lenls. AEcordingly, lh6 ComPany has delemlnsd its oPoEling clElo lo b€ 12 monhs.

,'s&
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIi,|ITEO
l{ot ! to Flnancl.l Statemsni. for iha yaar onded 315t farE h 2024

(All.mounts ln Rupees lhousend!, unl.!. olhsrwll. !t tid)

2.4 Ravenuo Recognluon
RevenLle is recognized to the erlent il is prcbablo lhat lh€ €conomic benefits will llow lo lhs Compeny and th6 revenue c3n be reliably m€asurcd,

regardl€ss ofwhen the payment isb€ing mads. Rsv6nu6 is measured al lhe fair value ol the con3idoralion racrived or rec€ivabla lor goods supplied,

net ol retums and discounts to customorc. R6v6nuc lrom lhc sale ol goods is recognized when signincenl risks and rewards ol ownership havs b€€n

lranslened to the cuslomer, which is mainly upon dsliv3ry.

2,5 Texo3 on lncome

Tsrss on income comprises of cunonl laxos end delorod laxes

Cunent lncoms tax
Cunont tax in lhe Statement of Prollt end Lo33 i3 provldod as th6 amount ol lax payable in r€sp€ct of leIablo incomo for the period using lax rates and

tax ta{,s €nacted dunng lhe p€riod. togcth€r wilh sny sdlu3lmenl ro l,sx Fyable in resped or pr.viou. y6ar.. Tax6bl6 Prolil diffeB from 'profit b€ior€

tai as rBport8d in the Stalemenl of Prc,l?t and Lol!.

Currcnt incoms tax asseF and liabilrua6 ar! m.alur€d at th€ amounl expecled io b€ rscDv6rBd lrorn o. p€ld lo lh€ la.rstion aulhorilies. The tar l-a163

and lar laws used to compule lhe rmounl aru floso thsl arB anectod or suDslanlively en*l3d, et lhe lEponhg d8lo

CunEnt tar ass€ts and liabilities arE otssl only It lhcrc i3 a l.gally sniorEeable righl lo sel oll lh. r€.!€niz6d emounls, and il is inlend€d to raalisa lha
as.el and setlle the liability on a n€t basi! o. 3imuh6neously.

D€t€rEd tex
Ost€ned tax is recognized on ldnporary dil6r6nc€s Delween lhe csrrying amounts ol ass€ls and lisbrlili6s end lhe amounls used lor taralion
purposes (tar base), at lhe tax lates and tar laws snsclsd or substantively enacled by the end ol lh6 roponing pedod

O.f€ned tax assets are recognizod lor all d6duclible temporary difiorences, lhe cafiy lorwaftl ol unu36d lax c{ediB and any unused lax losses.

Oefened tax assets are recognizcd to th€ €n€nt lhal il is proDable lhal tsxsblo pront will bo availablo againsl which lhe deduclible lemporary

diflerences, and lhe carry forward ol un$od lax credils and unusad tar losses can be ulilissd.

Th€ carrying amount ot detered lgl ass.ls ls r€viowEd sl esch repoding dEt€ and reduced lo lho c(.nl lhat it is no longer Probable lhal sufllci6nt

larable protit witt be avaitable 10 sltow atl or pa( oflhs d€fonod tax assel lo be ulilissd. Unrscognlzod dcLned lax sss€ts ara ro-assessed al eac}1

regoning date and aro recognized toth6 6n6 lhEt lr has bscoms probablethal fulure taxabls prDnl. wlllellowlho defered ta.r Ess8t to be recovered.

Defened tax assets and liabilities sr€ ofissl wh€n lhsrs is l6gally enlorc€able rightto oflsBl crfied lax ass€ls and liabililies and when the delened lax
balanc€s relales to lhe samo laxalion euthorlly.

lncome tsx, in so tar as ( relates to itoms disclor.d undsr oth€r comprehensive incomo or €quity, er6 di3clo3ed ssparaiely undsr olher cDmPreheBive
income or equity, as applicable

2,6 Provl3lons
Provisions are recogntzed when th€ Company ha! a prBsent obligation (legsl or constnrctNe) &3 E 6aull c,f a past o€rn, it is Probable lhal an outflod
ol r*ources embodying e€oiomic b6ncll$ wll ba raquir.d to 66fl6 lhe obligElron and a rolleblo 63tlmala car b. mad8 ol the amoud of lh6

obtigeiion. The expense rBlaling lo eny Fovlllo.l 13 prasc €{ in th€ slstErnefll of polil or loss. nst ol eny rulmhJEomed r the €tr€d of lhe lime valu6

ot money is maieriat, provisions ar€ dlrcaunt6d u3rng E ormenl prslEr l'Ets thal r€llecB, whcra aPPIoPIidtg, lho mks specffic lo lh€ liabillty. yvl1er6

discounling is used, lhe increasG in th6 Prcvilion duo lo lh6 passage of tirp is recognized .3 parl ol flnanc. cosil.

2.7 Con{ngonlllrblllly
A co ingsnt tiabitity is a possible obligatlon that aris€s from pssl evenB wlrose €xlsloncs will D6 coirlrmad by lhe o.clnonc€ or nococcurenc€ ol
ono or more unc€rtain future evenB b6yond lhc conlrol of th€ company or a presenl obligstion that l! nol rc€ognlzod Dccsuse it is nol ProbaDle lhal 5n

outiow ot resources witt be required to sdtlt6 tho oDligalion. A cofllingenl liabilny also ans€s in €nr6moly rar6 cases where lhoro is a liabilily lhat
csnnot be recognized bec€us€ it c€nnol b€ m6Esured reliably The Compsny does nol recogniz€ a conlingsnl llEbility bt l discloses its existence in lho
linancial ststamenls.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalontg
Cash and cash equivalent in ths balancs 3h661 compriso cash al bants and on hand and shorl'l.m d.posits with En original malurily ol lhr€€ monlhs

orbss, which are subjecl lo an insignilic€nt risk ol changos in value.

2.9 Flnanclrl lnstrumenE, Flnanclal l!3ot!, Flnanclal llabllltlas rnd Equlty lnstrumontr
Financiat assets and tinancral liabililies sr€ r€cogniz8d wh6n lrc Company becomes a parly lo th€ conlraclu6l provisions of lie rElevant instrum6nl

and are initiatty measured at tair vatue. Tran3ection cogF that are direcrly allribulable to lho ec{uisilion or issu€ of linancial assets and linanciEl

tiabititiss (other than ,inancral assets and financial liabilitiss measurcd al fair value lhrough proril or lo$) er6 added lo or deducted fiom lhB lair valu8

on inilial recognilion of linancial assels or linenclel liabil(ies

Flnencial assots

R6cognlUon
Financial assels tnclude lnvestm8nts, Trad6 r€c€ivablss, Advan€$, Secunly Oeposils, Cash end c€sh 6quivalenls. Sudl ass€ts are initially

recognizsd st transaclion pnce when th6 compsny bccoma! parly lo contractual obhgalions Tha lBn.aclion Pric6 includos lransaclbn cosls unless
the asset is being fair valued lhrough th6 SElom6nl ol Prof and Lo33. lnvastnari in Subsdiary la c€Elcd tl cod.

Cla.alflcatlon
Manag€monl determines lhe cla$lflcallon ol an a!s.l st lnltial r€cognition depending on lh! purPos€ lor which th€ assets were acquired. Th6
subsoquenl measuremenl ol linancial a$cta dcpands on such classificgtion. Financtal agsets aro clalslliad a3lhos€ m38sur€d at:

a. smonised cost, whero ths llnanclal essgt! er6 h6ld Bolely lorcollection ofcash flol^,s arising trom peym6nB of p nclPaland/or inleresl

b rair valuo through other compreherclv6 lncome (FVTOCI), where lhe financial assets are held nol only lor colleclion of cash flows arising from
paymenls ol prinopal and inler6l bul elso lrom lhe salg of such asssls. Such asseis are 3u$6qu0nlly maa3ured al lsir valus, wilh unrealisod gains

and losses arising lrom clanges lnlhsLlrvelue belng rccognized in other compr€hensive incomo

c. Iair value through profit or loss (FWPL), wh.ro lh. assols are managed in accordance wlh an epprcvcd investmenl strategy lhal lriggers Purcnase
and s3le decisions based on lhe tEir valuo ol sLrc.h es3gl3. Such assets are subsoquerrlly m6a3ur6d al telr veluc, wilh unrealised gains and lossas

arising lrom changes in the lair valu6 b6ing rocogniz6d in lh6 Slalemenl ol Prcfd and Loss in ltu p€.iod in which lhoy arise.

T.ade receivables, Advanc€s. Ssdrdty Ocposirs, Cash and c€sh equivalenls etc, if any. 616 clE$illod for measuremenl st amortised cost whil6
invBlmenls may fall under any of lh. Elofe3aid classes Ho'n€ver, in resp€c1 of particular inve3ln6nl3 in equty inslrumenls lhat $ould olhanwiso b€
measured al fair valu€ lhmugh proft or ioss, an ir€vocsble eleclion al iniiial rccognition may b€ made lo pr6senl subsequent changes in fair valu.
lhEugh Olier comprehensive incomo
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITEO
Not . to Flnanclal Stitomenb for tho year ended 3l !t f.rch 202{
(All .mount! ln RupoB ihou6rnd3, unlo33 other*E. lht d)

lmpalrmont
The Company assesses al each reMing date wneher a linanciat a$al (or a group ol linancial assels) such as rnvesltnents, Itadc rec€ivablcs,

advanc& and s€curity dsposits held al amortised cost and linanclal a33ol3 lhsl Ere m€asursd al lEir value lhrough olhar comprchansiva hcom6 ar6

tsstod lor impaiment Dased on ovidence or inlomation that is availabls withoul undue cosl or ellort Expected credn losses arc ass€ss€d and loss

atlo*ancls rlcogniz€d if the credil qualily ol lhe financial ass€t he3 ddlodoraled signilicantly sinca mitial recognilion.

R.claaalflcatlon
Wh6n snd only when the businoss model is changed, tha Company shall rscJas3ily ell aflected llnancial assets prospectively from lhc roclassilicalion
date as subs€qusntty moasured al amorlised cost, lair valu3 through other comprohonsiv€ incoms, far value lhrough profl or loss wthout Estating lh6
pr€viously r6cognized gains, losses or iflterost and in l6rms dlhe rgclasllilcstion principlos laid down inlhe lnd AS ralating lo Financlal lnslrumonls

Oar.cognlton
Financisl assets are derecognized when lhe ght lo .ecciv€ cssh nows lrom th6 6s3et5 hEs €xpir€d, or has been translefied, and th€ company has

translsnsd subslantially all of the risks and rEwads ol olvnor3hip Concomlt nlly, if th6 assel is one that is m3asured al:

e. amonised cost, ih6 gain or loss is recognized inlha Statam6nl ol Profll End Los!;

b. fair vatus through other comprehensive income, the cumulallvr f6ir vsluo .djustm6nls Pr6viously taken to rBsorves are rcclassill€d lo th€ Stat8m€nl of

Prof( and Loss untoss lhe asset rcpresents an squity investmonl ln whlcl c53r, th€ oJmuletivo tair value adjuslrnGflls Previously takon 1o roscrvcs i!
reciesslfl sd wilhin €quity.

lncom! R.cognluon
tln6l63l incomc is rBcognizsd in the StaiefiErn of Proft and Los! uaino th6 6ltccllw lnlarlsl m€thod- DMdend incom€ is mcognizod in iho SlElomant

ol Protn 8nd Loss wh€n th€ rigm b re.eve dlvldend is sstablishad-

Fln.ncl.l Ll.blllu.!
Bonowings, rrade peyables and oth€r fnanciat liabilfte3 ara initi6lly l€togniz6d at lhs value c,f th€ r6spedlve co raclual obligations. Th€y are

3uboqu€nlty measursd at amodBed cosl Any discoufll or premium on rcdemplion / s€ttlament rs rccogniz€d in lhe Stetemenl ol Profll and Loss as

tinancs co3t over lhe tife of th€ tiabrtity using the eflective irn6r€6t mothod and adjBled lo lhe liabilily ligure disclos€d in lhe Balanc€ She€l Financral

riabit ies sre dsrBcognEed wlten the liability is efiogui3hed, lh6l is. whan th€ codl-adual obligalion is disc.harged, canc€lled or on €xpiry.

Oll..ttln0 Flnencl.l lnstrumsnis
Ftnancjat ass.ts and tiabitnies arc ofiset and thc nel amounl i3 lncludad in lh€ Bslanco Sheel where lharc is a legally enlorc€abl8 rigm lo ofi36i lh€
rscognizod amounts and thor6 is an inlention to sellle on a n€t ba3l3 or r€allso lhc asset snd sottlolhe liability simult€neously.

Eqully ln.trum.ntr
Equlty lnslruments ar6 recognized al lhe valu€ of th€ proc€6d3, n6l ol dlr€cl cosls ol lh€ c€pilal i$ue-

Slgnlllcrnlrccountlng judgmsnts. estimat63and a66umPtlon.
Ths prepsrstion ot fnancial slalemenrs in conformily wilh genolElly acc€pled accounting principles requir€s managemenl lo m8k. oslimalss and

assumpllom that affect the roported amounts of ass€ls and liabllit€3 end dl3clo3urs d conling€nt llabilities at lhe dats of lio llnancial staloments and

rhe r€sutts of operatiorc during th€ roporting penod end, Although th.s. €!timet63 sr6 based upon managemedt's best knowladga ot cunonlovonts

and actions, aclual resulls could difier from lhss€ cstimates.

Ths €stimat6s and undertying assumptionE are leviel,/ed on 5n ongoing bssi3. R6vElom to accouriing astimales arc r€cognizsd in th6 porlod ln whici
ihs €stimat6 is revised I t're revision sfi€cts only lllat period, or in lha psriod of lh6 r€vl3lon snd tiur€ Periods lhe revision afl€ct3 bolh cur6nl6nd

ss
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Notes to Financial StatemenB tor the year ended 3'lst March 2024
(All amounts in Rupees thousands, unless oth€rulse stated)

4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at
3lst ilarch 2024

89.08

89.08

Balances wilh banks
On Current Accounb

Total

5 EQUIry SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

1,50,000 Equity Shares oI Rs.10/- each

lssued , Subscribed and Paid up

10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

As at
3lst March 2024

1,500.00

100.00
100.00Total

5,1 Reconciliation of the number of Equlty shares

Particulars As at 3l6t March 2024
Numbgr Amount

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Equity shares issued on incorporation

Balance as at the end of the year

10,000 100.00

10.000 100.00

5.2 Oetails of Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5 % ot the aggregate ahares in the Company

Name of Sharoholder

As at 3lst March 2024
No. of Shares

hsld
% ot Holding

Khadim lndra Limited (Holding Company) 10,000 '100.00

5.3 Rights, Preferences and Restrictlons attached to Equity Sharos

The Company has one class ol Equity Shares having a face value of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one
vote per share held. The Dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the
Annual ceneral Meeting, except in case of lnterim Dividend. ln the event of liquidation, the Equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of lhe Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

5.4 Disclosure ot Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of Sharehol of Promoters as at 3lst tla]Eh 2024

Shargs hgld W promoterg
As at 31st tuarch 2024

No.of shaEs % of total
shares

Promoter Name

10,000 100.00%Khadim lndia Limited
10,000 100.00%Total

S5
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Notes to Financial Stataments fo. the year 6nd6d 31st March 2024
(All amounts ln Rupees thouaands, unless otherwise slated)

6 OTHER EOUITY As at
31st March 2024

1153.72)

(1s3.72)

Relained Earninos
Balance at the beginning of lhe reporting
period r €. 1sl April 2023

Profiu(Loss) for lhe year

Olher comprehensive rncome (net of lax)
Balance al lhe end of lhe reportng
period r.e 3lsl llrarch, 2024

7 AORROWINGS. CURRENT As at
3lst March 2024

100.00

100,00

UNSECUREO

Loans repayablo on demand
From Relaled panies

Total

7.1 The company has taken an inleresl-tree unsecured loan of Rs 1 00,0001from a Oteclor

8 TRADE PAYAELES

Trade lea scheduls - as at 31st March 2024

9 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at
31st March 2024

4.50

4.50

Slatulory remittances (Witholding Tax)

Total

Oubtandinq lor lollowino oerlods from due dats of oavmentParticula16
Leaa than I year 'l '2 yea6 2-3 years More than 3

Total

MSME
Olhers 38 30 38.30
Disputed du€s - MSIIIE
Disputed dues - Others
Total 38.30 38.30

AS&

(,

97



As at
3lst MErch 202i1

20.00

0.60

't8.31

6s.8'l

49.00

153.72Tot l

1O OTHER EXPENSES

KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Notes to Flnancial Statements forthe y6ai ended 313t lrarch 2024
(All amounts in Rupeo3 thousands, unl.3s otherwise ltEted)

Audit fe€s

Bank charges

Rent

Rates and laxes

Professional fees

7)
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KSR FOOTWEAR LI ITED

Notos to Financlal Statom6nt! forths year onded 31st lrlerch 2024

(All amounts in Rupee! thou!.nd., unless othorwl.g !t ted)

ll Eernlngs Pe, Sh..r (EPS) - Tho numerator.nd donomin.tot u3od to c.lculate B.sic.nd olluted EPS :

i. Loss alter Tax attributable to the Equity Shareholders

ir. Weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding for lhe purpose

of basic earnings per share
iii. Weighted average number ofequity shares in computing diluted earnings per thare
iv. Earnings per share on loss lor the year (Face value Rs.100/- per share)

- Basic [(i) / (ii)l
- D'luted tt) / ('ii)l

Year Ended

3l!t March 2024

(1s:r.72)

6,llo

6,110

(2s.16)
(25.r6)

t2 The Company was incorporated on 22nd Augusl 2022 and the financial statements relates to the period from the said dale
onwards till 31st March 2024. ThiB being the frsl year of incoQoralion, previous year fgu.es are not applic.ble.

13 The Company has not provided Ior Defered Tax asset on account of carry IoMard of unused tar losses in pursuance to para

34 of lnd AS 12, as there is no reasonable certainty that sufrcient future taxable income will be available against which such
defened tax assel can be realised.

Rolatod Party Dl.cloruro as per rgquircment! ol lnd AS 24 on "Relaled Party olsclosureE"
Llgt of Related P..tlos

Holding Company Khadim lndia Limited

Key Management P€rsonnel(KMP) Mr. Rittrck Roy Burman - Direclor

irr. Rittoban Roy Burman - Direclor

Mr. Suman Barman Roy - Director

14

A)

Enterprises over which KMP and their
relatives exercise significanl influence

Storyscope Films Private Limiled

B) PartlcularB of tranlrctions du ng lhe year ondod 3lst [.tch 2024

PartlculaIs
Year gnd6d

3l.t t arch 2024

l) Koy Managomont PeBonnol
a) Unsecured loan from Rittick Roy Burman 1oo.0o

Ouatanding bElancas
Ysar ended

3l!t trlarch 2024

l) Koy ilanagoment Pe.sonnel
a) Rittick Roy Burman 100.00

;.
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Notgs to Financi.l StatomEnb for the y€ar gnded 3lst M.rch 2024
(All amounb in Rupe6 thouaands, unlegs otherwiso statod)

15 Financial lnstrumgnts and related discloouros

Capital Managoment
The Company's capital management objectives are lo to maintain a slrong capital base so as lo mainlain confdence of its
business partners and to sustain luture development ofthe business.

B Categoriqs of Flnancial lngtruments
As at 3lEt March 202i1

Carryinq valuo Falr valuo

89.08
89.08

100.00
38.30

138.30

89.08
89.08

100.00
38.30

138.30

A

a.

I

a.

Financialasaota
Msaaurqd at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Financlal a88qts

Flnancial liabilities
Measured at amortised coat
Bonowings
Trade payables
Total Financial liabilities

c Financial risk managomcnt ob.l€ctives
The Company has a process of regular reviews/audit to monitor all financial risks, including market risk, credit nsk and liquidity
risk as and when applicable.

16 Falr value moasuaoment
Financial assets & Financial liabilities comprises of Cash & Cash Equivalents, Bonowings, Trade Payables and olher financial
liabilities

The fair value of trade payables are considered to be equal to the carrying amount due to their shorl-term nature.

Fair value hler8rchy
Fair value of the financial instruments is classilied in various hrerarchies based on the following three levels:

Levol 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in actNe market for identicalassets or liabilities
Lovel 2: lnputs other lhan quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for lhe asset or liability, eilher direclly (i.e.as
prices) or indireqtly (i.e. derived ftom pric€s)

Levgl 3: lnputs lor the assels and liabilities that are not based on observable market dala (unobservable inputs).

&As
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statgments for the year onded 3lst March 2024
(All amounts ln Rupees thousands, unlgss otho,wise stated)

17 Since this is the first year of operations, ralios and reasons for changes in the sarne are not disclosed

18 Additional Rogulatory lnformation
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds lo any other peEons or entilies, including foreign entities
(lntermediaries) with the understanding that the lntermediary shall:

(a) directy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities idenlitied in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provde any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf ofthe Ultimate Beneficieries.

(D

(h) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recoded in writing or otheNise) that the Company shall:

(a) drreclly or indiredly lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of lhe
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Benefciaries

19 The Board of Direclors ot the Company, at ils meeting dated 29 September 2023, has approved a Scheme of Arangemenl
between Khadim lndia Limited (KlL) and KSR Footwear Limited (KFL) and lheir respective shareholders and creditors under

sections 230 to 232, 66 and other relevanl provisions of the Companies Act, 2023. Pursuant lo the approved scheme, KIL

shaltdemerge its distribution business, as a going concem, into KFL. Posl lhe scheme becoming effective, the exisling paid up

equity share capital r.e., L,OO,OOO/- divided into 1O,OOO equity shares of fac€ value { 
'0/- 

each of KFL shall stand reduced

and cancetled pursuant to section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and KFL will issue 1 (one)

equity share of face value of t 10/- each fully paid up for every 1 (one) equity share of face value t 10/- each fully paid up held

by equity shareholders ol KlL. KFL will reflect a mirror shareholding as that of KIL and lhereafter it will funclion as an

independent listed company. The Scheme is subject to approval of the shareholders, secured and unsecured qedilors,

Nationat Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), the stock exchanges and such other persons or governmental authorities as may be

sel out in the Scheme otArrangement. Presently the matter is pending with the Stock Exchanges for their approval/ NOC.

For and on behall of Board of Dlrectorg

-q<rttick
Diroctor
(OlN:08537366)

Roy Burman

Suman Barman Roy

Oirector
(DlN:07285500)

Place: Kolkata

Daler 26th April 2024

&
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RTFORT ADOPTED BY THE BOAR.D OF DIRECTORS OF KHADIM INDIA LIMITED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH SECTTON 232l2llcl OF THE COMPANIES AC-T, 2013, AT THEIR

MEETING HELD ON SEPTEMBER 29,2023, AT TTII FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARX, 08

MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOUIN (RAJARHATI, KOLKATA - 700156

1. Background

1. 1 . Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and Committee of Independent

Directors at their respective meetings held on September 29, 2023, a draft Scheme of

Arrangement ('Scheme'| between Khadim India Limited (hereinafter referred to as

'Company' or 'Dernerged Coapany' or 'KIL') and KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter

referred to as 'ReaultlDg Company' or 'KFL', and together with the Company, the

'Compaules') and their respective shareholders and creditors, under section 23O to 232

and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 {'Act'l read with the rules

ard/or regulations made thereunder including the Companies (Compromise,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the Master Circular No.

SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ POD-2lP lClRl2023l93 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India ('SEBI'f on June 20, 2023 ('SEBI Ctrcular'!, section 2(19AA) read with other

relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 ('IT Act'l and all other provisions of
applicable laws, was placed before and approved by the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company

('Board') at its meeting held on September 29, 2023.

l.2.The provisions of section 232121(cl of the Act, requires the Board to adopt a report

explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial

personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Compaly laying out in
particular the share entitlement ratio speci$ing any valuation difficulties, and the same

is required to be circulated as a part ofthe notice of meeting(s) to be held for the purpose

of approving the Scheme. This Report of the Board is accordingly being made in
pursuance of the requirements of section 232.2!(c) of the Act.

1.3. The Scheme, inter-alia provides for the following to come into effect from the Appointed

Date:

(a) the transfer by way of a demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as dehned in the

Schemel of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern

basis and issuance of equity shares by the Resulting Company to all the equity

shareholders of the Demerged Company;

@
frontoffi ce@kladims.com

a
o I l-4009 050t 0tl-4009 0500

KHAIIM INDIA LIMITED

w\.rr'w.khadims.com

CIN : Ll9t29WBl98lPLC0I4ll7
REGISIERED oFFICE : 7TH FLOOR. TOWER C. DLr IT PARK, 08 MArOR ARTERIAL RoAD. BLoCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARhqD. XoLKATA - 7oO t 56

CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET. (OLXATA - 7oo o87
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(b) Reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up share capital of the Resulting

Company;

(c) Listing of equity shares of Resulting Company on BSE Limited ('BSE'| and National

Stock Exchange of India Limited ('NSE I; and

(d) various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith

1.4. The Scheme was recommended for the approval ofthe Board by the Audit Committee and

by the Independent Directors Committee at their respective meetings held on September

29,2023.

(a) Draft Scheme;

(b) Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated September 29,2023 issued by Mr. Vikram

Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer under IBBI having Registration No.

lBBl lRv l06l2Ol9lll32o ('Rcglstcted Valuer'f , inter-alia, recommending the fair

share entitlement ratio ('Share Entltlemcat Ratlo Report'l;

(c) Faimess opinion dated September 29, 2023 issued by Saffron Capital Advisors Private

Limited, Merchant Banker registered with the SEBI having Registration No.

INMOooO 1 121 1, on the Share Entitlement Ratio as mentioned in the Share

Entitlement Ratio Report ('Falrness Optuton'l;

(d) Auditor's certifrcate dated September 29, 2O23 submitted by M/s. Ray & Ray'

Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No. 301072E), Statutory Auditors of the

Company, certifuing the accounting treatment contained in the Scheme ('Audttor

Certtflcate'|;

(e) Report dated September 29, 2023 by the Audit Committee in terms of the

requirements under the SEBI Circular.

(0 Report dated September 29, 2023 by the Committee of Independent Directors in terms

of the requirements under the SEBI Circular. /<f\
@

Fontoffi ce@kIadims..om
a g
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

c
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l_ l9 r 29WB l98l PLCOr4l l7
REGISTERED OTFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAIOR ARTERJAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TO!\N (RA,ARllATl. XOLXATA - 7oo 156

CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREFL KOLKATA - 7oo o87

,G

1.5. Having regard to the applicability of the aforesaid provisions, the following documents

were placed before the Board:
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(g) Undertaking dated September 29,2023 by the Company Secretary & Head- Legal'

conhrming the non-applicability of the requirements under Para A(10)(a) read with

Para A(10)(b) of Part I of the SEBI Master Circular dated June 20,2023 relating to

obtaining approval of the majority of public shareholders;

(h) Certificate dated September 29,2023 from M/s. Ray & Ray, Chartered Accountants,

Statutory Auditors ofthe Company, certifuing the undertaking in reiation to the non-

applicability of the requirements under Para A(10)(a) read with Para A(10)(b) of Part I

of the SEBI Master Circular dated June 20, 2023 relating to obtaining approval of the

majority of public shareholders;

2. Elfects ofthc Schelre on the key stakeholders:

@
honrofficr@kIa

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED clN i Lrer2ewBrssrPlcol4l!7
RTGISTERED OTFICE : 7TH FL0OR, TOWER C, DLr IT PARK, 08 MAIOR ARTERJAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEw TOWN (RA,ARHAT). KOLKATA - 7oo 156

CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET, KOLKATA - 7oo o87

Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholderssl.
No.

Category of
Stakeholders

a) The Company has equity shareholders. There is no other class

of shareholders.

b) Upon the Scheme coming into e{Iect as on Effective Date (as

defined in the Scheme) and in consideration of the demerger,

the shareholders of the Demerged Company whose names

appear in the register of members as on the Record Date (as

defined in the Scheme) or to their respective heirs, executors,

administrators or other legal representatives or the

successors-in-title as the case may be, shall be eligible to

receive shares as per the following Share Entitlement Ratio:

" l(One) equitV share of tlle face ualue of INR 10/- each fullA

paid-up ofthe Resulting ConWanA for euery 1 (One) equitg shdre

of face ualue INR 10/- each fullg paid up held bg equitg

sharelnlders oJ tle Demerged Compang."

The above ratio has been arrived at based on the Share

Entitlement Ratio Report and Fairness Opinion.

c) In this Scheme of Demerger, Resulting Company to issue its

equity shares to all the equity shareholders of the Demerged

Company in the ratio of 1 equity share of the Resulting

compfi! for every t €ity strare held in Demerged Company

2.1 Equity

Shareholders:

Promoters

and Non-

Promoters of

the Company

I)

t
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sl.
No,

Category of
Stakeholders

Ellect of the Scheme on the Stekeholders

as consideration for the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking

and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the equity shares

held by Demerged Company in Resulting Company shall be

reduced and cancelled and accordingly, the shareholders of

the Demerged Company are and will upon demerger, be the

ultimate economic beneficial owners of the Resulting Company

in the same proportion as they hold in the Demerged

Company.

d) Further, the Promoters of the Company shall continue to

remain promoters even after the eflectiveness of the Scheme.

e) Since the Promoter and Non-Promoter shareholders of the

Demerged Company are being issued shares in the same

proportion, the rights of Non-Promoter shareholders of the

Demerged Company shall not be affected under the Scheme.

f) Equity shares of the Resulting Company to be issued to the

equity shareholders of the Demerged Company will be listed

for trading on the Stock Exchanges.

Key

Managerial

Personnel

(,KuP'l

a) The KMP of the Demerged Company shall continue as the

KMP of the Demerged Company after effectiveness of the

Scheme on the same terms and conditions.

b) Please refer paragraph 2.1 above for details regarding the

effect of the Scheme on the KMP who are also the

shareholders of the Demerged Company.

d) On the Scheme becoming effective, all the Transferring

Employees (as dehned in the Scheme) shall be deemed to have

become employees of the Resulting Company with effect from

ut any interruption in service, onthe ADDointed Date. withoEr 'g

D

2.2

a
[\

t)lA

a

t
lir

@
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c) Under the Scheme, no rights of the KMP of the Demerged

Company are being affected.
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No.

Category of
Stakeholders

Effect of the Scheme oa the Stakeholdere

the terms and conditions not less favourable than those on

which they are engaged by the Demerged Company.

e) Upon coming into effect of the Scheme and in consideration

for the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of the

Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, the Board

of the Demerged Company shall decide the manner in which

difference in the intrinsic value created pursuant to the

demerger of the Distribution Business is to be compensated

to the ESOPs holders of the Demerged Company.

The Board of the Demerged company shall take such actions

and execute such further documents as may be necessary or

desirable for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid

provisions, if required. Approval granted to the Scheme by the

shareholders of the Demerged Company shall also be deemed

to be approval granted to any modifications made to the ESOP

Plans of the Demerged Company.

K
KHADIM

3. Share Entitleraent Ratio

3.1. For the purpose of arriving at the Share Entitlement Ratio, the Share Entitlement Ratio

Report was obtained by the Company from Vikram Kumar Singh (IBBI Registered Valuer

No. IBBI/RV/06 l2or9 / rr32ol.

3.2. The Share Entitlement Ratio Report recommends the Share Entitlement Ratio - "For

euery 1 (One) fullg paid up eqtity share hauing face ualue of { 1O/ - each of KIL, 1 (One)

fullg paid up equitV share hauing face ualue oJ { 10/- each of KFL" to be fair and

reasonable, considering that the proposed Demerger will not have any impact on the

economic and beneficial interest of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company.

3.3. The Registered Valuer appointed to recommend Share Entitlement Ratio for the

@
frontoffi ce@khadirns.com

Demerger, has not expressed any diffrculty while determining the same
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3.4. The Fairness Opinion dated September 29,2023 issued by Saffron Capital Advisors

Private Limited, a SEBI registered Merchant Banker, have conhrmed that the Share

Entitlement Ratio as per the Share Entitlement Ratio Report, is fair to the shareholders

of the Company in accordance urith the SEBI Circular. The Merchant Banker has not

expressed any difficulty in providing their fairness opinion.

3.5. The Share Entitlement Ratio for the Demerger has been recommended by the Registered

Valuer as being fair and reasonable and the Merchalt Banker has opined that the Share

Entitlement Ratio is fair and reasonable. Both these reports have been accepted and

taken on record by the Audit Committee, the Independent Directors Committee and the

Board of the Company.

4. Adoptlon ofthe Report by the Board ofthe Company

The Board of the Company has adopted this report after noting and considering the

information set forth in the report. The Board is entitled to make relevant modifications

to this report, if required, and such modihcations or amendments shall be deemed to form

part of this report.

For and on behalf of Khadim Indla Limited

.'ct dJ)vr3
Siddhartha Roy Burman

Chalrman & Managing Dlrector

DIN: 00043715

Place: Delhi

Date: September 29, 2023

@
frontoffi ce@khadims.com
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
clN : u4641 1wB2023PLC264441

REGISTERED OFFICE : FIAT NO.4A,4TH FLOOR, KALYANI COMPLEX, P-22, BLOCK - A, BANGUR AVENUE, KOLKATA - 700055
E-MAIL : ksro8202l@gmail.com

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRE TORS OF KSR FOOTU'EAR LIMITED II{

ACCORDANCE WrTH SECTION 232l2l1cl OF THE COMPANTES ACT, 2013, AT THEIR

MEETING HELD OT{ SEPTEMBER 29,2023, AT FLAT NO. 4A, 4TII FLOOR, KALYAM

COMPLEX, P 22, E,.OCIK A. BANGI'R AVENUE, KOLKATA - 7OOO55

1. Background

1.1. A draft of the proposed Scheme of Arrangement ('Scheme'l between KSR Footwear

Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'CoEpaEy' or 'Resultlng Conpaay' or 'KFL') and

Khadim India Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'Denerged Conpany' or 'KIL' and

together with the Demerged Company, the 'Companles') and their respective

shareholders and creditors, under section 23O to 232 and other applicable provisions of

the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act'l read with the rules and/or regulations made thereunder

including the Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016,

the Master Circular No. SEBI/HO ICFDIPOD-2lPlClRl2023l93 issued by the Securities

and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'I on June 20, 2023 ('SEBI Ctrcular'), section 2(19AA)

read with other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 fIT Act'l and all other

provisions of applicable laws, was placed before and approved by the Board of Directors

of the Company ('Board'l at its meeting held on September 29,2023.

1.2. The provisions of section 232(21(c) of the Act, requires the Board to adopt a report

explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial

personnel, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Company laying out in
particular the share entitlement ratio speci$ring any valuation difficulties, and the same

is required to be circulated as a part of the notice of meeting(s) to be held for the purpose

of approving the Scheme. This Report of the Board is accordingly being made in
pursuance of the requirements of section 232l2llcl of the Act.

1.3. The Scheme, inter-alia provides for the following to come into effect from the Appointed

Date:

(a) the transfer by way of a demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the

Scheme) of the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern

basis and issuance of equity shares by the Resulting Company to all the equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company;

(b) Reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up share capital of the Resulting
Company;

Annexure V
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REGISTERED OFFICE : FLAI NO. ,rA, 4TH FLOOR, KALYANI COMPLEX, P-22, BLOCK - A, BANGIJR AVENUE, KOLXATA - 7oo05s
E-MAIL : ksro82023@gmail.com

(c) Listing of equity shares of Resulting Company on BSE Limited ('BSE I and National

Stock Exchange of India Limited ('!tSE'l; and

(d) various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith

1.4. Having regard to the applicability of the aforesaid provisions, the following documents

were placed before the Board:

(a) Draft Scheme;

(b) Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated September 29,2023 issued by Mr. Vikram

Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer under IBBI having Registration No.

lBBllRVl06l2Ol9lll320 ('Reglstered Valuer'1, inter-alia, recommending the fair

share entitlement ratio ('Share Entl enent Retlo Report'|; and

(c) Auditor's certificate dated September 29, 2023 submitted by M/s. Agarwal &

Associates (Firm registration No. 323210E), Statutory Auditors of the Company,

certifying the accounting treatment contained in the Scheme ('Audltor Certllicate'|;

2. Effects ofthe Scheme orr the key stakeholders:

sl.
No.

Category of
Stateholders

Ellect of the Scheme ou the Stakeholders

2.t a) The Company has equity shareholders. There is no other

class of shareholders.

b) Upon the Scheme coming into effect as on Effective Date (as

defined in the Scheme) and in consideration of the demerger,

the shareholders of the Demerged Company whose names

appear in the register of members as on the Record Date (as

defined in the Scheme) or to their respective heirs, executors,

administrators or other legal representatives or the

successors-in-title as the case may be, shall be eligible to

receive shares as per the following Share Entitlement Ratio:

" 1(One) equitg share of the face ualue oJ INR 1O/ - each fullA
paid-up of the Resulting Compang for euery 1 (One) equitg

share of face ualue INR 10/- each fullg paid up held bg equitg

shareholders of the Demerged Compang."

./n\(

K

o
E

Equity

Shareholders:

Promoters and

Non-Promoters

of the

Company
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sl.
No.

Category of
Stakeholders

Effect of the Scheme on the Stakeholders

c) Upon the Scheme coming into effect as on Effective Date (as

defined in the Schemel and in consideration of the demerger,

the entire existing paid-up share capital ofthe Company shall

be reduced and cancelled.

d) The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of KIL and the

effective ownership lies with the shareholders of KIL.

Accordingly, issuing shares to shareholders of KIL post

cancellation of the direct shareholding of KIL shall not affect

the rights of KIL being the original promoter of the Company.

e) There are no non-Promoter shareholders of the Resulting

Company whose rights shall be affected under the Scheme.

2.2 Key

Managerial

Personnel

('r(MP'l

a) The company does not have KMPs at present.

b) There will be no effect on the KMPs pursuant to the Scheme

c) Please refer Paragraph 2.1 above for details regarding the

effect of the Scheme on the KMPS who are also the

shareholders of the Resulting Company.

3. Share Entitlement Ratio

3. 1 For the purpose of ariving at the Share Entitlement Ratio, the Share Entitlement Ratio

Report was obtained by the Company from Vikram Kumar Singh (IBBI Registered Valuer

No. IBBI/RV/06 /2or9 / rr320l.

3.2. The Share Entitlement Ratio Report recommends the Share Entitlement Ratio - "For euery

1 (One)fully paid up equitg share hauing face ualue of { 10/ - each of KIL, 1 (One)fullg paid

up equitA share hauing face ualue of { 1O/- each of KFL" to be fair and reasonable,

considering that the proposed Demerger will not have any impact on the economic and

beneficial interest of the equity shareholders of the KIL.
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E-MAIL : ksr082O23@gmail.com

3.3. The Registered Valuer appointed to recommend Share Entitlement Ratio for the

Demerger, has not expressed any difficulty while determining the same.

3.4. The Share Entitlement Ratio for the Demerger has been recommended by the Registered

Valuer as being fair and reasonable and the Share Entitlement Ratio Report has been

accepted and taken on record by the Board of the Company.

The Board of the Company has adopted this report after noting and considering the

information set forth in the report. The Board is entitled to make relevant modifications

to this report, if required, and such modifications or amendments shall be deemed to form

part of this report.

For and on behalf of KSR Footwear Limlted

Roy

Dlrector

DIN:08537366

Place: Kolkata

Date: September 29, 2023

4. Adoptiou ofthe Report by the Board ofthe CoEPany
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Shareholding Pattern of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (pre and post-

arrangement) as on June 21, 2024 
 

The table below illustrates the Pre and post Arrangement shareholding pattern as on June 21, 2024 for 
Khadim India Limited (“KIL” or “Demerged Company”) and KSR Footwear Limited (“KFL” or 
“Resulting Company”) as on June 21, 2024. There will be no change in the shareholding pattern of the 
Demerged Company consequent to the Scheme. 

 
 
Sl. 
No. 

 
 
Description 
 

Demerged Company Resulting Company 
Pre Arrangement & Post 

Arrangement* 
Pre Arrangement Post Arrangement* 

No. of shares % 
No. of 
shares 

% 
No. of 
shares 

% 

(A) Shareholding of Promoter and Promoter Group 

1 Indian 

(a) 
Individuals / Hindu Undivided 
Family 

17,21,938 9.41 - - 17,21,938 9.41 

(b) 
Central Government / State 
Government(s) - - - - - - 

(d) Financial Institutions / Banks - - - - - - 

(e) Any Others - - - - - - 

i. Bodies Corporate 92,73,229 50.68 10,000# 100.00 92,73,229 50.68 

 Sub Total (A)(1) 1,09,95,167 60.09 10,000 100.00 1,09,95,167 60.09 
          

2 Foreign 

(a) 
Individuals (Non-Residents 
Individuals / Foreign Individuals) - - - - - - 

(b) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - 

(c)  Institutions - - - - - - 

(d) Any Others - - - - - - 

  Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 
          

  
Total Shareholding of Promoter     
and Promoter Group  
(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 

1,09,95,167 60.09 10,000 100.00 1,09,95,167 60.09 

          

(B) Public shareholding 

1 Institutions 

(a) Mutual Funds / UTI 6,50,000 3.55 - - 6,50,000 3.55 

(b) Financial Institutions / Banks - - - - - - 

(c) 
Central Government / State 
Government(s) - - - - - - 

(d)  Venture Capital Funds  - - - - - - 

(e) Insurance Companies - - - - - - 

(f) Foreign Institutional Investors - - - - - - 

(g) Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - - - - - 

(h) Any Other     - - - 

i. Alternate Investment Funds 5,88,870 3.22 - - 5,88,870 3.22 
ii. Foreign Portfolio Investors 

Category I 
9,691 

  
0.05 - - 9,691 0.05 

  Sub-Total (B)(1) 12,48,561 6.82 0.00 0.00 12,48,561 6.82 
          

2 Non-institutions 

(a) Bodies Corporate 3,29,269 1.80 - - 3,29,269 1.80 

(b) Individuals       
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i. 
Individual shareholders holding 
nominal share capital up to               
₹ 2 lakh 

28,14,242 15.38 - - 28,14,242 15.38 

ii. 
Individual shareholders holding 
nominal   share capital in excess 
of ₹ 2 lakh 

18,69,810 10.22 - - 18,69,810 10.22 

(c) Any Other   - -   

i. Key Managerial Personnel 37,000 0.20 - - 37,000 0.20 

ii. Non-Resident Indians (NRIs) 2,12,119 1.16 - - 2,12,119 1.16 
iii. Trust 10 0.00 - - 10 0.00 

iv. 
Body Corp-Ltd Liability 
Partnership 6,409 0.04 - - 6,409 0.04 

v. Hindu Undivided Family 7,84,744 4.28 - - 7,84,744 4.28 

vi. Clearing Member 1,051 0.01 - - 1,051 0.01 

  Sub-Total (B)(2) 60,54,654 33.09 0 0.00 60,54,654 33.09 
          

(B) 
Total Public Shareholding  
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 

73,03,215 39.91 0 0.00 73,03,215 39.91 

          

  TOTAL (A)+(B) 1,82,98,382 100.00 10,000 100.00 1,82,98,382 100.00 
        

(C) 
Shares held by Custodians and 
against which DRs have been 
issued 

0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 

          

  GRAND TOTAL (A)+(B)+(C) 1,82,98,382^ 100.00 10,000 100.00 1,82,98,382 100.00 
 

 

Notes: 
 

*Post shareholding may vary depending on the actual shareholding as on the Record Date. 
 

#Presently, the Resulting Company is the 100% Wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Demerged Company. However, 
as per the statutory requirement, there are 6 individual shareholders holding 1 equity share each as a Nominee 
Shareholders of the Demerged Company.  

 

^ The Demerged Company had allotted 4,08,768 fully convertible equity share warrants (‘warrants’) on 
February 02, 2024 on a preferential basis. 
 

Out of the 4,08,768 warrants, the Demerged Company has allotted equity shares in the following manner 
consequent to  conversion of 3,28,768 warrants: 

 

(i) 1,64,384 Equity shares of INR 10/- each on conversion of 1,64,384 warrants on March 22, 2024 to Mr. 
Siddhartha Roy Burman, one of the Promoters of the Company; and 

 

(ii) 1,64,384 Equity shares of INR 10/- each on conversion of 1,64,384 warrants on May 29, 2024 to Girish 
Gulati (HUF), Non-Promoter Entity. However, these 1,64,384 Equity Shares will be credited to the Allottee’s 
account post obtaining listing approval from the stock exchanges.  

 

Accordingly, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Demerged Company increased to INR 
18,29,83,820/- from INR 17,96,96,140/ (as on the date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of 
the Demerged Company i.e., as on September 29, 2023). 
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November 24, 2023

To,
The Manager,
The Department of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited,
PJ Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Scrip code: 540775

Sub: Report on Complaints in terms of Para 6 of Pa.t l(A) of the SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBUHO/CFD/POO-2lPlolry2023l93 dated June 20, 2023 ("SEBl Master Circular")

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme of
Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited, KSR Footwear Limited and their respective
shareholderc and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and othe. applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made thereunder ("Scheme")

Dear Sir/ Madam,

This has reference to the application filed by the Company in respect of the above with BSE on October 20,
2023. The Scheme and other relevant documents were hosted by BSE on its website on October 30, 2023.

We write to confirm that the Company has received no complaints relating to the Scheme either directly or
through BSE during the period from October 20, 2023 to November 20,2023. Please find enclosed the Report
on Complaints in the prescribed format as Annexure l.

Request you to kindly take the above on record

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For and behalf of Khadim lndia Limited

Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head - Legal
lCSl Membership No. -A21358

Encl.: As above

@
frontoflice@khadi ms.com

GA g
033-4009 0501 ol3-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED crN: Ll er 2swBr esr PLCor4337

REGISTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO I56
CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET, KOLKAIA - 7oo o87

M.&--.\..*.-/

Annexure IX
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Annexure I

REPORT ON COMPLAINTS
(For the period from October 20, 2023 to Novembet 20, 20231

PART A

PART B

Sl. No. Name of Complainant Date of Complaint Status
(Resolved / Pending)

Not Applicable

For Khadim lndia Limited

$<=+- Ty,*
Abhiiit Dan

Company Secretary & Head - Legal
lCSl Membership No. -A21358

November 24, 2023

@
GA E

fronto ffi re@khadinrs.conr 033-4009 0501 03]-4009 0500 wwlv.khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED clN: Lrer2ewBre8rPlcos4rsT

REG'STERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO I56
CITY oFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEI, KoLKATA - 70o o87

Sl. No. Particulars Number
I Number of complaints received directly NIL

NIL

Total Number of complaints / comments received (1 +2) NIL

4 Number of complaints resolved

Number of complaints pending NOT APPLICABLE

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange / SEBI

NOT APPLICABLE

5.
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January 11,2024

To
The Manager - Listing Compliance
National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,
Bandra Kurla Complex (E)
lt/umbai - 400 051

Symbol: KHADTM

Sub: Report on complaints in terms of Para 6 of Part l(A) of the SEBI Master circutar No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/PtBlRlzL23tg3 dated June 20,2023 (,,SEBt Master Circular,,)

Ref: Application under Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing
obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regutations, 201s for the proposed scheme
of Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited ('Company,), KSR Footwear Limited andtheir respective sharehotders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and otherapplicable provisions of the companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made
thereu nder ("Scheme,,)

Dear Sir/ Madam,

This has reference to the application filed by the company in respect of the above with NSE onoctobei 20,2023. The scheme and other relevant documenis were hodted by NSE on its website onDecember 15,2029.

we write to confirm that the company has received no complaints relating to the Scheme either direcly
or through NSE during the period from October 20,2023 to January 05,2024. please find enclosed
the Report on compraints in the prescribed format as Annexure r.

Request you to kindly take the above on record.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For and behalf of Khadim lndia Limited

'{r'-p- ->-4--
Abhijit Dan
C_ompany Secretary & Head - Lega!
lCSl Membership No. - P213SB

Encl.:As above

r=
da

frontoffi ce@khadims.com 0334009 0500 www.khadims.com

@ a
033-4009 0501

KHADIM INDIA TIMITED clN:Lrer2ewBre8rPlc034337

REGISTERED oFFICE : 7rH FLooR, ro*.- 
?,?tffirl,|[i',l1y#r.[ffir#fi l3ffiiil9ifiAF, 

NEw rowN (RATARHAT), KoLKATA- 700 156

Annexure X
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REPORT ON COMPLAINTS
(For the period from October 20,2023 to January OS,2O24l

PART A

PART B

Annexure I

www.khadims.com

For Khadim lndia Limited

$."ie-
Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head - Legal
lCSl Membership No. - 4213Sg

Date: January 11,2024

@ fr
033-4009 0501

r=l
df,

0334009 0500frontoffrce@khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED crN:Lrer2ewBre8rPlco3433i

RrcrsrERED oFFrcE : 7rH FLooR, rowER .i,??rJ;rl,ttiit 
r*Ifrlt$r#ft l3fl_^?iTftAF, 

NEw rowN (RATARHAT), KoLKATA- 700 156

S!. No. Particulars Number
1 Number of complaints received direcfly NIL
2. Number of complaints fonararded

SEBI
by Stock Exchange / NIL

3 Tota I N u m be f of com plaints I comments received ( 1 +2 ) NIL
4 N umber of complaints resolved NOT APPLICABLE
5. N umber of complaints pending NOT APPLICABLE

Sl. No. Na me of Complainant Date of Complaint
Resolved / Pending)

Status

1 Not Applicable
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Non-Confidential

Ref: NSE/LIST/38097                                           April 30, 2024

The Company Secretary
Khadim India Limited
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park, 
08 Major Arterial Road, Block AF, 
New Town (Rajarhat),
Kolkata- 700156

Kind Attn.: Mr. Abhijit Dan     
                                

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for draft scheme of arrangement between Khadim India Limited 
("Demerged Company" Or "KIL") and KSR Footwear Limited ("Resulting Company" or 
"KFL") and their respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to the provisions of sections 
230 to 232 and section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
rules made thereunder.

We are in receipt for draft scheme of arrangement between Khadim India Limited ("Demerged 
Company" Or "KIL") and KSR Footwear Limited ("Resulting Company" or "KFL") and their 
respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to the provisions of sections 230 to 232 and section 66 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder vide 
application dated October 25, 2023.

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/38097 dated March 11, 2024, submitted to SEBI pursuant 
to SEBI Master Circular dated June 20, 2023 read with Regulation 37 and 94(2) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR Regulations), SEBI vide its 
letter dated April 30, 2024, has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of 
arrangement: 

a) The Company shall ensure to disclose all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery 
proceedings, prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the 
Company, its promoters, and directors, before Hon'ble NCLT and shareholders, while seeking
approval of the Scheme.

b) Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company after filing 
the Scheme with the Stock Exchanges, from the date of receipt of this letter, is displayed on the 
websites of the listed Companies and the Stock Exchanges.
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c) The entities involved in the Scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular and 
ensure that all the liabilities of Transferor Company are transferred to the Transferee Company.

d) The Company shall ensure that information pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies involved, 
if any, in the scheme, shall be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as 
provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement 
or notice or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed, which is sent to the shareholders 
for seeking approval.

e) The Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for 
valuation report are not for period more than 6 months old.

f) The Company shall ensure that the details of proposed scheme under consideration as provided 
by the Company to the Stock Exchanges shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the 
shareholders.

g) Both the Companies shall disclose the following as a part of the explanatory statement or notice 
or proposal accompanying resolution to be passed to be forwarded by the company to the 
shareholders while seeking approval u/s 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

(i) Details of assets, liabilities, net worth and revenue of the companies involved, pre and post 
scheme.

(ii) Impact of scheme on revenue generating capacity of Demerged Company.
(iii) Need and Rationale of the scheme, Synergies of business of the companies involved in the 

scheme, Impact of the scheme on the shareholders and cost benefit analysis of the scheme.
(iv) Value of assets and liabilities of Demerged Company that are being transferred to 

Resulting Company

h) The Company shall ensure that applicable additional information submitted to Stock Exchanges 
and SEBI, as Annexure Y dated October 19, 2023 shall form part of disclosures to the 
shareholders.

i) The Company shall ensure that the 
shall mandatorily be in demat form only.

j)
complying with the relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document.

k) The Company shall ensure that no changes to the draft scheme shall be made without specific 
written consent of SEBI, except those mandated by the regulators/authorities/ tribunals.

l) The Company shall ensure that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated 
in the petition to be filed before NCLT and the Company is obliged to bring the observations to 
the notice of NCLT.
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m) The Company shall ensure that all the applicable provisions under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the rules and regulations thereunder are complied, including obtaining the consent from the 
creditors for the proposed scheme.

n) It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and 
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBl/stock exchange. Hence, the 
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of 
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments / observations / representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and 
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBl/ Stock exchange. Hence, the 
company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) of 
Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its 
comments/observations/representations.

Please note that the submission of documents/information, in accordance with the Circular to SEBI and 
National Stock Exchange of India (NSE), should not in any way be deemed or construed that the same 
has been cleared or approved by SEBI and NSE. SEBI and NSE does not take any responsibility either 
for the financial soundness of any scheme or for the correctness of the statements made or opinions 
expressed in the documents submitted.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking given 

terms of Regulation 37 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the Company to file the draft 
scheme with NCLT.

with other applicable statutory requirements. However, the listing of shares of KSR Footwear Limited  
is at the discretion of the Exchange.

The listing of KSR Footwear Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be subject to SEBI 
approval & Company satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about KSR Footwear 
Limited and its group companies in line with the disclosure requirements applicable for public 
issues with for making the same available to 
the public through website of the companies. The following lines must be inserted as a disclaimer 
clause in the Information Memorandum:

Scheme has been approved by NSE; and/ or NSE does not in any manner warrant, certify or 
endorse the correctness or completeness of the details provided for the unlisted Company; does 
not in any manner take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of the Resulting 
Company, its promoters, its management
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2. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all the information about KSR Footwear 
Limited in line with the details required as per SEBI Master Circular dated June 20, 2023. The 
advertisement should draw a specific reference to the aforesaid Information Memorandum 
available on the website of the company as well as NSE.

3. To disclose all the material information about KSR Footwear Limited to NSE on the continuous 
basis so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements, if any, specified in SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 for disclosures about the subsidiaries.

4. The following provision shall be incorporated in the scheme:

a)

b)

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted 
to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of Rules, 
Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations issued by 
statutory authorities.

April 30, 2024, within which the 
Scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Kindly note, this Exchange letter should not be construed as approval under any other Act 
/Regulation/rule/bye laws (except as referred above) for which the Company may be required to obtain 
approval from other department(s) of the Exchange. The Company is requested to separately take up 
matter with the concerned departments for approval, if any.

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each 
point of Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS > Issue 
> Scheme of arrangement > Reg 37 of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter to 
Compliance Status. 

Yours faithfully, 
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

Prakash Kelkar
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following                           
URL:https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist
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DETAILS OF ONGOING ADJUDICATION AND RECOVERY PROCEEDINGS, 

PROSECUTION INITIATED, AND ALL OTHER ENFORCEMENT ACTION TAKEN, IF 

ANY, AGAINST THE DEMERGED COMPANY, ITS PROMOTERS AND DIRECTORS 

 

1. Mafag Reflexa AG, Casa Everz GmbH and Iatric Industries Pvt. Ltd. filed a Title 

Suit in July, 2023 before the Commercial Court of South 24 Parganas at Alipore, 

Kolkata for an alleged violation of a patented foot base of Footwear. Although the 

suit has been valued at ₹ 600 Million, no basis for the same has been given by the 

opposite party and the Company has sufficient grounds to defend the litigation 

successfully. 

 

2. Although the below litigation is primarily initiated by the Company, for the 

purpose of better disclosure, completeness of information and being material 

litigation, we have included the details of the same: 

 

In relation to a tender for supply of school shoes and uniform floated by Samagra 

Shiksha Abhiyan Authority (SSAA), Punjab through Director General School 

Education-cum-State Project Director (DG-School), an amount of INR 320.00 

Million (approx.) to be received by the company in relation to supply of shoes  and 

uniform was withheld and Performance Bank Guarantee of INR15 Million and INR 

3.5 Million was forfeited via an order dated August 28, 2020. 

 

Aggrieved, the Company took legal recourse and entered into an arbitration before 

the Arbitral Panel. In June 2022, the Arbitral Panel passed an Arbitral Award in 

favour of the Company whereby the Company was entitled to get INR 319.69 

Million along with interest @ 9% p.a. and refund of Performance Bank Guarantee 

forfeited with interest @ 4.5% p.a. plus proportionate cost of arbitration.  

 

However, in 2022, SSAA, Punjab through DG School filed an appeal before the 

District Court at Mohali against the said Arbitral Award. The Learned District 

Court vide its order pronounced in August, 2023 had set aside the Arbitral Award. 

Aggrieved by the order of District Court, the Company has filed an appeal before 

the Hon’ble High Court of Punjab, Chandigarh, in October, 2023 and the matter is 

since pending before the High Court.   

 

Annexure XIII
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3. Details of proceedings relating to direct and indirect taxes pertaining to the 

Demerged Company are as follows: 

 

Nature of case Number of cases Amount involved 

(INR in Million)* 

Direct taxes 

Proceedings initiated by KIL 0 NIL 

Proceedings initiated against KIL 1 0.44 

Total 0.44 

Indirect taxes 

Proceedings initiated by KIL 0 NIL 

Proceedings initiated against KIL 4 12.75 

Total 12.75 

*To the extent ascertainable. 

 

4. There are no pending litigations against the Demerged Company’s Promoters and 

Directors that would have an adverse impact on the proposed Scheme of 

Arrangement or its implementation. 
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KSR TOOTWEAR LIMITED
ReElstered Ofnce: Flat No. 4A, 4th Floor, Kalyani Complex,

P-22, Block-A, Bangur Avenue, Kolkata-700055
Cnt: U46413W82 O23PLC264443 | E-Dait- ksr082023(a email.com

DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

Thls Disclosure Document ('Dlsclosure Documelt' or 'Abrldged Prospectus'f has been
prepared solely as per the requirements of the SEBI Master Clrcular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD IPOD-2lPlClRl2O23lgs dated June 20, 2O2S atrd
SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P l2022lL4 dated February o,4,2022, as ameaded from tlme
to tlme, la connection wlth the Scheme of Arrangemeat betrreen Khadtm Indla Lirntted
('KIL' or 'Demerged Company'f and KSR Footwear Llmlted ('KFL' or 'Resultlng
Company') and thelr respectlve shareholders ard credltors uader Sectlons 23O to 232
aad other appllcable prowlslons of the Companles Act, 2O13 l'the Act'f ('Scheme'f ltled
before the Hoa'ble Natloral Compaay Law Trlbunal, Kolkata Bench.

This Disclosure Document discloses applicable information [as prescribed in the format
for abridged prospectus prowlded 1o Part E of Schedule VI ofthe Securities aod Exchange
Board of India (Issue of Capital aad Disclosure Requireaeots) Regulations' 2O181
pertaining to KFL, being an unllsted comPatry ia the Scheme.

This Disclosure Documeat should be read together with the Scheme, and the Notlcc &
the Explanatory Statement sent to the shareholders of the Demerged Company.

This Disclosure Document should not be considered as an invitation or arl offer of aay
securities by or on behalf of KIL or KFL.

THIS DISCLOSURI DOCUMENT COITT/uNS 11 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE
R"ECETVED ALL THE PAGES.

Contact
Persoo

Telephone, E-nall and webslte

Flat No. 4A, 4th Floor,
Kalyani Complex,
P-22, Block-A, Bangur
Avenue, Kolkata - 700055
West Bengal, India

Same as
Registered

Offrce

Mr. Rittick
Roy

Burman,
Director

Telephone: 033 4009 0501
E-mail: ksro82023@gmail.com
Website: --

NAME OF PROMOTER OF KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

DETAILS OF OFFER TO PUBLIC
Type of Issue (Fresh/ OFS/ Fresh & OFS)
Fresh Issue Size (by no. of shares or by amount in Rs)
OFS Size (by no. of shares or by amount in Rs)
Total Issue Size (by no. of shares or by amount in Rs)
Issue Under 6lll I 612l

Not Applicable

Share Reservation (QIB/NII/RII
o(

Y

IA+

1

KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
CIN: U46413W82O23PLC264443 | Date of laeorporatlols August 22,2023

Registered Offlce Corporate
Ofllee
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DETAILS OT'THE SCHEME

BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE SCHEME

(a) The Scheme of Arralgement is presented under Sections 23O to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act 20 13 between Khadim India Limited ("Demerged
Compaly) and KSR Footwear Limited ("Resulting Company") and their respective
shareholders ald creditors.

(b) The Scheme provides for the following:

(i) the transfer by way of a demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme of Arrangement enclosed to the Notice as Annexure I) of the Demerged
Company into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis and the consequent
issue of New Equity Shares by the Resulting Company to the sharehoiders of the
Demerged Company;

(ii) Reduction and cancellation of the existing paid-up share capital of the Resulting
Company;

(iii) Listing of equity shares of Resulting Company on the Stock Exchanges; and

(iv) various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

(c) Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of ald subject to the provisions
of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall without any application or deed, issue aid
allot New Equity Shares of face value of INR 10/- each, credited as fully paid up, to the
extent indicated below, to the equity shareholders holding fully paid up equity shares of
the Demerged Company and whose name apPear in the register of members of the
Demerged Company as on the Record Date or to such of their respective heirs, executors,
administrators or other legal representatives or other successors in title as may be
recognized by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company in the following
proportion, subject to the Clause 1 1.5 and Clause I 1.6 of the Scheme:

"1 (One) equitg share of the face ualue of INR 1O/- each fullg paid-up of the Resulting
Compang stall be issued and allotted for euery 1 (One) equitg share of face ualue INR 1O/ -

each fullg paid up held bg equitg sharetnlders of the Demerged. Compang. '("Sharc
Entltlencnt, Ratlo")

(d) KSR Footwear Limited shall apply for listing of its equity shares on National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited, in terms of and in compliaace of SEBI
Circular and other relevant provisions as may be applicable.

(e) The Scheme sha-ll be effective from the Appointed Date and shall be operative from the
Effective Date.

(f) The Scheme is subject to the approvals and sanctions as mentioned in the Scheme.

RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

The Demerged Company has 2 (two) distinct businesses viz. (i) Retail Business and (ii)
Distribution Business. The retail business operates through 848 retail stores (as on June 30,
2023]' arrd caters to the middle and upper middle-income consumers, while the distribution
business operates through a wide network of 732 distributors (as on June 30, 2O23) selling
to multi-brand-outlets across India and caters to lower and middle-income consumers. The
transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking comprising of Distributio-ryflgginess into

q
a)
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the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme sha-lI be in the interest of a.ll concerned
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, creditors, employees and general public, in
the following ways:

(i) The Demerged Undertaking and the Remaining Business (as defined in the Scheme)
address different market segments with divergic dynamics in terms of business strateS/,
customer set and distinct capital requirements. The tralsfer of the Demerged
Undertaking into the Resulting Company will enable both the Demerged and Resulting
Company to focus on their activities in the respective segments. This would help to
improve their competitiveness, operational efficiency, agility and strengthen their
position in relevaat markets.

(ii) The nature of risk, competition, challenges, opportunities, market segment, target
customer and business methods for the Distribution Business is separate and distinct
from the Remaining Business carried out by the Demerged Company.

(iii) The segregation of the business vertical shall enable them to move forward
independently, with specia.lization building on their respective capabilities. It wiil a.lso

help to channelize resources required for all the businesses to focus on the growing
businesses and attracting right talent and providing enhanced growth opportunities to
existing taient in line with a sharper strategic focus on each business segment under
separate entities.

(iv) The Scheme will also enable tlle Demerged Company and the Resulting Compaly to
focus and enhance their respective management structure ensuring better and more
efficient management control.

(v) Bifurcation of these businesses will enable unlocking value of each vertical thereby
paving way for focused growth with a view to create signiflcant stakeholder value, will
attract distinct investor base and at the same time allow investors to allocate their
portfolio into separate entities, focused on the distinct entities. Further, it will enable
independent and distinct capital allocation approach and balance sheet management
based on the distinct needs of each business.

(vi) Thus, the demerger would help in achieving the desired operating structure and shall
inter alia have following benefits:

. Create sector focused companies;

. Attract business specific investors;
o Streamline the management structure;
o Unlock value for shareholders;
. Ring-fence businesses from each other;
. Better risk management; arrd
o Better Management Bandwidth utilization.

RISKS IN RELATION TO THE FIRST OFFER
The Company is not offering any shares through Initia-1 Public Offer, to
risk(s) in relation to first offer is ot Appltcable.

the Public. Hence,

GENERAL RISKS
Investment in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors
should not invest any funds unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment.

q
(,/)

trAT

3

143



Investors are advised to read the risk factors carefully before taking any investment decision.
For taking any investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of Khadim
India Limited, KSR Footwear Limited and the Scheme, including the risks involved. The equity
shares of KSR Footwear Limited have not been recommended or approved by the Securities
aid Exchange Board of India ('SEBII / Stock Exchanges, nor does SEBI / Stock Exchanges
guaJantee the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of the Disclosure Document. Specific
attention of the investors is invited to the section titled lnternal Risk Factors'at Page 9 of this
Disclosure Document.

PROCEDURE
The procedure with respect to public issue / offer would not be applicable as the issue of
equity shares by KSR Footwear Limited is proposed only to the shareholders of Khadim India
Limited pursuant to the Scheme. Hence, the procedure with respect to Bid-Cum-Application
Form, Red Herring Prospectus and General Information Document etc. are Not Applicable

PRICE BAND, MINIMUM BID LOT & INDICATTVE TIMELINES
Not Applicable

PRICE INFORM ATION OF BRLM's*

Issue Name Name of
Merchant
Banker

+/- 7o change in
closing price,
(+/- % change in
closing
benchmark)-
30th calendar
davs from listing

+ / - ok change in
closing price, (+/-. %o

change rn ctosmg
benchmark)- g0th
calendar davs from
listing

+ f - o/o change in closing
orice- l+ / - %o chanee in
blosirig'benchmar'k; -
l80th calendar days
from listing

NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA

* Disclosures subject to recent 7 issues (initial public offeings) in anrent financial gear and tuo precedirlg

Name of BRLM and coatact detalls
Itelephoae aad emell ldl of each BryM

NA

Name of Synd icate Members NA

In case of issues by Small and Medium Enterprises under Chapter IX, details of the market
maker to be included

4

NAName of Registrar to the Issue ead
contact details (telephone aad emall ld)

M/s. Agarwal & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Finn Registratioa l{umber: 3232lOE
Address: 2 1A, Shakespeare Sarani
Sth Floor, Flat 8D, Kolkata - 7OOO|7
Emall: agarwa.ls.associates@gmail.com
Tel: 033 4064 9046

Name of Credtt Ratlag Ageacy and
the ratirg or gradlng obtaiaed, lf aly

NA

NASelf-Certifled Syadlcate Batrks

NA

financtal gears managed bg each Merchant Banker uith common issues disclosed' once.

Name of Statutory Audltor

NA

Name of Debenture trustee' lf aaY.
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Non Syadlcate Reglstered
Brokers

NA

Details regardlng website address(esf/
link(s) from which the ltrv€stor can
obtain list of registrar to lssue and
share transfer agents, depository
participants and stock brokers who can
accept appllcation from iavestor (as
appllcablel

NA

DETAILS OF OFS BY PROMOTER(S)/ PROMOTER GROUP/ OTHER SELLING
SHAREHOLDERS (upto o naimun of l0 selljyg s harehol ders)

DETAILS OF WACA OF ALL SHARES TRANSACTED OVER THE TRAILING EIGHTEEN
MONTHS FROM THE DATE OF RHP

Not Applicable

PROMOTER OF KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
sl.
No.

Name Individual /
Corporate

1 Khadim
India
Limited

Corporate Khadim lndia Limited was incorporated on 3rd December,
1981 as a private company limited by shares under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 under the name and
style of "S. N. Footwear Industries Private Limited".
Subsequently, with effect from 17th April, 1998, the name
was changed to 'Khadim Chain Stores Private Limited".
Thereafter, the Demerged Company was converted into a
public limited company. Upon conversion into public
limited company, with effect from 24th June, 2005, the
narne was changed to "Khadim Chain Stores Limited".
Thereafter, again with effect from 26th August, 2005, the
name was changed to its present name, "Khadim India
Limited".

Khadim India Limited is a pubLic listed company within the
meaning of the Companies Act, 2013 having CIN:
L19129W8 i98l PLC034337. Its Registered Oflice is at 7th
Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park, 08 Major Arterial Road, Block-
AF, New Town (Raj arhat), Kolkata - 7OO 156.

Ktradim India Limited is engaged in the business of footwear
and accessories.

The Equity Shares of Khadim India Limited are listed on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited.

Not Applicable

Experlence
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY OF KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Company Ovenriew KSR Footwear Limited was incorporated on August 22,2023 as

a public limited company under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 having CIN: U46413W82O23PLC264443.

Its Registered Oflice is at Flat No. 4A, 4tn. Floor, Ka.lyani
Complex, P-22, Block-A, Bangur Avenue, Kolkata-7Ooo55. KSR
Footwear Limited is a Wtrolly-owned Subsidiary of Khadim India
Limited and it is engaged in the business of manufacturing and
wholesaling of footwear and accessories.

Product / senrice olferiag

Rcvenue segmeutation by
product / service offerlng

Geographles served
Not Applicable

Revenue segmeutation by
geographies
Key
Indlcators

Performance Not Applicable, since KSR Footwear Limited is yet to commence
its business o ations.

Client prollle or industrles
served

Not ApplicableRevenue segmeatatioo in
terms of top 5/ 1O cllents or
industries
Intellectual Property, if
any

Not Applicable

Market share Nil

Manufacturing pl,ant, if
any

Nil

Employee strength Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all Tra-nsferring employees
(as defined in the Scheme) as on the Effective Date shall be
deemed to have become employees of KSR Footwear Limited.

Presently, KSR Footwear Limited has no employees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Other
Dlrectorships

Deslgnatlon
(Iadependent
/ Wholetlme
/ E:recutlve
/ l{omirree)

Experience and
Educational Qualifi cation

sl.
No.

Name

Indian Com
1. Khadim India

Limited
2. Storyscope

Films Private
Limited

3. Khadim Estate
Advisors

es:Director Mr. Rittick Roy Burman is a Whole-
time Director of Khadim India
Limited with effect from November
2019. Prior to his appointment as a
Whole-time Director, he held various
roles within Khadim India Limited
for a tenure of three years. Notably,
he served as the Head

1

KSR Footwear Limited is yet to co[lmence its business
operations.

Mr. Rittick
Roy
Burmal
(DIN:
08ss7366)

6
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Merchaadising & New Initiatives,
overseeing the long-term stratery of
Khadim India Limited and driving
new ventures and initiatives. His
diverse experience across different
departments of Khadim India
Limited has provided him vdth a
comprehensive understanding of the
business.

He holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Commerce from the University of
Calcutta. He is also a Management
Graduate from Universit5r of
California, Berkeley.

Khadim Shoe
Bangladesh
Limited

1

Private
Limited

Indian Companies:
1. Khadim India

Limited
2. Storyscope

Films Private
Limited

Director Mr. Ritoban Roy Burman is a Non-
Executive, Non-Independent
Director of Khadim India Limited
w.e.f. December 74, 2017. He joined
Khadim India Limited in 20 13 as
Manager-Marketing and served in
this capacity till November 2O 17.
During this period, he gained good
exposure in various aspects of
footwear marketing. Since then, he
has been an integral part of Khadim
India Limited, contributing his
valuable expertise across different
facets of the business of Khadim
India Limited.

He holds a Bachelor's Degree in Mass
Communication from St. Xavier's
College, Kolkata.

2 Mr.
Ritoban
Roy
Burman
(DIN:
08020765)

Forei.qn
Companies:

1. Khadim Shoe
Bangladesh
Limited

Mr.
Suman
Barman
Roy (DIN:
0728ssoo)

Director Mr. Sumal Barman Roy is presently
acting as Strategic Advisor to
Khadim India Limited (KIL).

Mr. Suman Barman Roy joined KIL
group in 1991. During his career of
more than three decades at KIL, he
had handled wide rzrnge of
responsibilities in various areas
including management,
administration, finance,

(
c

a4
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Foreisn
Companies:

Prior to his current role, he held
various responsible position in KIL
including Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Finarrcial Officer of the
Company.
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manufacturing, operations
strategic planning.

and

Before joining the KIL group, he was
associated with lovelock & Lewes,
Chartered Accountants, in
accounting and audit functions,
which since merged with PWC.

He is a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and also holds a Bachelor's
Degree in Commerce from St.
Xavier's College, Kolkata.

OBJECTS OF THE SCHEME

Brief objects of the Scheme is demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
(as defrned in the Scheme) of Khadim India Limited into KSR Footli/ear Limited, on a going
concern basis, in accordance with the Scheme, under section 23O to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Scheme also provides for various other matters consequent and incidenta.l thereto.

The Rationale of the Scheme is set under the heading "Details of the Scheme" of this
document.

Details of means of finance: Not Applicable

Detalls and reasons for noa-deployment or delay la deployment of proeeeds or changes
ln utilisatioa of lssue proceeds of past publlc lssues / rights issue, lf aay, in the
preceding 1O years: Not Applicable

Name of monitoring agency, if any: Not Applicable

Terms of Issuance of Coavertible Security, if any: Not Applicable

PRE.SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
sl.
No.

Particulars Pre-Scheme
number of

Shares

Pre-Scheme
perceatage of
shareholdiag

1 Promoter and Promoter Group 10,000* 100%

2 Public NIL NIL
Total 10,ooo 100%

* Held bg Khadim India Limited (including 6 shares held bg indiuidual shareholders holding 1

equitg share each as a Nominee Shareholders of Khadim India Limited, as per the stotutory
requirement) .

Number / amount of cqulty shares proposed to be sold by sellilg shareholders, if any:
Not Applicable

8
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AUDITED FINANCIALSI OF KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST
MARCH,2024

Particulars Amount (INRI
Revenue from operations Nil

Total Income Nil

Net Profit / (Inss) before tax and extraordinarJi items (1,s3,723)

Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items (t,53,723)

Equity Share Capital 1,O0,000

Other Equity (r,53,723)

Net worth (s3,723],

Basic earnings per share (lNR per share) (25.t6],

Diluted earnings per share (lNR per share)

Return on Net Worth (%) Nil

Net asset value per share (lNR per share) (s.37)

Notes:

1 . KSR Footwear Limited was incorporated on August 22,2023. Hence, the first financial year
of KSR Footwear Limited is from August 22,2023 to 31st March, 2024, in accordance with
Section 2(41) of the Act.

2. Net worth has been computed as per Section 2(57) of the Act.
3. Return on net worth. (%) has been arrived at by dividing Profrt for the period by Net worth.
4. Net asset value per share has been arrived at by dividing Net worth by the number of

outstanding Equity Shares.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1. The compaly is subject to risks associated witJ: expansion into new geographic maJkets.
Any inability to expand into new geographic markets or penetrate into existing markets
may adversely affect our growth and future prospects.

2. We will have to rely on our distributors for distribution business. Any failure to maintain
relationships with such third parties could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial condition. Any delay or default in payment from our distributors
could adversely impact our profits and alfect our cash flows. Our inability to maintain an
optimal level of inventory with our distributors may impact our operations adversely.

3. Failure to successfully procure raw materials or to identify new raw material suppliers
could adversely aJlect us.

4. Our results of operations may be materialty adversely a-ffected by our failure to anticipate
and respond to changes in fashion trends and consumer preferences in a timely manner.

q
<./)

+K TA A

9

(2s.16)

5. Inability to attract and retain high quatity talent, inadequate training & development, and
high attrition may adversely affect business operations and growth prospects of the
comPanY' ,<?;;:\
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6. We depend on third parties for a major portion of our transportation needs. Any disruptions
may adversely affect our operations, profitability, reputation and market position.

7. We operate in a highly competitive environment and may not be able to maintain our
market position, which may adversely impact our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

8. We may be subject to claims with respect to our intellectual property and our efforts to
protect our intellectua-1 property may not be sufficient.

9. Our business operations may be materially adversely affected by strikes or work stoppages
economic, political and other prevailing conditions in India and by changes in
environmental, hea-lth aod safety, taxation and labour laws.

10. Negative impact in the quality or reputation of the compaly's brands on account of negative
publicity or misinformation in any manner whatsoever could have al adverse impact on
the business of the Company.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS
A. Total number of outstanding litigations against KSR Footwear Limited and amount

involved:
Name
of
Entity

Criminal
Proceedings

Statutory or
Regulatory
Proceedings

Disciplinary
action by
SEBI I
Stock
Exchanges
against
Promoters

Material
Civil
Litigation

Aggregate
Amount
involved
(lNR in
million)

KSR Footwear Limited (KFL)
By KFL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL N,A
Against KFL NIL NIL NIL N,A
Directors
By the
Directors of
KFL

NIL NIL NIL

Against the
Directors of
KFL

NIL NIL NIL NIL N,A

Promoter
By the
Promoters
of KFL

NIL NIL NIL NIL 1s 338.19-

NIL 5 NIL NIL 1$ 61 3.19-

Subsidiaries
By
Subsidiaries
Against
Subsidiaries
Notes:
*To the extent ascertainable.
$Civil litigalions involving amount of more than the materiality threshold [as per Regulation
3O of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 20 151

'to

eq

KATA.

10

Tax
Proceedings

NIL NIL

NIL NIL N.A.

NIL

Against the
Promoters
of KFL

Not Applicable as KSR Footwear Limited does not have any subsidiary.
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B. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against KSR Footwear Limited and
amount involved: None

C. Regulatory or disciplinary actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchanges against Promoter of
KSR Footwear Limited (i.e., Khadim India Limited) in last 5 financial years including
outstanding action, if any - None

D. Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoter of KSR Footwear
Limited (i.e., Khadim India Limited): None

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION AS PER KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED: None

For and on behalf of KSR Footwear Limlted

ttick Roy rman
Director
DIN: 08537366

Date: July 05,2024
Place: Kolkata

DISCLAIMER
The approval given by the Stock Exchanges should not in arry malner be deemed or construed
that the Scheme has been approved by the Stock Exchanges; and / or the Stock Excha-nges
do not in any ma-nner warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness ofthe details
provided for the Resulting Company; does not in any manner take any responsibility for the
financial or other soundness of the Resulting Company, its promoters, its management etc.

DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY
We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 20 13 and the guidelines
/ regulations issued by the Government of India or the guidelines / regulations issued by the
SEBI established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992,
as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in the Disclosure
Document is contra4z to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or the rules made or guidelines or regulations issued
thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify that all the statements in this Disclosure
Document are true and correct.

(
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 Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited 
605, Sixth Floor, Centre Point, Andheri Kurla Road 
J.B. Nagar, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400059 
Tel.: +91-22-49730394| Fax: NA 
Email: info@saffronadvisor.com 
Website: www.saffronadvisor.com 
CIN No.: U67120MH2007PTC166711 

 

 SEBI Registration No: INM000011211 

  

Date: July 06, 2024 

To, 

 

The Board of Directors,  

Khadim India Limited 

7th Floor, Tower C, DLF IT Park,  

08 Major Arterial Road,  

Block-AF, New Town (Rajarhat),  

Kolkata – 700156, West Bengal 

India 

The Board of Directors,  

KSR Footwear Limited 

Flat No. 4A, 4th Floor,  

Kalyani Complex,  

P-22, Block-A, Bangur Avenue,  

North 24 Parganas -700055, West Bengal, 

India  

 

Dear Sir / Madam, 

 

Sub: Due Diligence Certificate on the adequacy and accuracy of the Disclosure Document  

comprising of applicable information pertaining to  the Resulting Company in the format 

specified for Disclosure Document as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 

(“SEBI ICDR") read with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/P/CIR/2023/93 

dated June 20, 2023 (“SEBI Master Circular”) and SEBI Circular No 

SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 04, 2022 (“Disclosure Document”)  

 

This is with reference to our engagement with the Demerged Company for, inter alia, certifying the 

accuracy and adequacy of the Disclosure Document to be sent to the shareholders of the Demerged 

Company pursuant to SEBI Master Circular in the matter of proposed Scheme of arrangement 

(“Scheme”) between Khadim India Limited (“Demerged Company” or “KIL”) and KSR Footwear 

Limited (“Resulting Company” or “KFL”) and their respective shareholders pursuant to Sections 230 

– 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with section 66 and rules framed thereunder and other relevant 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as may be applicable, and Section 2(19AA) and other relevant 

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as applicable.  

 

We have been provided with the Disclosure Document dated July 05, 2024, prepared by the Resulting 

Company. The Disclosure Document will be circulated to the Equity Shareholders of the Demerged 

Company as part of the explanatory statement to the notice of the NCLT convened meeting of equity 

Shareholders at the time of seeking their approval to the Scheme.  

 

Based on the information, undertakings, certificates, confirmations and documents provided to us by 

the Resulting Company, we hereby confirm that the disclosures made in the Disclosure Document are 

true, fair and adequate to enable the investors to make a well informed decision as to the proposed 

Scheme and such disclosures are in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, 

SEBI Master Circular, SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/14 dated February 

04, 2022, SEBI ICDR and other applicable provisions / legal requirements.  
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 Continuation Sheet 

 

                                                                  

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

CIN No.: U67120MH2007PTC166711        SEBI Registration No: INM000011211        Website: www.saffronadvisor.com        Email: info@saffronadvisor.com 

The above confirmation is based on the information furnished and explanations provided to us by the 

management of the Resulting Company, assuming the same is complete and accurate in all material 

aspects. We have relied upon financials, information and representations furnished to us on an as is 

basis and have not carried out an audit of such information. Our scope of work does not constitute an 

audit of financial information and accordingly we are unable to and do not express an opinion on the 

fairness of any such financial information referred to in the Disclosure Document. This certificate is 

based on the information as at July 05, 2024. This certificate is a specific purpose certificate issued in 

terms of the SEBI Master Circular and hence, it should not be used for any other purpose or transaction. 

The certificate is not, nor should it be construed to be, a certification of compliance of the Scheme with 

the provisions of the applicable Law including company, taxation and securities markets related laws 

or as regards to any legal implications or issues arising thereon, except for the purpose expressly 

mentioned herein.  

 

We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendation at all as to the Demerged Company’s  

and the Resulting Company’s underlying decision to effect the Scheme or as to how the holders of 

equity shares are secured or how the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company should vote at their 

meeting held in connection with the proposed Scheme.  

 

We do not express and should not be deemed to have expressed any views on any other terms of the 

Scheme or its success. We also express no opinion, and accordingly, accept no responsibility for or as 

to the financial performance of the Resulting Company following the consummation of the Scheme. 

We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendations at all (and accordingly take no 

responsibility) as to whether shareholders / investors should buy, sell or hold any stake in Demerged 

Company or any of its related parties (holding company/ subsidiaries/ associates etc.) 

 

For Saffron Capital Advisors Private Limited 

 

   
 

Amit Wagle 

Associate Director                           

Equity Capital Markets 
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The business presently undertaken by the Demerged Company comprises of the retail

business and the distribution business, both of which have different requirements and

are operated as separate business verticals, independent of each other.

The segregation of the distribution business is not likely to impact the revenue

generating capacity of the remaining business of the Demerged Company.

Further, the demerger ofthe distribution business would unlock value ofeach busrness

vertical of the Company thereby enhancing its business operations with more efficient

management control and independent strategies thus positively impacting its revenue

generating capacity of the remaining business.

For Khadim India Limited

d- 1A/o
Stddhartha Roy Burmaa

Chalrman & Managiag Dlrector

DIN: 00043715

Place: Kolkata

Date: July 05, 2024

@
frontoffi ce@khadims.com

g
0 -4009 0501 0 r']-4009 0500 \aww.khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED clN: l-rer2ewBle8rPlcor4rrT

RTGISTERED OfFICE : 7Tfl TLOOR, TOWER C. DLF lT PARK. 08 MArOR ARTERIAL ROAI, BLOCX AF. NEW ToWN (RA,AR[iAT), XOLXATA 7o0 156
CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEI, KOL(ATA - 7o0 o87

KHADIM

Impact of scheme on revenue generatlnE caoacitv of DemerEed Companv:

a

Annexure XV(b)
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE ('COMMITTEE') OF KHADIM INDIA LIMITED
RECOMMENDING THE DRAFT SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT BETWEEN KHADIM INDIA
LIMITED, KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOTDERS AND CREDITORS
HELD ON SEPTEMBER 29, 2023 AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF KHADIM INDIA TIMITED

Present - Directors / Members

Company Secretary & Head - Legal and Chief Finance Officer were also present at the
meeting.

L. Background

1. Dr. lndra Nath Chatterjee

2. Prof. (Dr.) Surabhi Banerjee

3. Mr. Alok Chauthmal Churiwala

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Audit Committee

otl-zlo09 0501 or3-4009 0500

L.7. A meeting of the Audit Committee ('Committee') was held on September 29,2023,
inter-alia, to co nsid er and if thought fit, recommend to the Board of Directors ('Board')
the proposed Scheme of Arrangement under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act'), between Khadim lndia Limited
(hereinafter referred to as'the Demerged Company'or'the Company'or'KlL'), KSR

Footwear Limited (hereinafter referred to as'the Resulting Company' or 'KFL') and
th eir respective shareholders and creditors under the provisions of the Act ('scheme').

The Appointed Date for the proposed Scheme is same as the Effective Date or such
other date as may be mutually agreed by the Companies.

The Effective Date for the proposed Scheme is the date which will be the first day of
the month following the month in which Companies mutually acknowledge in writing
that allthe conditions referred to in Clause 25.1 of the Scheme (as set out in paragraph
2.4 of this report) have occurred or have been fulfilled, obtained or waived, as

applicable, in accordance with this Scheme.

The Scheme will be presented before the NCLT under sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder and will also be in
compliance with section 2(19AA) of the lncome-tax Act, 1961 and Securities and
Exchange Board of lndia Master Circular No. Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-2/?/ClR/2O23l93 dated June 20, 2023 ('SEBI Master Circular').

a

7.2

7.3

L.4.

@
Eotrtof fice@lhadin3!.com www.khadims.com

KIIADIM INDIA LIMITED cr,r : Lrer2ewBrearplcorl3iT
R-EGISTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOoR TOWER C, DLF IT PARIq 08 MAIOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARIIAT). KOLXATA - 7oo 156

Clfi OFFICE : 74. LINDSAY STREET. roL(ATA - 7oo o87

KHADIM

1.5. ln terms of the SEBI Master Circular, a report from the Audit Committee is required
recommending the draft Scheme, taking into consideration, inter-alio, the Share
Entitlement Ratio Report (as defined hereinafter), and commenting on the need for
the scheme, rationale of the Scheme, impact of the Scheme on the shareholders, cost
benefit analysis ofthe Scheme and synergies of business ofthe entities involved in the

E

t

Annexure-D

Annexure XV(c)

162



K
KHADIM

Scheme. This report of the Committee is made in order to comply with the
requirements of the SEBI Master Circular.

2. The Salient Features of the Scheme:

The Scheme, inter-olio, provides for:

2.1. Demerger ofthe Distribution Business ('the Demerted Undertaking') ofthe Company,
as going concern into the Resulting Company, and subsequent reduction and
cancellation of the existing paid - up share capital of the Resulting company in
accordance with clause 12 of the Scheme.

2.2 The Appointed Date for the proposed Scheme is same as the Effective Date or such
other date as may be mutually agreed by the Companies.

2.3 The Effective Date for the proposed Scheme is the date which will be the first day of
the month following the month in which Companies mutually acknowledge in writing
that allthe conditions referred to in Clause 25.1ofthe Scheme (as set out in paragraph
point 2.4 of this report) have occurred or have been fulfilled, obtained or waived, as
applicable, in accordance with this Scheme

2.4. The Scheme is subject to various conditions precedent specified in the Scheme

Obtaining No-objection Certificate from the Stock Exchanges in relation to the
Scheme under Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of lndia
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (as

amended from time to time);

The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorrties in number and value
of such classes of persons including the respective shareholders and/or
creditors, if required, of the Parties, as may be directed by the NCLT or any
other Appropriate Authority as may be applicable;

The sanction of this Scheme by the NCLT under Sections 23Oto 232 of the Act,
and other applicable provisions, if any of the Act in favour of the Parties;

The certified copy of the order of the NCLT sanctioning the Scheme being filed
with the ROC by the Parties as may be applicable; and

Any other sanctions and orders as may be directed by the NCLT in respect of
the Scheme.

b

d

e t
2.5

@
frontoffi ce@lhadilrs.coln

The equity shares of the Company are listed on NSE and BSE. The Company shall be
filing the Scheme along with necessary information / documents with NSE and BSE for
their approval under Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

a E
ojj-!{x)q o5{)t 033-4009 050{) ww\r. kharlims. com

KIIADIM INDIA LIMITED cIN : Lrer2swBrssrPlcor{337

REctSfERED OFFrcE : 7TH FLOOR. TOWER C, Dlf IT PARK 08 MAIOR ARTERTAL ROAD" BIOCI( AF. NEW TOWN EAJAXiAL KOL(AIA - 7oo 156

CITY OFFICE : 7A. LINDSAY STREET. KOLXATA - rcO o87

a.
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Draft Scheme;

Share Entitlement Ratio Report dated September 29, 2OZ3 issued by
Mr. Vikram Kumar Singh, Registered Valuer under lBBl having Registration
No. lBBl/RV /06/2079/1,L320 (the Registered Valuer'), inter-atia,
recommending the share entltlement ratio ('Share Entitlement Ratio Report');

Fairness opinion dated September 29,2023 issued by Saffron Capital Advisors
Private Limited, Merchant Banker registered with the Securities and Exchange
Board of lndia ('SEBI') having Registration No. 1NM00007727L, on the Share
Entitlement Ratio as mentioned in the Share Entitlement Ratio Report
('Fa irness Opinion');

An auditor's certificate dated September 29, 2023 submitted by M/s. Ray &
Ray, Chartered Accountants (Firm registration No. 301072E), Statutory
Auditors ofthe Company, certifying the accounting treatment contained in the
Scheme ('Auditor Certif icate');

Undertaking dated September 29, 2O23 by the Company Secretary &
Head- Legal, confirming the non-a pplicability of the requirements under Para
A (10Xa) read with Para A (10Xb) of Part I of the SEBI Master Circular dated
June 20, 2023 relating to obtaining approval of the majority of public
shareholders.

Certificate dated September 29, 2023 from M/s. Ray & Ray, Chartered
Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the Company, certifying the undertaking in
relation to the non-a pplica bility of the requirements under Para A (10)(a) read
with Para A (10Xb) of Part I of the SEBI Master Circular dated June 20,2023
relating to obtaining approval of the majority of public shareholders.

3. Rationale of the Scheme:

The Demerged Company has 2 (two) distinct businesses viz. (i) Retail Business and (ii)
Distribution Business. The retail business operates through 848 retail stores (as on
June 30, 2023) and caters to the middle and upper middle-income consumers, while
the distribution business operates through a wide network of 732 distributors (as on
June 30, 2023) selling to mu lti-brand-outlets across lndia and caters to lower and
middle-income consumers. The transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as

defined in the Scheme) comprising of Distribution Business into the Resulting
Company pursuant to this Scheme shall be in the interest of all concerned

a

b

c

d

3.1.
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2.6. The report of the Audit Committee is made in order to comply with the requirements
of the SEBI Master Circular, after considering the following:

f.

t
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stakeholders including shareholders, customers, creditors, employees and general
public, in the following ways:

(ii) The nature of risk, competition, challenges, opportunities, market segment, target
customer and business methods for the Distribution Business (as defined in the
Scheme) is separate and distinct from the Remaining Business carried out by the
Demerged Company-

(iii) The segregation of the business vertical shall enable them to move forward
independently, with specialization building on their respective capabilities. lt will
also help to channelize resources required for all the businesses to focus on the
growing businesses and attracting right talent and providing enhanced growth
opportunities to existing talent in Iine with a sharper strategic focus on each
business segment under separate entities.

(iv) The Scheme will also enable the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
to focus and enhance their respective management structure ensuring better and
more efficient management control.

(v) Bif u rcation of these businesses will e na ble u n locking value of each vertical thereby
paving way for focused growth with a view to create significant stakeholder value,
will attract distinct investor base and at the same time allow investors to allocate
their portfolio into separate entities, focused on the distinct entities. Further, it
will enable independent and distinct capital allocation approach and balance sheet
management based on the distinct needs of each business.

(vi) Thus, the demerger would help in achieving the desired operating structure and
shall, inter alia, have following benefits:

Create sector focused companies;
Attract business specific investors;
Streamline the management structure;
Unlock value for sha reh old ers;

Ring-fence businesses from each other;
Better risk management; and
Better Management Eandwidth utilization

a

KHADIM

www.khadims.com
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(i) The Demerged Undertaking and the Remaining Business (as defined in the
Scheme) address different market segments with divergic dynamics in terms of
business strategy, customer set and distinct capital requirements. The transfer of
the Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company will enable both the
Demerged and Resulting Company to focus on their activities in the respective
segments. This would help to improve their competitiveness, operational
efficiency, agility and strengthen their position in relevant markets.

E
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3.2

3.3

)A

@
fioatomce@thadims-com

a Ei

The Audit Committee reviewed and noted the Share Entitlement Ratio recommended
in the Share Entitlement Ratio Report and confirmed the following ratio:

'1 (One) fully equity share of the t'oce volue of tNR 10/- eoch fully poid-up of the
Resulting Compony for every 1 (One) equity share of foce volue tNR 10/- eoch fully poid
up held by equity shoreholders of the Demerged Company."

The Fairness Opinion confirmed that the Share Entitlement Ratio as recommended by
the Registered Valuer, is fair and reasonable.

4. lmpact ofthe Scheme on the shareholders

4.7. Pursuant to the Scheme, in consideration for the Demerger, the Resulting Company
will issue its equity shares to the shareholders of the Demerged Company based on
the Valuation Report and in the same proportion in which the shareholders hold the
shares in the Demerged Company. The overall economic interest of the equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company shall remain the same in both the
Companies.

4.2. The provisions of this Scheme have also been drawn up to comply with the conditions
relating to 'Demerger' as defined under section 2(19AA) of the lncome Tax Act, 1961
and therefore, it may not have any tax implications.

4.3. Based on the above and as there is no proposed change in the shareholding pattern
of the Company pursuant to the Scheme, the Committee is of the informed opinion
that the proposed Scheme is in the best interests of the shareholders ofthe Company
and not detrimental to the interest of the shareholders, including the minority
sh areholders of the Company.

4.4. The Scheme would create sector focused companies, streamline the management
structure and unlock value for shareholders. Further, the need for the demerger and
rationale of the Scheme is set out in paragraph 3.1 of this report.

033-4009 0501 oll-4m19 0500 www.khadims.com
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The Audit Committee reviewed and confirmed the accounting treatment provided in
clause 14 of the Scheme which has been certified by the auditors of the Company.
Pursuant to the Scheme, in the books of the Demerged Company, the excess / deficit,
if any, of the net assets transferred to the Resulting Company after giving effect to
investment cancellation as mentioned in Clause 14.1.2 of the Scheme and elimination
of balances as mentioned in Clause 14.1.3 of the Scheme, shall be adjusted with the
Capital Reserve, General Reserve and Retained Earnings of the Demerged Company.
ln the books of the Resulting Company, the excess/deficit, if any, of the net assets
transferred to the Resulting Company after giving effect to Clause 14.1.6 and Clause
1.4.7.7 of the Scheme, shall be transferred to the Capital Reserve of the Resulting
Company.
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5

5. Cost benefit analysis ofthe Scheme:

5.1 Although the scheme would lead to incurring of some costs towards its
implementation, however, the benefits of the Scheme over a longer period are
expected to far outweigh such costs for the stakeholders of the Company.

Synergies of business of the entities involved in the Scheme are set out in paragraph
3.1 above

7. Recommendations of the Audit Committee

7.7. The Audit Committee after due deliberations and due consideration of all the terms
of the draft Scheme, Share Entitlement Ratio Report, Fairness Opinion, rationale of
the Scheme, accounting treatment, impact of the Scheme on the shareholders and
other stakeholders, cost benefit analysis of the Scheme and the specific matters
mentioned above, recommends the draft Scheme for favorable consideration by the
Board of the Company, the Stock Exchanges, SEBI and other applicable regulatory
a uthorities.

This report of the Committee is made in order to comply with the requirements of
Paragraph (A)(ZXc) of Part - I of the SEBI Master Circular after considering the
necessary documents.

For the Audit Committee of Khadim lndia timited

lndra Nath Chatterjee
Chairman - Audit Committee
DIN:00122677

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2023

www.khadims.com
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To,

The Manager,

The Department of Corporate Services,

BSE Limited,

P. J. Towers,

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Scrip code: 540775

Dear Sir / Madam,

Rules, 1957.

2. Details of Assets and Liabilities of the Demerged division ("Distribution Business") that are being transfened

NR in millions.

NR in millions

3. ln connection with the above application, we hereby confirm that:

a There will be no change in Share Capital ofthe Resulting Company tillthe listing of the equity shares of the Resulting

Company on BSE Limited

@
frontomte@khadims.conl

ri!A
03l-4009 0501

E'
wlvrv.khadims.com0ll-4009 0

sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the securities and Exchange Board of lndia (Listing obligations and

oir.rosure Requirements) iegulations, 2015 lor the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim lndia

Limited (,,the iorprny" or "D.merg.d Corpany"l and KSR Footwear Limited ("Resulting Company") and their

reip..tive .frurefroldeis and creditois under iections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013 ("Scheme")

1. The Equity shares issued by the Resulting company pursuant to the scheme of anangement shallte listed on the BSE

Li;ited, s;bject to SEBt granting retaxatio-n from applicafitity under Rule 19(2) (b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation)

K
KHADIM

KHADTM INDIA LIMI

30s June , 2023Liabilities
469.27Lease liabilities

7.65Other non-current liabilities
50.00Borrowin S

313.82ablesTrade
9.72Other fi nancial liabilities
s.61Other cunent liabilities

856.07Sub Total

30u June , 2023Assets
451.36, Plant and ut ment

2.62work - in - rESSCa
443.34Ri ht of Use Asset

10.31Other financial assets
21.57other non-current assets

633.86lnventories
519.88Trade receivables

1.72uivalentsCash and cash
11.53other current assets

REGISTERED 0FFICE : 7TH FL0oR, TOWER C' DLF lT PARK' oB MAJOR ARTERIA-L ROAD' BLOCK AF' NEW ToWN (R

CITY 0FFICE | 7A, LINDSAY STREEr, KoLKATA - 7oo o87

CIN : Ll9129WBl98l PLC0I43:17

AJARHAT), KOLKATA . ?OO 156

2,096.19Sub Total

Annexure- S1

Annexure XV(d)
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b. The shares allotted by the Resulting Company pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories

system till listing / trading permissionis given by the designated stock exchange. Further Clause 13.1 of the scheme

provides for the same.

4. percentage of Net Worth ofthe Company, that is being transferred in the form of Demerged Undertaking and percentage

wise cont-ribution of the Demerged division to the total turnover and income of the Company in the last two years as

per the following format:

statement showing Turnover (Revenue from operations), Profit/(Loss) after tax for th-e. financial year

ended 31rt trtarcn, Io23 and 3lit March, 2022 and Net worth as at 3'l"t ilarch, 2023 and 31't March, 2022

INR in millions

Notes:

- Total Net Worth, Revenue and proflt / (Loss) is based on audited financial statements of the Company for the financial years

ended 3'1st March, 2023 and 31st March, 2022

- Net Worth, Revenue and profit / (Loss) of the Demerged division is based on management certilied financials for the

Demerged'Undertaking as on stst March, 2023 and 31si March,2022.Ihe Net Worth has been calculated on the basis of

the neGssets of the division i.e , total assets as reduced by total liabiiities

- Net Worth of the remaining undertaking/ divisions is calculated by reducing the net worth of the demerged division from the

total net worth of the Company as whole

- The Net Worth of the company has been computed as per section 2(57) of the companies Act, 2013'

- The above turnover consists of revenue from operations

For Khadim lndia mited
a4t)

A
n]
Ulndrajit Chau n

Chief Financial Oflicer
lCAl Membership No.: 61162

PIace: Kolkata

Date: October'19,2023

@
frontom(e@khadims.com

E
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KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

% to totalProfiU(Loss)
after Tax

%to
total

Turnovero/o 1o

total
Net WorthFinancial Year

Particulars

(51.08%)(8e 42)33,10%2,185.1S66,34%1,334.0122-23

(17.31)40.14%2,372.3462.99%1 ,155.0221.22

Demerged

division

'151.08%264.4966.90%4,417 .45JJ.bb%676.9222-23

126.80Y"81.903,538.4621-22

100.00%175.07100 00%6,602.64100.00%2,010.93

64.59100.00%5,910.80100.00%1,833.74

Total

REGISTEREDoFFIcE:TTHFLooR,ToWERC,DLFITPARK,osMAJ0RARTERIALRoAD,BLoCKAF,NEWToWN(RAJARHAT),K0L(ATA-70o156
CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEr, KOLKATA - 7oo o87

a

(26.80%)

59.86%37.010/o678.72

Other
divisions

22-23

100.00%21.22
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ANNEXURE Y

Additional Requirements

@
frontomce@khadims.com 013-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 www.khadims,com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED CIN I LI 9l29WB1981 PLC0]4317

Particulars Yes/ No/ Not
Applicable

Annexure
(Document
Provided)

Apportionment of losses ofthe listed company
among the companies involved in the

Scheme.

Not Applicable Since there are no

accumulated losses

being hansfened to
the Resulting

Company

2 Details of assets, liabilities, revenue and net

worth of the companies involved in the

Scheme, both pre and post Scheme of
Arrangement, along with a write up on the
history of the Demerged Undertaking /
Transferor Company certilied by Chartered

Accountant (CA).

Yes A Certificate

issued in this
regard by the
Statutory

Auditors, CA, is

attached as

Annexure Y1

3 Any type of arrangement or agreement
between the demerged company / resulting

company / merged / amalgamated company/
creditors / shareholders / promoters /
directors/etc., which may have any

implications on the Scheme of Arrangement
as well as on the shareholders of listed entity,

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Since we are not

adjusting the

difference between

assets and liabilities

with the available

reserves in the books

of the Demerged

Company

4 Reasons along with relevant provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 or applicable laws for
proposed utilization of reserves viz, Capital

Reserve, Capital Redemption Reserve,

Securities premium, as a free reserve,

certified by CA.

Since no addition is

being made to

reserves in the books

of the Demerged

Company

5 Built up {or reserves viz. Capital Reserve,

Capital Redemption Reserve, Securities
premium, certilied by CA.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Since there are no

notional and/or
unrealized reserves

Nature of reserves viz. Capital Reserve,

Capital Redemption Reserve, whether they

are notional and/or unrealized, certified by

cA.
Not Applicable Since there are no

accumulated losses
7 The built up of the accumulated losses over

the years, certified by CA,

Yes Accounting

Treatment certilicate
has been aftached

as Annexure 11 and

l2 of the application

Relevant sections of Companies Act, 2013

and applicable lndian Accounting Standards

and Accounting treatment, certified by CA.

Details ofshareholding of companies involved

in the scheme at each stage, in case of
composite scheme.

Not ApplicableI

REGISTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT)' KOLKATA - 7OO I56
CITY OFFICE : 7A. LINDSAY STREEI, KOLKATA - 700 087

S. No. Remarks

1

6.

8.

Since not a
composite Schemeffi

Annexure XVI
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S. No. Particulars Yes/ No/ Not
Applicable

Remarks An nexure
(Document
Provided)

10 Whether the Board of unlisted company has

taken the decision regarding issuance of

Bonus shares. lf yes, provide the details

thereof. lf not, provide the reasons thereof.

No

11 List of comparable companies considered for
comparable companies' multiple method.

12 Share Capital builtup in case of scheme of
arrangement involving unlisted entity/entities,

certified by CA.

Yes A Certificate

issued in this
regard by the

Statutory

Auditors, CA, is

attached as

Annexure Y2

13 Not Applicable

14. Comparison of revenue and net worth of
demerged undertaking with the total revenue

and net worth of the listed entity in last three

financial years.

Yes Annexure Y3

The detailed
rationale for
arriving at the swap
ratio is stated in the
Share Entitlement
Ratio Report.

The Share
Entitlement Ratio
Report is attached
herewith as

Annexure - Bl of
the application.

Detailed rationale for aniving atthe swap ratio

for issuance ofshares as proposed in the draft
Scheme of Arrangement by the Board of
Directors of the lisled company.

The basis for division

of assets and

liabilities between

divisions has been

the assets and

liabilities as

attributable to the

respective divisions,

16, ln case of Demerger, basis for division of
assets and liabilities between divisions of
Demerged entity.

Refer Para lll of
draft Scheme

attached as

Annexure A of
the application

There will no change

in the value or No. of
shares held by public

shareholders pre and
post Scheme of
Anangement

17 How the Scheme will be benelicial to public

shareholders ofthe Listed entity and details of
change in value of public shareholders pre

and post Scheme of Arrangement.

Not Applicable'18 Tax/other liability/benefit arising to the entities

involved in the scheme, if any.

@
frontofl ice@khadims.com

a E
033-4009 050t 033-4009 0500
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ARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO I56

Not Applicable

Any action taken/pending by

Govt./Regulatory body/Agency against all the

entities involved in the scheme.

Yes15.

-^-
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S. No. Particulars Yes/ No/ Not
Applicable

Remarks Annexure
(Document
Provided)

19 Not Applicable

20 Confirmation from valuer that the valuation

done in the Scheme is in accordance with

applicable valuation standards.

Not Applicable

21 Confirmation from Company that the scheme
is in compliance with the applicable securities

laws.

Yes Annexure Y4

Confirmation that the arrangement proposed

in the Scheme is yet to be executed.

Annexure Y4

For Khadim lndia Limited

lndrajit C n
Chief Financ Otficer
lCAl Membership No. F6'1162

Date: October 19, 2023

Place: Kolkata

@ 7q- E
frontoflice@khadims.com 033-4009 0501 013-4009 0so0 www.khadims,com
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CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEI, K0LKATA - 700 o87

Revenue, PAT and EBIDTA (in value and
percentage terms) details of entities involved

in the Scheme for all the number of years

considered for valuation, Reasons justifying

the EBIDTA / PAT margin considered in the
Valuation Report.

p"t"-Jt i
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RAY& RAY

To,

The Board of Direclors,
Khadim lndia Limited,
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF lT Park,
08 Malor Arterial Road, Block - AF
New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 700 156

lndependent Auditor's Certificate certifying details to be submitted by the
Company in case of demerger where there is no change in shareholding pattern of
Demerged company and the Resulting company and a mirror image is created in
the Resulting Company.

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our Engagement Letter dated
October 6, 2023 wilh Khadim lndia Limited and for the purpose of the draft Scheme of
Arrangement between Khadim India Limited (hereinafter the 'Company' or the
'Demerged Company' or 'KlL'), KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Resulting Company' or 'KFL') and their respective shareholders and creditors under
Sections 230 lo 232 and other appljcable provisions of the Companies Act, 20'13 ("the
Act") ['Scheme'].

2. Statements containing details to be submitted by the Company in case of demerger
where there is no change in shareholding pattern of the Demerged company and the
Resulting company and a mirror image is created in the Resulting Company duly
signed by the authorized signatory of the Company ('the Statements') is attached as an
Annexure - 1A, 1B and 2 to this Certificate, which we have initialled for rdentification
pu rpose only.

Management's responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
2lPlClRl2O23l93 dated June 20. 2023 ('SEBI Circular') as amended, it is our
responsibility to examine the Statements and provide a reasonable assurance that the
amounts in the Statements are prepared in accordance with Section '133 of the Act,

MUMBAI o NEW DELHI. BANGALORE. CHENNAI

E-mail : raynrayho@rayn.ay.net

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Webel Bhavan, Ground Floor,
Block - EP & GP, Sector V
Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
Tel. : +91-33-4064 8'107 / 8108 / 8109
E-mail : raynray@raynray.net

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the Statements is that of the ltilanagement of
the Company, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other
relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant lo the preparation and
presentation of the Statements and applying appropriate basis of preparation, making
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances and ensuring that the Statements
are correct and free from error.

Auditor's responsibility

Annexure Y1
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C}Lq.RIERED ACCOUNIANTS

read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (the ,applicable

Indian Accounting Standards'), and Other Generally Accepted Accounting principles.

5. we carried out our examination of the statements in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Reports or certificates for special purposes issued by the lnstitute of
chartered Accountants of India (lcAl) and standards on Auditing specified under
section 143('10) of the Act, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate.
The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the code
of Ethics issued by the lCAl.

Opinion

Restriction on Use

For Ray & Ray
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 301072E

4r;-+-rra-
(Amitava Chowdhury)
Pa rtner
l\4embership No: 056060
UDIN: 23056060BGWPNC851 4

Place: Kolkata
Date:13.10.2023

6. we have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on euality
Control (SQC) '1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of
Historical Financial lnformation and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements. Further our examination did not extend to any other parts and aspects
of a legal or proprielary nature in the aforesaid Undertaking.

7. Based on our examination, as above, we are of the opinion that the amounts in the
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules, 20.15 (the
'applicable lndian Accounting Standards'), and Other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

8. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company to enable them to comply with
the requirements of the SEBI Circular which requires them to submit this Certificate
along with the Statements for onward submission by the Company to Securities and
Exchange Board of lndia ('SEBI'), BSE Limited ('BSE') and National Stock Exchange
of lndia Limited ('NSE') and such other statutory or regulatory authorities as may be
required in connection with the Scheme. This Certificate should not be used for any
other purpose or to be distributed to any other parties without our prior written
consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this Certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.
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Annexure - 1A

Details of Assets, Liability, Revenue and Net Worth of the companies involved jn the
Scheme, both pre and post Scheme of Arrangement

Khad im lndia Limited ('KlL')

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
INR in mrllions

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

o s
IiontolllLeCrl(hadrns.c0nr 0:lu-4009 0500 r!i!rv.khltdims.conr

KHATIM INDIA LIMIIED crN; Lrsrzer,yBre8rplco34r37

RE0ISTIRED OFFICE : 7TH FLoOR, TOWcR C, DLF lT PAR(. os MAJOR ARTIRIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN lRAlARtiAf). KOL(ATA - 7oo 156

- CITy OFrICE :74, LINOSAY STREET, KOLXATA - 7oo 087

Wkf"r n,,-offio,o,

Pre scheme
(As on June 3O,2O23)

Post schemeParticu lars

358.21

0.29

809.57

2.91

Property, Plant and Equipment

Capilal work - in - progress

Assets

Right of Use Asset 1.622.94 1 ,179.56
5.60 5.60

1.39 1.39

lntangible assets

lnvestments

207 56 197 .25Other Financial Assets

130.06Deferred tax assets (net) 130.06

20.85

/b J5

lncome tax assets (net)

Other non-current assets

20 85

97 .92

1 ,479.87lnventories 2.113.73

Trade receivables 2,009.00 I ,489.12

56.61

141 .90

Cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank balances

58.33

141 90

103.70Other financial assets 103 70

521 .92

7,858.87 5,762.68
Other current assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

1,183.351,233.35

1,933.40 1.464.13

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

1,29 I ?ONon-current Provasions

NitOther non-current liabilities 765

1 ,911.78Trade payables

140.65 130.93Other financial liabilities

39.7645.37Other current liabilities

1 .02 1 .02Current provisions

5,58 8.33 4,732.26Total Liabilites
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INR in m llions

Reven ue from o pe ratio ns
INR in millions

1. The post Scheme Assets, liab:lities, Net Worth and Revenue of KIL has been computed
considering the accounting treatment contained in the Scheme whlch is sublect to Securities
Exchange Board of lndia (SEBI) and National company Law Tribunal (NCLT) app.oval.

2. The post Scheme Assets, Liabilities, Net Worth and Revenue are indicative and may change
basis actual data as on etfective date

3. The Net Wo.ah of KIL has been computed as per Section 2(57) of the Companies Act,2013

adim ln ia Li ited

lnd ra,iit Cha
Chief Finan

h uri
Officer

lCAl fi{embership No.: 61162
INITIAL_LED FOR THE PURPOSE

OF INDENTIFICATION

$,T #,o"rDate: October '13, 2023
Place: Kolkata

@
frontorli(e@lhndims.i:om

-4"
0ll-4009 0501 0ll-4009 0500 lr!1'rv-khadims.tom

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED crN : Lr er 2ew$ r esr plcor(rrT

RECISTIRED OrFICE : 7IH rLOOR, TOWER C, DLF lT PARK, oB l\.lAJOR ART!aa:AL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW'[OWN {RA.jARilATl, KOL(ATA - 7ou t56
. CITY OFFICE:7A, LTNDSAY STREET, I(OLKATA - 7oo 087

Pa rticu la rs Pre Scheme
{As on June 30,2023)

Post Scheme

179.70

Share Capital

Equity Share Capital 179.10

Total share Capital (1)

Free reserves

179.7 0 179.70

Retained Earnings bzrr.lY b,lb JY

Tota! Free reserves (2) 625_39

Other Reserves

Securities Premium

Ni

1 ,2?1 .83

(1,240.12)

Total Other Reserves (3) 1 ,221 .83 (18.2e)

787.80Net worth (1 + 2+ 3) 2,027.92

Post SchemePa rticu lars

1,035.89Revenue from Operations

Statement of Net worth

Noles:

626.39

1 ,221 .83

Capital reserve on demerger

Pre Schemel
(As on June 30,2023)]

1,579.801
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
CI\ : L.;O1l l\\ g2{12l|i tl{r+.rl l

RLoISILRLII UFFICE : I-LAi \0. ,1A, .1lH ILOOR. KAI.IAN C0\1PI.[X. P ./2. BI oCX A, BANGLR AVTNIIE. I..01,(A'rA 7ooo55
t-\1All., k\r08202 li? gnrail.r{rnr

Annexure - 18

Details of Assets, Liability, Revenue and Net Worth of the companies involved in the
Scheme, both pre and post Scheme of Arrangement.

KSR Footwear Limited {'KFL')

Statement of A.ssets and Liabilities
tn

Particu lars Post Scheme

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment Nil 451 .36

Capital work - in - progress Nit 2.62

Right of Use Asset Nit 443.34

10.31Other financial assets Nit

Nil 21 .57Other non-current assets

lnventories Nit 633.86

51 9.88Trade receivables Nit

0.10 1.82Cash and cash equivalents
2,O95.29Total Assets 0.'10

Liabilitiqs

469.27Lease liabilities Nit

7.65Other non-current liabilities Nit

Nit 50.00Borrowings

0.04 31 3.86Trade payables

Other financial liabilities Nil o -74

Other current liabilities Nit col
856.1 1Total Liabilites 0.04

INITIAL_LEP FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

*.,\,w^T""1-
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
CIN : U4641 lWB202lPLC26444J

REGISLRED OFTICE : FLAT N0. 44, 4TH FLOOR. KALIANI COMPLEX. P-22, BL0CK - A. BANGUR AvINllE, KOLK{A - 7o0os5
E-l\4AII. : ksro8202 I @gmail.con'

INR in millions

INR in millaons

Notes;

The post Scheme Assets, Liabilities, Net Worth and Revenue of KFL has been computed

considering the accounting treatmenl contained in the Scheme which is subject to Securities
Exchange Board of lndia (SEBI) and National company Law Tribunal (NCLT) approval.

The post Scheme Assets, Liabilities, Net Worth and Revenue are indi€tive and may change

basis actual data as on effective date.

The Net Worth of KFL has been computed as per Section 2(57) of the Companies Act' 2013.

The post Scheme Net Worth of KFL is calculated basis lhe Limited Review F'nancial Resuits of

Khadim lndia Limited as on 30th Jlne 2023 as the Limited Review Financial Resulls of Khadlm

lndia Limited as on 30th September 2023 are not available

For KSR Footwear Limited

tck Roy Burma

1

2

3

4

Director
DIN: 08537366

Date: October 13, 2023
Place: Kolkata

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

Pstl-b-A*l-
RAYCRAY o

Post SchemePre Scheme
(As on September 30, 2023)

Particulars

Share Capital

0.1 0

179.70Total share Capital (1)

Free reserves
(0 04)Retained Earnings
(0 04)

010

(0.04)Total Free reserves (2)

Other Reserves

1 ,064.42

1 ,060.42

Capital reserve on demerger

Total Other Reserves (3)

I ,240.O8

Nii

Nit

0.06Net worth (1 + 2+ 3)

Post SchemePre Scheme
(As on Septembet 30,2o23t

Pa rticu la rs

543.91NitRevenue from Operations

Statem e nt of Net worth

Revenue from o pe ratio ns

17L70Equity Share Capital

(0.04)
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An n exu re - 2

Brief History of Deme.qed Undertakinq

The Division to be demerged or the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) includes the
entire Distribution Business (as defined in the Scheme) of Khadim lndia Limited. as a going concern,
inclr.iding the business, assets, activitres, operations and properties related to or pertaining to the
Distribution Business ol lhe Demerged Company.

Dlstribution business includes the Company's distribution segment which provides branded and
affordable footwears in the mass footwear category catering to lower- & middle-income consumers in

Tier lto Tier lll cities. The distribution business operales through a network of 732 distributors
(as on June 30, 2023) selling to multi-brand-outlets across lndia. The distribution segment
manufactures approximately 96% of the products of thas category to have better control over quality,

supply and cost.

For Khadim lnd ia Limited

cer
lCAl N4embership No.: 61 162

Date: October 13, 2023
Place: Kolkata

@
frontomce@khrdims.(onr

A.-?hf*r

a
nll-4{]o9 0501 031-4009 0t00 wwN.khadrms.co,n

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED ctN: Lrer2ewBreErpr.cor4t.l7

REGISTERED OFFICE:7Tt1 ILOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, Os MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF. NT!! ]'OWN (RAJANHAT), (OL(A'A.7OO I56
r CITY OFFICE: 7A, LINDSAY STREEr, (oLNATA - 7oo 087

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION
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RAY&RAY
CHARTERED ACCOIINTANTS

Webel Bhavan, Ground Floor,
Block - EP & GP, Sector V
Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
Tel. : +91-334064 8107 / 8'108 / 8109
E-mail : raynray@raynray.net

To,
The Board of Directors,
Khadim lndia Limited,
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF lT Park,

08 Major Arterial Road, Block - AF

New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 700 156

certificate certifying details regarding share capital built-up in case of scheme of
Arrangement involving unlisted entity

2. Statement containing details regarding share capital built-up in case of scheme of

Arrangement involving unlisted entity duly signed by the authorized signatory of the

company (,the statement') is attached as an Annexure - 1 to this certificate, which we

have initialled for identification purpose only.

Management's responsibility

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the Statement is that of the Management of the

Company, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant

supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

statement and applying appropriate basis of preparation, making estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances and ensuring that the Statement are correct and free

from error.

Auditor's Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the sEBl fiilaster circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-

2lPlClRt2123tg3 dated June 20, 2023 ('SEBI Circular') as amended, it is our responsibility

to examine the Statement and provide a reasonable assurance that the Statement is
prepared on the basis of actual data and is accurate.

MUMBAI . NEW DELHIT BANGALOREo CHENNAI

E-mail : raynrayho@raynray.net

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our Engagement Letter dated

october 6. 2023 with Khadim lndia Limited and for the purpose of the draft Scheme of

Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited (hereinafter the 'company' or the 'Demerged

company, or ,KlL'), KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Resulting

Company'or'KFL') and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to

232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3 ("Act") ['Scheme'].

Annexure Y2
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RAY & RAY
C}IARTERED ACCOT]NTANTS

5. We carried out our examination of the Statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on

Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) and Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this Certificate. The

Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics

issued by the lCAl.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality

Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical

Financial lnformation, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination, as above, we are of the opinion that the Statement is

prepared on the basis of actual data and is accurate.

Restriction on Use

8. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company to enable them to comply with

the requirements of the SEBI Circular which requires them to submit this Certificate along

with the statement for onward submission by the company to securities and Exchange

Board of lndia ('SEBI'), BSE Limited ('BSE') and National Stock Exchange of lndia

Limited ('NSE') and such other statutory or regulatory authorities as may be required in

connection with the Scheme. This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose or

to be distributed to any other parties without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do

not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any

other person to whom this Certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without

our prior consent in writing.

For Ray & Ray
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration number: 3O1O72E

l{*;lo-v"-
(Amitava Chowdhury)
Partner
Membership No:056060
UDIN: 23056060BGWPN85371

Place: Kolkata
Date: 13.1 0. 2023
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Annexure " 1

The capital evolution details of the Demerged Company are given hereunder

Name of the Company: Khadim lndia Limited

Equity Share Capital

Cumulative
capital
(No. of
shares)

Whether
listed, if not
listed, give
reasons
thereof

Date of lssue No. of
sha res
issued

lssu e
Prlce per
share(t)

UnlistedDecember 03.
'1981

225 100

Unlisted9,775 100

Type of lssue (lPO /
FPO / Preferential
lssue / Scheme/
Bonus/ Rights, etc.)

10000From
December 04.
1981 to
May 21 , 2ooo

'1,00,000 Unlisled10 Sub division of equity
shares of t 100 each
lo 10 Equiw Shares
o, t 10 each

September 26,
1998

3,100,000 Unlistedlitay 22, 2000 3,000,000 10 Bonus issue in the
ratio of 30 :'1

8,739,308 UnlistedSeptember 02,
2005

10 As per scheme of
amalgamation

10,924,134 Unlisted

5,639,308

2. 184,830 10 Rights issue07,August
2006

11 ,124.138 U n listed10 Preferential
ailotment

11,August
2007

200,000

10 Preferential
allotment

1 1,635,238 Un:isted11,August
2007

511,100

Unlisted10 Preferential
allotment

September 03,
?407

500,000

48,540,952 Unlisted10 Bonus issue in the
ratio of 3 :1

30October
2013

36,405,714

48.540,952 UnlistedMarch 14,
2014
(Pursuant to
the Order of
the High Court
al Calcutta

Reduction of Equity
Share capital
(reducing the face
value of equity
shares from t 10 per

,ir'
l;.rnrolll.(Cr. kIrdrn's..on'

aA
0.ll rl009 05Ol Oll r10O9 0500 r!rvw.khir(lir s.(orn

KHADIM INDIA LIMITEI]
iSGISTERFD 0FFICE , 7'I1l FLoOR.lOWER C, OLI 11 PARK, 08 IAJOR ARTIllllAL RO?\o, Bl-0

CITY ofFlcf :7A, UNDSAY STREET, KOLkATA - 700 087
CK Al:, NE

rNIIS?LFNDpFoR,IIStoIloTIott

\^v#-r

{irA

lN: I- l 9l 29 tt,ll l 9 8l Pl.Col{.} l7

JAIIIIAI). Kl)l.KATi\ - 700 156

Share Caoital built-up in case of scheme of arranoement involvinq unlisted entitv

lnitial Subscription to
l\404
Equity issue
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dated March
14, 2014 and
shareholdeas
resolulion
dated March
11,2044)

equity share to < 2.5
per equity share)

a2,135.238 U nlistedJune 04, 2014
(Pursuanl to
the
shareholders
resolulion
dated June 4,
2014)
August
2014

01. 5,163,293 10 Allotment pursuant to
CONVETSiON Of CCDS

17 ,29A,53'l Unlisted

November 10,
2017

666,666 10 Fresh issue of equity
shares pursuant to
lniiial Public Offer
(rPo)

17 .965,197 Listed

December 13,
2018

4,417 10 Allotment pursuant to
ESOP 2017

17,969,614 Listed

For Khadim lndia Limited

Place. Kolkata
Date: October 13, 2023

@
liontofli!(@khrdi'rs.(,,nt

-|(1-
Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head ' Legal
lCSl Membership No. A21358

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

k"yU-fZ-*,y
RAY & RAY

oJu-4009 050t o] l-aool o50o w\ \!.kh:rdims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED clN: Ll er zewBr eBr Pl.cor4r 17

RF.CISTIRED OFTICE : TTII FLOOR, TOWTR C, DL': tT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL- ROAD, BIOCK AF, NEW OWN {RAJARHAT), KOL(ATA - 7OO I56

. CITY OFFICE :7]\, LIIiDSAY STREEI. KOLKATA - 7oo 087

I

Consolidaied of
equity shares from
face value of < 2.5
each to { 10 each
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Comparison of Revenue and Net Worth of the Demerged Undertaking with the total revenue and net
worth of the listed / demerged entity in last three financial years

(lNR in millions)

Net Worth and Revenue of the Demerged Undertaking is based on Management certified Financials for the

Demerged Undertaking as on 31st March, 2023, 31st March, 2022 and 31stMarch,2021. The Net Worth has

been calculated on the basis of the net assets of the division i.e., total assets as reduced by total liabilities.

Net Worth and Revenue of Demerged Company is based on audited frnancial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st lVlarch, 2023, 31st March, 2022 and 31st N4arch, 2021,

For Khadim lndia Limited

lndraiit Chaud n
Chief Financi cer
lCAl Membership No.: 61 162

Date: October 19, 2023

Place: Kolkata

@
Irontofl lce@khadinrs.conr 033-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHAIIM INDIA LIMITED crN: Lrer2ewBrs8rPlco34337

REGTSTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLIJ IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOL(ATA - 7OO I56
clTY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEI, KOLKATA - 70o o87

Particulars
Financial Year Net Worth Revenue

Demerged undertaking 22-23 1,334.01 2,185.19

21-22 1,155.02 2,372.34

20-21 983.48 2,073.40

Demerged Company 22-23 2,010,93 6,602,64

21-22 1,833.74 5,910.80

20-21 1,767 .23 6,261.78

Notes:

a:A a

Annexure-Y3
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Symbol: KHADIM

Dear Sir / Madam,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),

Regulaiions, 20,l5 for the proposed Scheme ol Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited (hereinafter referred to

as 
;the Company' or 'the Demerged Company' or'KlL' or 'listed entity'), KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter referred

to as ,the Resuliing Company' or'KFL' or'unlisted entity') and their respective shareholders and credilors under

Sections 230 to 232 and othlr applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made

there under ['Scheme'l

ln connection with the above application, we hereby conlirm that:

1. The Scheme is in compliance with the applicable securities laws.

2. The Arrangement proposed in the Scheme is yet to be executed. The proposed Scheme of Anangement to be

presentedio any Court or Tribunal does not in any way violate or override or circumscribe the provisions of the

SEBI Act, 1992 and the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956,

To,

The Manager
The Listing Department

National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 051

For Khadim lndia Limited

{-e-'1--pc.a\_---
Abhijit Dan

Company Secretary & Head - Legal

lCSl Membership No, A21358

Place: Kolkata

Date: October 19, 2023

4D$

\<

@
frontomce@khadi ms.conr

a!A
03l-4009 0501

E
033-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMTTED CIN : L19l29WBl98l PLCol4llT

REGISTEREDoFFICE:TTHFLooR,T0WERc,DLFITPARK,osMAJ0RARTERIALR0AD'BLoCKAF'NEwTowN(RAJARHAT)'K0LKATA-7ool56
CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEr' K0LKATA - 70o o87

\/

Annexure-Y4
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Date: November 07,2023

To,

The Manager,
The Department of Corporate Services,
BSE Limited,
P. J. Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001

Scrip Gode - 540775

Dear Sir,

Sub: Application under Clause g7 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('.SEBl LODR Regulations')

Ref: Your observation dated October 30,2023

This is with reference to BSE observation dated October 30,2023, wherein we have been requested

to provide certain information in response to the queries raised and to submit certain documents.

Please find below our point wise reply to the same:

1. Kindly provide the working of SEBI processing fees'

Replv:

We have made an online payment dated October 27 ,2023 for INR 2,12,041.45 (Two Lakh Twelve

Thousand Forty One ,nd Forty Five Paise), towards SEBI processing fees. The receipt for the

same generated from the SEBI;s portal is attached herewith as Annexure I to this reply.

The detailed working of the sEBl processing fess is as follows.

Particulars Amount (t)

Paid up capital post sanction of the proposed

following shall be same:
o listed entity, Khadim lndia Limited

scheme for both the

a Resulting CompanY , KSR Footwear Limited

17,96,96,140.00

Fees Payable to SEBI at the rate of 0.1 % of the paid-up share

capital of KIL (0 1o/o of { 17,96,96,140.00)

1,79,696.14

GST Amount @18o/o
32,345.31

Total SEBI Processing Fees 2,12,041.45

2. ln Report from the Audit Committee recommending the draft scheme taking into

consideration the following are not found-

a. Need for the merger/demerger/amalgamation/arrangement
b. synergies of business of the entities involved in the scheme

@
fron tollice@khadims.conr

E E
033-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 khadims.com

REGISTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C' DLF lT
CITY OF

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED ctN : Lrer2ewBrearPLCo3433T

PARK,OEMAJORARTERIALROAD,BLOCKAF,NEWTOWN(RAJARHAT)'KOLKATA-7OOI56
FICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET, KOLKATA - 70o 087

Annexure XVII
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a. Need for the merger/demerger/amalgamation/arrangement - The need for the demerger
is same as the Rationale for the Scheme stated in paragraph 3 of the Audit Committee Report
attached as Annexure D to the original application, also attached as Annexure 2 to this
reply.

b. Synergies of business of the entities involved in the scheme - Synergies of business of
the entities involved in the Scheme is same as the Rationale set out in paragraph 3.1 of the
Audit Committee Report attached as Annexure D to the original application, also attached as
Annexure 2 to this reply.

Relevant extract of the Audit Committee Report attached as Annexure D to the original
application, also attached as Annexure 2 to this reply has been provided below:

3.0

3.1

Rationale of the Scheme;

The Demerged Company has 2 (two) distinct busrnesses viz. (i) Retail Busrness and (ii)

Distribution Busrness. The retailbusrness operates through 848 retailsfores (as on June 30,
2023) and caters to the middle and upper middle-income consumers, while the distribution

busrness operates through a wide network of 732 distributors (as on June 30, 2023) selling
to multi-brand-outlets across lndia and cafers to lower and middle-income consumers. The

transfer and vesting of the Demerged lJndertaking (defined hereinafter) comprising of
Distribution Busrness into the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme shall be in the
interest of all concerned stakeholders including shareholders, customers, creditors,
employees and general public, in the following ways:

(i) The Demerged lJndefiaking and the Remaining Business (defined hereinafter) address
different market segments with divergic dynamics in terms of buslness strategy, customer
set and distinct capital requirements. The transfer of the Demerged Undeftaking into the
Resulting Company will enable both the Demerged and Resulting Company to focus on
their activities in the respective segmenfs. This would help to improve their
competitiveness, operational efficiency, agility and strengthen their position in relevant
markets.

(ii) The nature of risk, competition, challenges, opportunities, market segment, target
customer and business methods for the Distribution Busrness (as defined hereinafter) is
separate and distinct from the Remaining Business (as defined hereinafter) caried out by
the Demerged Company.

(iii) The segregation of the busrness vefiical shall enable them to move foruard
independently, with specialization building on their respective capabilities. lt will also help
to channetize resources required for all the businesses fo focus on the growing
busrnesses and attracting right talent and providing enhanced growth oppoftunities to

existing tatent in line with a sharper strategic focus on each business segmenf under
separate entities.

(iv) The Scheme witl also enable the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to
focus and enhance their respective management structure ensuring better and more

effici e nt m a n ag e me nt control.

(v) Bifurcation of these basrnesses will enable unlocking value of each vertical thereby paving
way for focused growth with a view to create significant stakeholder value, will attract
distinct investor base and at the same time allow tnvestors to allocate their portfolio into
separate entities, focused on the distinct entities. Further, it will enable independent and
distinct capital allocation approach and balance sheet management based on the distinct
needs ofeach busrnesh g

fron tofl)ce@ khadims.co nr 033-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIIVIITED crN : Lrer2ewBresrPlco3433T

REGISTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO 'I 56

CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET, KOLKATA - 70o o87
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3.2

3.3

3.4

(vi)

K
Thus, the demerger would help in achieving the desired operating "Lr.ffiffiSf 

M
interalia have following benefits:

c Create secfor focused companies;

o Attracf busrness specific investors;

. Streamline the management structure;

o Unlock value for shareholders;

o Ring-fence businesses from each other;

o Better risk management; and

o Better Management Bandwidth utilization.

The Audit Committee reviewed and noted the Share Entitlement Ratio recommended in the

Share Entitlement Ratio Report and confirmed the following ratio:

"1 (One) fully equity share of the face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up of the Resulting

Company for every 1 (One) equity share of face value INR 10/- each fully paid up held by
equity shareholders of the Demerged Company."

The Audit Committee reviewed and confirmed the accounting treatment provided in clause 14

of the Scheme which has been certified by the auditors of the Company. Pursuant to the

Scheme, in the books of the Demerged Company, the excess / deficit, if any, of the nef assets

transferred to the Resulting Company after giving effect to investment cancellation as

mentioned in Clause 14.1.2 of the Scheme and etimination of balances as mentioned in

Clause 14.1.3 of the Scheme, shall be adjusted with the CapitalReserve, GeneralReserve
and Retained Earnings of the Demerged Company. ln the books of the Resulting Company,

the excess/deficit, if any, of the net assefs transferred to the Resulting Company after giving

effectto Clause 14.1.6 and Ctause 14.1.7 of the Scheme, shall be transferred to the Capital

Reserve of the Resulting Company.

The Fairness Opinion confirmed that the Share Entitlement Raflo as recommended by the

Registered Valuer, is fair and reasonable."

3. Post Amalgamation/ Arrangement number of Shareholders in all the companies in the
format as provided in Annexure lll- NOT FOUND

Replv:

Post Arrangement number of Shareholders have already been provided in Annexure - Hi for

the Demerged Company & Annexure - H2 for the Resulting Company of the original application,

also attached as Annexure 3 to this reply.

4. Details to be submitted by the company in case of demerger where there is no change in
shareholding pattern of Demerged company and the Resulting company:

And

S. ln case of scheme of demerger wherein mirror image is created in the resulting company'
following standard information to be submitted by the listed company:

D

tK

a.

-t

Details of assets, liabitity, revenue and net worth of the companies involved in the
scheme, both pre and post scheme of arrangement

Assets, liability, revenue and networth of the demerged undertaking along with a write
up on the history of the demergd undertakig*

O

033-4009 0501 031-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED CIN : Lre12ewBre8rPLCo34337

REGISTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO I56
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c. Gomparison of revenue and net worth of demerged undertaking with the total revenue

and net worth of the listed / demerged entity in last three financial years.

d. Detailed rationale for arriving at the swap ratio for issuance of shares as proposed in
the draft scheme of arrangement.

Such information to be certified by Auditor of the company / PCA/PCS

Replv to Querv 4 and 5:

The required documents answering the query have already been provided in Annexure W of the
original application, also attached as Annexure 4 to this reply.

6. In the explanatory statement to be forwarded by the company to the shareholders u/s 230
or accompanying a proposed resolution to be passed u/s 66 of the Gompanies Act 2013,
it shall disclose:

i. the pre and post-arrangement or amalgamation (expected) capital structure and
shareholding pattern and

ii. the "fairness opinion" obtained from an lndependent merchant banker on valuation of
assets / shares done by the valuer for the company and unlisted company.

iii. lnformation about unlisted companies involved in the scheme as per the format
provided for abridged prospectus of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if applicable:

iv. The Complaint report as per Annexure lll.

v. The observation letter issued by the stock exchanges

Replv:

This declaration has been provided in paragraph "b" of Annexure R of the original application
and also attached as Annexure 5 to this reply.

7. Confirmation by the Managing Director/ Gompany Secretary of the resulting/transferee
company on the letter head of resulting company that:

a. Equity shares issued by the company pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation/
arrangement shalt be listed on the BSE Limited, subject to SEBI granting relaxation from
applicability under Rule 19(2) (b) of the Securities Gontract (Regulation) Rules, 1957- Not
found.

Replv:

This declaration has been provided in paragraph "a" of Annexure 32 of the original application,
also attached as Annexure 6 to this reply.

8. Please provide a snapshot of the website upload of documents related to the scheme as
the link is not working.

K

snapshot of the website upload of documents has been annexed as Annexure 7 to this

Ae'
033-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 www.khadims.com
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reply.

Below is the link for the website:

https://www. khad i ms. com/demerger-d istri bution-business

g. please mention whether audited, unaudited, or Iimited reviewed in the heading of the

annexure l1 for June 2023.

Replv:

The Revised Annexure l1 to the original application has been attached as Annexure 8 to this

reply.

10. Kindly submit the following documents, please mention NA where not applicable-

fro n to ITice @ kha d i ms'co m 033-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 www.khadims,com

RemarksReplyParticularss!.
No

Since there are no
accumulated losses
being transferred to

Resultingthe
Com

NAln cases of Demerger, Apportionment
losses of the listed company among the
companies involved in the scheme.

ofa)

A Certificate
issued in this
regard by the
Statutory
Auditors, CA, is
attached as
Annexure 9A

b) Details of assets, liabilities, revenue a
net worth of the Companies involved in

the scheme, both pre and post scheme of
arrangement, along with a write up on the
history of the demerged
undertaking/Transferor ComPanY

certified by Chartered Accountant (CA)'

nd

NAc) Any type of arrangement or agreement
between the demerged
company/resulting company/ merged/
amalgamated comPanY/ creditors I
shareholders / promoters / directors/etc.,
which may have any implications on the
scheme of arrangement as well as on the
shareholders of listed entitY.

Since we are not
adjusting the
ditference between
assets and liabilities
with the available
reserves in the books
of the Demerged
Company

NAln cases of Capital reduction, reasons
along with relevant Provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 or applicable laws
for proposed utilization of reserves viz.

Capital Reserve, Capital Redemption
Reserve, Securities premium, as a free
reserve, certified bY CA.

d)

Since no addition is

being made to
reserves in the books
of the Demerged
Com

NAe)

\

ln the cases of CaPital reduction,
for reserves viz. Capital Reserve, Capital
Redemption Reserve, Securities
premium, certified bY CA.

Built up

,{
c,l

Since there are no
notional and/or
unrealized reserves

NA

e
ln the cases of Capital reduction, Nature
of reserves viz. Capital Reserve, Capital
Redem on r are

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED CIN : Ll9129WBl98lPLC0I4337

RECTSTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF' NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT)' KOLKATA - 7OO I56

CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET' KOLKATA - 700 087
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K
notional and/or unrealized, certified by
CA.

Since there are no
accumulated losses

NAs) ln the cases of Capital reduction, the built
up of the accumulated losses over the
years, certified by CA.

Accounting Treatment
certificate has been
attached

Annexure 98h) Relevant sections of Companies Act,
2013 and applicable lndian Accounting
Standards and Accounting treatment,
certified by CA.

Since not a composite
scheme

NAi) ln case of Composite Scheme, details
shareholding of companies involved in

the scheme at each stage

of

Noi) Whether the Board of unlisted Company
has taken the decision regarding
issuance of Bonus shares. lf yes provide
the details thereof.

NAList of comparable companies considered
for comparable companies' multiple
method, if the same method is used in

valuation

k)

A Certificate
issued in this
regard by the
Statutory
Auditors, CA, is
attached as
Annexure 9C

r) Share Capital built-up in case of scheme
of arrangement involving unlisted
entity/entities, certified bY CA.

NAm) Any action taken/Pending bY

Govt./Regulatory body/Agency against all

the entities involved in the scheme for the
period of recent 8 years.

Annexure 9Dn) Comparison of revenue and net worth of
demerged undertaking with the total
revenue and net worth of the listed entity
in last three financial years.

arriving at
swap ratio
stated in
Share Entitlement
Ratio Report.

The Share
Entitlement Ratio
Report is attached
herewith as
Annexure - 9E of
the application.

for
the

is
the

detailedThe
rationale

o) Detailed rationale for arriving at the swap
ratio for issuance of shares as proposed

in the draft scheme of arrangement by the
Board of Directors of the listed company.

@
fro n to fli ce@ k had i ms.co m

@ €
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The basitltf,tfft$drl
of assets and
liabilities between
divisions has been
the assets and
liabilities as
attributable to the
respective divisions.

Yesp) ln case of Demerger, basis for division
assets and liabilities between divisions of
Demerged entity.

of

Refer Rationale of
the Scheme as
enclosed in Query
2 above

There will be no
change in the value
or no. of shares
held by public
shareholders Pre
and post Scheme
of Arrangement.
However, Post-
Scheme
shareholding maY
vary depending on
the actual
shareholding as on
the Record Date.

q) How the scheme will be beneficial to
public shareholders of the Listed entity
and details of change in value of public
shareholders pre and post scheme of
arrangement.

NA0 Tax/other liability/benefit arising to the
entities involved in the scheme, if any.

We confirm that the
Accounting
Treatment specified
in the scheme is in

compliance with the
with the Accounting
Standards / lndian
Accounting
Standards as also
mentioned in the
Management
Certified Accounting
treatment Certificate
attached as
Annexure A of
Annexure 98 of this
reply.

Yess) Comments of the ComPanY on the
Accounting treatment specified in the
scheme to confirm whether it is in

compliance with the Accounting
Standards/l ndian Accounting Standards.

NA0 lf the lncome Approach method used in

the Valuation, Revenue, PAT and

EBIDTA (in value and percentage terms)
details of entities involved in the scheme
for all the number of years considered for
valuation. Reasons justifYing the
EBIDTA/PAT margin considered in the
valuation report.

fron to flice@ khad ints.com 033-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 ms.com
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u) Confirmation that the valuation done in

the scheme is in accordance with
applicable valuation standards.

NA

v) Confirmation that the scheme is in
compliance with the applicable securities
laws.

Annexure 9F

w) Confirmation that the arrangement
proposed in the scheme is yet to be
executed.

Annexure 9F

Thanking You,

Yours sincerely,

For Khadim lndia Limited

Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head - Legal
lCSl Membership No. -421358

4Di

;r
o

t *

Place: Kolkata
Date: November 07, 2023

@
frontoflice@ khadims.co m

KHADIM INDIA LIIVIITED crN : LIer2ewBre8rPLCos433T

REGISTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, Os MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO I56
CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET, KOLKATA - 700 087
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RAY& RAY

To,

The Board of Direclors,
Khadim lndia Limited,
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF lT Park,
08 Malor Arterial Road, Block - AF
New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 700 156

lndependent Auditor's Certificate certifying details to be submitted by the
Company in case of demerger where there is no change in shareholding pattern of
Demerged company and the Resulting company and a mirror image is created in
the Resulting Company.

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our Engagement Letter dated
October 6, 2023 wilh Khadim lndia Limited and for the purpose of the draft Scheme of
Arrangement between Khadim India Limited (hereinafter the 'Company' or the
'Demerged Company' or 'KlL'), KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the
Resulting Company' or 'KFL') and their respective shareholders and creditors under
Sections 230 lo 232 and other appljcable provisions of the Companies Act, 20'13 ("the
Act") ['Scheme'].

2. Statements containing details to be submitted by the Company in case of demerger
where there is no change in shareholding pattern of the Demerged company and the
Resulting company and a mirror image is created in the Resulting Company duly
signed by the authorized signatory of the Company ('the Statements') is attached as an
Annexure - 1A, 1B and 2 to this Certificate, which we have initialled for rdentification
pu rpose only.

Management's responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-
2lPlClRl2O23l93 dated June 20. 2023 ('SEBI Circular') as amended, it is our
responsibility to examine the Statements and provide a reasonable assurance that the
amounts in the Statements are prepared in accordance with Section '133 of the Act,

MUMBAI o NEW DELHI. BANGALORE. CHENNAI

E-mail : raynrayho@rayn.ay.net

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Webel Bhavan, Ground Floor,
Block - EP & GP, Sector V
Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
Tel. : +91-33-4064 8'107 / 8108 / 8109
E-mail : raynray@raynray.net

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the Statements is that of the ltilanagement of
the Company, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other
relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant lo the preparation and
presentation of the Statements and applying appropriate basis of preparation, making
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances and ensuring that the Statements
are correct and free from error.

Auditor's responsibility

Annexure 9A
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C}Lq.RIERED ACCOUNIANTS

read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (the ,applicable

Indian Accounting Standards'), and Other Generally Accepted Accounting principles.

5. we carried out our examination of the statements in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Reports or certificates for special purposes issued by the lnstitute of
chartered Accountants of India (lcAl) and standards on Auditing specified under
section 143('10) of the Act, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate.
The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the code
of Ethics issued by the lCAl.

Opinion

Restriction on Use

For Ray & Ray
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 301072E

4r;-+-rra-
(Amitava Chowdhury)
Pa rtner
l\4embership No: 056060
UDIN: 23056060BGWPNC851 4

Place: Kolkata
Date:13.10.2023

6. we have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on euality
Control (SQC) '1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of
Historical Financial lnformation and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements. Further our examination did not extend to any other parts and aspects
of a legal or proprielary nature in the aforesaid Undertaking.

7. Based on our examination, as above, we are of the opinion that the amounts in the
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standard) Rules, 20.15 (the
'applicable lndian Accounting Standards'), and Other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.

8. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company to enable them to comply with
the requirements of the SEBI Circular which requires them to submit this Certificate
along with the Statements for onward submission by the Company to Securities and
Exchange Board of lndia ('SEBI'), BSE Limited ('BSE') and National Stock Exchange
of lndia Limited ('NSE') and such other statutory or regulatory authorities as may be
required in connection with the Scheme. This Certificate should not be used for any
other purpose or to be distributed to any other parties without our prior written
consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for
any other purpose or to any other person to whom this Certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.
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Annexure - 1A

Details of Assets, Liability, Revenue and Net Worth of the companies involved jn the
Scheme, both pre and post Scheme of Arrangement

Khad im lndia Limited ('KlL')

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
INR in mrllions

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

o s
IiontolllLeCrl(hadrns.c0nr 0:lu-4009 0500 r!i!rv.khltdims.conr

KHATIM INDIA LIMIIED crN; Lrsrzer,yBre8rplco34r37

RE0ISTIRED OFFICE : 7TH FLoOR, TOWcR C, DLF lT PAR(. os MAJOR ARTIRIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN lRAlARtiAf). KOL(ATA - 7oo 156

- CITy OFrICE :74, LINOSAY STREET, KOLXATA - 7oo 087

Wkf"r n,,-offio,o,

Pre scheme
(As on June 3O,2O23)

Post schemeParticu lars

358.21

0.29

809.57

2.91

Property, Plant and Equipment

Capilal work - in - progress

Assets

Right of Use Asset 1.622.94 1 ,179.56
5.60 5.60

1.39 1.39

lntangible assets

lnvestments

207 56 197 .25Other Financial Assets

130.06Deferred tax assets (net) 130.06

20.85

/b J5

lncome tax assets (net)

Other non-current assets

20 85

97 .92

1 ,479.87lnventories 2.113.73

Trade receivables 2,009.00 I ,489.12

56.61

141 .90

Cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank balances

58.33

141 90

103.70Other financial assets 103 70

521 .92

7,858.87 5,762.68
Other current assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

1,183.351,233.35

1,933.40 1.464.13

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

1,29 I ?ONon-current Provasions

NitOther non-current liabilities 765

1 ,911.78Trade payables

140.65 130.93Other financial liabilities

39.7645.37Other current liabilities

1 .02 1 .02Current provisions

5,58 8.33 4,732.26Total Liabilites
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INR in m llions

Reven ue from o pe ratio ns
INR in millions

1. The post Scheme Assets, liab:lities, Net Worth and Revenue of KIL has been computed
considering the accounting treatment contained in the Scheme whlch is sublect to Securities
Exchange Board of lndia (SEBI) and National company Law Tribunal (NCLT) app.oval.

2. The post Scheme Assets, Liabilities, Net Worth and Revenue are indicative and may change
basis actual data as on etfective date

3. The Net Wo.ah of KIL has been computed as per Section 2(57) of the Companies Act,2013

adim ln ia Li ited

lnd ra,iit Cha
Chief Finan

h uri
Officer

lCAl fi{embership No.: 61162
INITIAL_LED FOR THE PURPOSE

OF INDENTIFICATION

$,T #,o"rDate: October '13, 2023
Place: Kolkata

@
frontorli(e@lhndims.i:om

-4"
0ll-4009 0501 0ll-4009 0500 lr!1'rv-khadims.tom

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED crN : Lr er 2ew$ r esr plcor(rrT

RECISTIRED OrFICE : 7IH rLOOR, TOWER C, DLF lT PARK, oB l\.lAJOR ART!aa:AL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW'[OWN {RA.jARilATl, KOL(ATA - 7ou t56
. CITY OFFICE:7A, LTNDSAY STREET, I(OLKATA - 7oo 087

Pa rticu la rs Pre Scheme
{As on June 30,2023)

Post Scheme

179.70

Share Capital

Equity Share Capital 179.10

Total share Capital (1)

Free reserves

179.7 0 179.70

Retained Earnings bzrr.lY b,lb JY

Tota! Free reserves (2) 625_39

Other Reserves

Securities Premium

Ni

1 ,2?1 .83

(1,240.12)

Total Other Reserves (3) 1 ,221 .83 (18.2e)

787.80Net worth (1 + 2+ 3) 2,027.92

Post SchemePa rticu lars

1,035.89Revenue from Operations

Statement of Net worth

Noles:

626.39

1 ,221 .83

Capital reserve on demerger

Pre Schemel
(As on June 30,2023)]

1,579.801

197



KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
CI\ : L.;O1l l\\ g2{12l|i tl{r+.rl l

RLoISILRLII UFFICE : I-LAi \0. ,1A, .1lH ILOOR. KAI.IAN C0\1PI.[X. P ./2. BI oCX A, BANGLR AVTNIIE. I..01,(A'rA 7ooo55
t-\1All., k\r08202 li? gnrail.r{rnr

Annexure - 18

Details of Assets, Liability, Revenue and Net Worth of the companies involved in the
Scheme, both pre and post Scheme of Arrangement.

KSR Footwear Limited {'KFL')

Statement of A.ssets and Liabilities
tn

Particu lars Post Scheme

Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment Nil 451 .36

Capital work - in - progress Nit 2.62

Right of Use Asset Nit 443.34

10.31Other financial assets Nit

Nil 21 .57Other non-current assets

lnventories Nit 633.86

51 9.88Trade receivables Nit

0.10 1.82Cash and cash equivalents
2,O95.29Total Assets 0.'10

Liabilitiqs

469.27Lease liabilities Nit

7.65Other non-current liabilities Nit

Nit 50.00Borrowings

0.04 31 3.86Trade payables

Other financial liabilities Nil o -74

Other current liabilities Nit col
856.1 1Total Liabilites 0.04

INITIAL_LEP FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

*.,\,w^T""1-
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KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
CIN : U4641 lWB202lPLC26444J

REGISLRED OFTICE : FLAT N0. 44, 4TH FLOOR. KALIANI COMPLEX. P-22, BL0CK - A. BANGUR AvINllE, KOLK{A - 7o0os5
E-l\4AII. : ksro8202 I @gmail.con'

INR in millions

INR in millaons

Notes;

The post Scheme Assets, Liabilities, Net Worth and Revenue of KFL has been computed

considering the accounting treatmenl contained in the Scheme which is subject to Securities
Exchange Board of lndia (SEBI) and National company Law Tribunal (NCLT) approval.

The post Scheme Assets, Liabilities, Net Worth and Revenue are indi€tive and may change

basis actual data as on effective date.

The Net Worth of KFL has been computed as per Section 2(57) of the Companies Act' 2013.

The post Scheme Net Worth of KFL is calculated basis lhe Limited Review F'nancial Resuits of

Khadim lndia Limited as on 30th Jlne 2023 as the Limited Review Financial Resulls of Khadlm

lndia Limited as on 30th September 2023 are not available

For KSR Footwear Limited

tck Roy Burma

1

2

3

4

Director
DIN: 08537366

Date: October 13, 2023
Place: Kolkata

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

Pstl-b-A*l-
RAYCRAY o

Post SchemePre Scheme
(As on September 30, 2023)

Particulars

Share Capital

0.1 0

179.70Total share Capital (1)

Free reserves
(0 04)Retained Earnings
(0 04)

010

(0.04)Total Free reserves (2)

Other Reserves

1 ,064.42

1 ,060.42

Capital reserve on demerger

Total Other Reserves (3)

I ,240.O8

Nii

Nit

0.06Net worth (1 + 2+ 3)

Post SchemePre Scheme
(As on Septembet 30,2o23t

Pa rticu la rs

543.91NitRevenue from Operations

Statem e nt of Net worth

Revenue from o pe ratio ns

17L70Equity Share Capital

(0.04)
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An n exu re - 2

Brief History of Deme.qed Undertakinq

The Division to be demerged or the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) includes the
entire Distribution Business (as defined in the Scheme) of Khadim lndia Limited. as a going concern,
inclr.iding the business, assets, activitres, operations and properties related to or pertaining to the
Distribution Business ol lhe Demerged Company.

Dlstribution business includes the Company's distribution segment which provides branded and
affordable footwears in the mass footwear category catering to lower- & middle-income consumers in

Tier lto Tier lll cities. The distribution business operales through a network of 732 distributors
(as on June 30, 2023) selling to multi-brand-outlets across lndia. The distribution segment
manufactures approximately 96% of the products of thas category to have better control over quality,

supply and cost.

For Khadim lnd ia Limited

cer
lCAl N4embership No.: 61 162

Date: October 13, 2023
Place: Kolkata

@
frontomce@khrdims.(onr

A.-?hf*r

a
nll-4{]o9 0501 031-4009 0t00 wwN.khadrms.co,n

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED ctN: Lrer2ewBreErpr.cor4t.l7

REGISTERED OFFICE:7Tt1 ILOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, Os MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF. NT!! ]'OWN (RAJANHAT), (OL(A'A.7OO I56
r CITY OFFICE: 7A, LINDSAY STREEr, (oLNATA - 7oo 087

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION
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RAY& RAY Webel Bhavan, Ground Floor,
Block - EP & GR Sector V
Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
Tel. : +91-3340 8107/8108/8109
E-mail : raynray@raynray.net

CI{ARTERED ACCOT'NTANTS

Date. 29th September, 2023

To,
The Board of Directors and Audit Committee,
Khadim lndia Limited,
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF lT Park
08 Major Arterial Road, Block - AF
New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 700 156

lndependent Auditor's certificate on the proposed accounting treatment specified in
the Draft scheme of Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited and KSR Footwear
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors

This certificate is issued rn accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 23'd
September, 2023 with Khadim India Limited (hereinafter the 'Company' or the ,Demerged

Company' or 'KlL') in accordance with Sections 230 to Section 232 ol lhe Companies Act,
201 3 ("the Act").

2. We, Ray & Ray, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have
examined the proposed accounting treatment specif ied in Clause 14 ,,Accounting

Treatment" of the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between the Company, KSR Footwear
Limited ('Resulting company' or'KFL') and their respective shareholders and creditors
under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act (hereinafter
referred to as the 'Draft scheme') with reference to its compliance with the applicable
lndian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) (the ,applicable

lndian Accounting Standards') and Other Generally Accepted Accounting principles.

Management's responsibility

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the
provision of the Act, Rules and other relevant laws and regulations, including the
applicable lndian Accounting Standards read with rules issued thereunder and Other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors
of the Company. This responsibility includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Draft

Office in Mumbai New Mlhi, Bangabrc, Chennai

CW Ofrce : 6 Chutch lene, Kolkata 'fN Nl
funail : ny ayho@ay aY.net

Annexure-J1

Annexure 9B
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RAY & RAY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Scheme and applying an appropriate basis of preparation and making estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's responsibility

4. Our responsibility pursuant to the requirements prescribed under section 232 of the Act
and part of SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO ICFOIPOO-2|P|C!R|2923|93 dated June
20, 2023 ('SEBI Master Circular') is to examine and report whether the accounting
treatment referred to in Clause 14 of the Draft Scheme referred to above, complies with
the applicable lndian Accounting Standards and Other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. Nothing contained in this certificate, nor anything said or done in the course
of, or in connection with the services that are subject to this certificate, will extend any
duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial
statements of the Company.

5. We conducted our examination of the proposed accounting treatment specified in

Clause 14 of the Draft Scheme as reproduced in Annexure - A to the certificate, in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (the
'Guidance Note') issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ('lCAl') and
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, in so far as

applicable for the purpose of this certificate. The Guidance Note requires that we

comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by lCAl.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial lnformation, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.
Further, our examination did not extend to any other parts and aspects of a legal or
proprietary nature in the aforesaid Scheme.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us,

in our opinion, the proposed accounting treatment as specif ied in Clause l4 of the Draft
Scheme, attached as an Annexure herewith and signed by us for identification purpose

only, is in compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and circulars issued thereunder and all the applicable lndian

Accounting Standards notified by the Central Government under the Act and Other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in lndia.

8. For ease of reference, Clause '14 of the Scheme, duly authenticated on behalf of the

Company, is reproduced in Annexure - A to this Certificate and is initialed by us only for
the purposes of identif ication.
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Restriction on Use

9. This certificate has been issued at the request of Khadim lndia Limited pursuant to the
requirements of circulars issued under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, lot onward submission by the Company to the SEBI,
BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited, Company Law Tribunal(s),
Regional Director and Registrar of Companies and such other statutory or regulatory
authorities as may be required in connection with the Scheme. This certificate should not
be used, quoted or referred for any other purpose without our prior written consent.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it
may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Ray & Ray
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 301072E

Ar*Jaxt
AMITAVA CHOWDHURY
Pa rtner
Membership No: 056060
UDIN:23056060BGWPME734 1

Place: Kolkata
Dale:29.09.2023
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Annexure - A

Relevant extract of clause 14 to the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited
('Demerged Company') and KSR Footwear Limited ('Resulting Company") and their respective
shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act')

Clause 14: Accounting Treatment

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall account for the Scheme in their respective
books / financial statements in accordance with applicable lndian Accounting Standards (lnd-AS)
notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in lndia, as amended from time to time including as provided herein below:

14.1.1 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, with effect from the appointed date, the respective
carrying value of assets, liabilities and identified reserves pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking, transferred shall be reduced from the books of accounts of Demerged Company.

14.1 .2 The Demerged Company shall derecognrse the carrying amount of investments, if any, in the
Resulting Company pursuant to the Scheme.

'14.1.4 The excess / deficit if any, of the net assets transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to

Clause'14.1.1 aftergiving effect to investment cancellation as mentioned in Clause 14.1.2and
effect to elimination of balances as mentioned in Clause 14.1.3, shall be adjusted with the

Capital Reserve, General Reserve and Retained Earnings of the Demerged Company.

Accounting treatment in the books of the Resulting Company:

14.1.5 The Resulting Company shall record the assets, liabilities and identified reserves pertaining to
the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to and vested in it at their respective carrying values

as appearing in the books of the Demerged Company.

'14.1.6 Loans and advances, receivables, payables and other dues outstanding between the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking will

stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation / outstanding in that behalf.

14.1.7 Tne Resulting Company shall credit to its share capital in its books ofaccounts the aggregate
face value of equity shares issued by it to the shareholders of the Demerged Company pursuant

to Clause 1 1 of this Scheme.

14.1.8 The excess / deficit if any, of the net assets transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to

Clause 14.1.5 after giving effect to Clause '14.1.6 and Clause 14.1.7, shall be transferred to the

'*'''t?\t*'rERF,Ltt^.F,BIf "tt@ \^ru*:v c*-A
fron tofl ice@khcdinis.com 033-4009 0501 oll-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHAIIM INDIA LIMITED crN : Ller2ewBre8rPlco343r7

RECISTERED OFFICE I 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO I56
CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET, K0L(ATA - 7oo o87

a

5

D
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Accounting treatment in the books of the Demerged Company:

14.1.3 Loans and advances, receivables, payables and other dues outstanding between the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company relating to the Demerged Undertaking will
stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation / outstanding in that behalf.

Capital Reserve of the Resulting Company.
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14.1.9 ln case of any difference in accounting policy between the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company, the accounting policies followed by the Resulting Company shall prevail
and the difference shall be adjusted appropriately as per the applicable tnd-As.

14.1.11 On the Effective Date, the financial information in the financial statements in respect of prior
periods will be restated as if the demerger had occurred from the beginning of the preceding
period or the date of incorporation of the Resulting Company, whichever is later, irrespective of
the actual date of the combination.

For KHADIM INDIA LIMITED

Chief Fina I Officer

Date: 291h September, 2023
Place: Kolkata

@
frontom(e@khadims.tom

@
oll-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHADIM INDTA LIMITED clN: Lrel2swBreErPlcor43rT

REGISTERED OFFICE :7TH FI,OOR, TOWER C, DLF IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOLKATA - 7OO 156

CITY oFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREET, KoLKATA - 70o o87

lndrajit C huri
INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE

OF INDENTIFICATION

_r,K*r-r

14.1.10 The Resulting Company's share capital cancelled pursuant to Clause '12 shall be credited to
the Capital Reserve account.

g

205



AGARWAL & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To,

The Board of Directors,

KSR Footwear Limited,

Flat No. 4,A, Kalyani Complex,

P-22, Block-A, Bangur Avenue,

North 24 Parganas, 700 055.

lndependent Auditor's Certificate on the proposed accounting treatment specified in the Draft

Scheme of Arrangement between KSR Footwear Limited, Khadim lndia Limited and their

res pective shareholders and creditors

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 04-09-2023

with KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter the 'company' or'KFL'or the'Resulting company') in

accordance with Sections 230 to Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act')

2. We, AGARWAL & ASSOCTATES, the Statutory Auditors of KSR Footwear Limited have examined

the proposed accounting treatment specified in Clause 14 'Accounting Treatment' of the Draft

scheme of Arrangement ('Draft scheme') between the company, Khadim lndia Limited and their

respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 lo 232 and other applicable provisions

of the Act with reference to its compliance with the applicable lndian Accounting Standards

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian Accounting Standard)

Rules,2015(the'applicablelndianAccountingstandards'),andothergenerallyaccepted
accounting principles.

Management's responsibility

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the provision of

the Act, Rules and other relevant laws and regulations, including the applicable Indian Accounting

Standards read with rules issued thereunder and other generally accepted accounting principles as

aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. This responsibility includes the design,

implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of

the Draft scheme and applying an appropriate basis of preparation and making estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

&As

Lql q 2.3

"Shakespeare Court"
21A, Shakespeare Sarani,

8th Floor, Flat 8D, Kolkata-700017
Ph: 40649046

Mobile: 9E31579045

E-mail : naresh@agarwalandassociates.com
agarsels.associates@gmail.com

Annexure-J2
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4.ourresponsibilitypursuanttotherequirementsprescribedundersection232oftheActandpart
ofSEBlmastercircularNo,SEBl/Ho/cFD/PoD-ztPlclRl2o23l93datedJune20,2023(,SEBl
Mastercircular,)istoexamineandreportwhethertheaccountingtreatmentreferredtoinclause

14 of the Draft Scheme referred to above, complies with the applicable lndian Accounting

Standardsandothergenerallyacceptedaccountingprinciples.Nothingcontainedinthis
certificate,noranythingsaidordoneinthecourseof,orinconnectionwiththeservicesthatare
subject to this certificate, will extend any duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the

statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company'

we conducted our examination of the proposed accounting treatment specified in clause 14 of the

Draft scheme as reproduced in Annexure to the certificate, in accordance with the Guidance Note

on Reports or Certificates for Speciat Purposes (the,Guidance Note,) issued by the lnstitute of

Chartered Accountants of tndia ('lCAl') and Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 20l3, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate The Guidance

Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by lCAl

6.WehavecompliedwiththerelevantapplicablerequirementsofthestandardonQualityControl
(Soc)l,QualityControlforFirmsthatPerformAuditsandReviewsofHistoricalFinancial
lnformation, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements. Further our examination

didnotextendtoanyotherpartsandaspectsofalegalorproprietarynatureintheaforesaid
Scheme

Opinion

7. Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, in our

opinion,theproposedaccountingtreatmentasspecifiedinclausel4oftheDraftScheme'attached
as an Annexure herewith and signed by us for identification purpose only, is in compliance with the

SEBI(ListingobligationsandDisclosureRequirements)Regulations,20l5andcircularsissued

thereunderandalltheappticablelndianAccountingstandardsnotifiedbytheCentralGovernment

under the Companies Act, 2013 and other generally accepted accounting principles in lndia'

g. For ease of reference, clause 14 of the scheme, duly authenticated on behalf of the company, is

reproduced in Annexure to this Certificate and is initialed by us only for the purposes of

identification.

&As

Auditor's responsibility
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Requirements)Regulations,20'15, for onward submission by the company to the securities and

Exchange Board of lndia, BSE Limited, National stock Exchange of lndia Limited, company Law

Tribunal(s), Regional Director and Registrar of companies and such other statutory or regulatory

authorities as may be required in connection with the scheme. This certificate should not be used,

quotedorreferredforanyotherpurposewithoutoUrpriorwrittenconsent.Accordingly,wedonot

accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other person to

whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For Agarwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 0323210E

CA Naresh AgaMal

Partner

has been issued at the request of KSR Footwear Limited pursuant to the

of circulars issued under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Membership No: 063049

;il;";.;;.;q4-ss NoeNr erqe

Restriction on Use

L This certificate

requirements

Place: Kolkata

Date:29.09.2023
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Annexure

Relevant extract of clause 14 to the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Khadim
lndia Limited ('Demerged Company') and KSR Footwear Limited ('Resulting Company")
and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 lo 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act')

Clause 14: Accounting Treatment

14.1 The Demerged company and the Resulting company shall account for the scheme in
their respective books / financial statements in accordance with applicable lndian

Accounting standards (lnd-As) notified under the companies (lndian Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2015, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in lndia' as

amended from time to time including as provided herein below:

Accounting treatment in the books of the Resulting Company:

14.1.5 The Resulting Company shall record the assets, liabilities and identified reserves
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to and vested in it at their
respective carrying values as appearing in the books of the Demerged Company'

14.1.6 Loans and advances, receivables, payables and other dues outstanding between the

Demerged Company and the Resulting Company relating to the Demerged

Undertiking will stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation / outstanding

in that behalf.

14.1.7 The Resulting Company shall credit to its share capital in its books of accounts the

aggregate faCe value of equity shares issued by it to the shareholders ofthe Demerged

Company pursuant to Clause 1 '1 of this Scheme.

14.1.8 The excess/deficit if any, of the net assets transferred to the Resulting company
pursuant to clause 14.1 .5 after giving effect to clause 14. 1 .6 and clause 14. 1 .7, shall

be transferred to the Capital Reserve of the Resulting Company

14.1.9 ln case of any difference in accounting policy between the Demerged company and

the Resulting Company, the accounting policies followed by the Resulting Company

shall prevail and the difference shall be adjusted appropriately as per the applicable

lnd-AS.

14. 1 .1 O The Resulting company's share capital cancelled pursuant to clause 12 shall be

credited to the Capital Reserve account.

14.1.'l 1 On the Effective Date, the financial information in the financial statements in respect

of prior periods will be restated as if the demerger had occurred from the beginning of
the preceding period orthe date of incorporation of the Resulting company, whichever
is later, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

For KSR Footwear Limited

Rittick Roy Bu
Director
DIN: 08537366

Date: 29th September, 2023
Place: Kolkata

n

KSR FOOTWEAR LIMITED
Cl N : U464 1 3WB2 023PLC264443

Registered Office : Flat No.4A, 4th Floor, Kalvani Complex,

P-22, Block-A, Banqur Avenue, Kolkata-700055

E-mail- ksr082023 @gmail.com
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Webel Bhavan, Ground Floor,
Block - EP & GP, Sector V
Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700 091
Tel. : +91-334064 8107 / 8'108 / 8109
E-mail : raynray@raynray.net

To,
The Board of Directors,
Khadim lndia Limited,
7th Floor, Tower C, DLF lT Park,

08 Major Arterial Road, Block - AF

New Town (Rajarhat), Kolkata - 700 156

certificate certifying details regarding share capital built-up in case of scheme of
Arrangement involving unlisted entity

2. Statement containing details regarding share capital built-up in case of scheme of

Arrangement involving unlisted entity duly signed by the authorized signatory of the

company (,the statement') is attached as an Annexure - 1 to this certificate, which we

have initialled for identification purpose only.

Management's responsibility

3. The responsibility for the preparation of the Statement is that of the Management of the

Company, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and other relevant

supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design, implementation

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

statement and applying appropriate basis of preparation, making estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances and ensuring that the Statement are correct and free

from error.

Auditor's Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the sEBl fiilaster circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD-

2lPlClRt2123tg3 dated June 20, 2023 ('SEBI Circular') as amended, it is our responsibility

to examine the Statement and provide a reasonable assurance that the Statement is
prepared on the basis of actual data and is accurate.

MUMBAI . NEW DELHIT BANGALOREo CHENNAI

E-mail : raynrayho@raynray.net

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our Engagement Letter dated

october 6. 2023 with Khadim lndia Limited and for the purpose of the draft Scheme of

Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited (hereinafter the 'company' or the 'Demerged

company, or ,KlL'), KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Resulting

Company'or'KFL') and their respective shareholders and creditors under Sections 230 to

232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 201 3 ("Act") ['Scheme'].

Annexure 9C

210



RAY & RAY
C}IARTERED ACCOT]NTANTS

5. We carried out our examination of the Statement in accordance with the Guidance Note on

Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the lnstitute of Chartered
Accountants of lndia (lCAl) and Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this Certificate. The

Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics

issued by the lCAl.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality

Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical

Financial lnformation, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Opinion

7. Based on our examination, as above, we are of the opinion that the Statement is

prepared on the basis of actual data and is accurate.

Restriction on Use

8. This Certificate is issued at the request of the Company to enable them to comply with

the requirements of the SEBI Circular which requires them to submit this Certificate along

with the statement for onward submission by the company to securities and Exchange

Board of lndia ('SEBI'), BSE Limited ('BSE') and National Stock Exchange of lndia

Limited ('NSE') and such other statutory or regulatory authorities as may be required in

connection with the Scheme. This Certificate should not be used for any other purpose or

to be distributed to any other parties without our prior written consent. Accordingly, we do

not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any

other person to whom this Certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without

our prior consent in writing.

For Ray & Ray
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration number: 3O1O72E

l{*;lo-v"-
(Amitava Chowdhury)
Partner
Membership No:056060
UDIN: 23056060BGWPN85371

Place: Kolkata
Date: 13.1 0. 2023
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Annexure " 1

The capital evolution details of the Demerged Company are given hereunder

Name of the Company: Khadim lndia Limited

Equity Share Capital

Cumulative
capital
(No. of
shares)

Whether
listed, if not
listed, give
reasons
thereof

Date of lssue No. of
sha res
issued

lssu e
Prlce per
share(t)

UnlistedDecember 03.
'1981

225 100

Unlisted9,775 100

Type of lssue (lPO /
FPO / Preferential
lssue / Scheme/
Bonus/ Rights, etc.)

10000From
December 04.
1981 to
May 21 , 2ooo

'1,00,000 Unlisled10 Sub division of equity
shares of t 100 each
lo 10 Equiw Shares
o, t 10 each

September 26,
1998

3,100,000 Unlistedlitay 22, 2000 3,000,000 10 Bonus issue in the
ratio of 30 :'1

8,739,308 UnlistedSeptember 02,
2005

10 As per scheme of
amalgamation

10,924,134 Unlisted

5,639,308

2. 184,830 10 Rights issue07,August
2006

11 ,124.138 U n listed10 Preferential
ailotment

11,August
2007

200,000

10 Preferential
allotment

1 1,635,238 Un:isted11,August
2007

511,100

Unlisted10 Preferential
allotment

September 03,
?407

500,000

48,540,952 Unlisted10 Bonus issue in the
ratio of 3 :1

30October
2013

36,405,714

48.540,952 UnlistedMarch 14,
2014
(Pursuant to
the Order of
the High Court
al Calcutta

Reduction of Equity
Share capital
(reducing the face
value of equity
shares from t 10 per

,ir'
l;.rnrolll.(Cr. kIrdrn's..on'

aA
0.ll rl009 05Ol Oll r10O9 0500 r!rvw.khir(lir s.(orn

KHADIM INDIA LIMITEI]
iSGISTERFD 0FFICE , 7'I1l FLoOR.lOWER C, OLI 11 PARK, 08 IAJOR ARTIllllAL RO?\o, Bl-0

CITY ofFlcf :7A, UNDSAY STREET, KOLkATA - 700 087
CK Al:, NE

rNIIS?LFNDpFoR,IIStoIloTIott

\^v#-r

{irA

lN: I- l 9l 29 tt,ll l 9 8l Pl.Col{.} l7

JAIIIIAI). Kl)l.KATi\ - 700 156

Share Caoital built-up in case of scheme of arranoement involvinq unlisted entitv

lnitial Subscription to
l\404
Equity issue
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dated March
14, 2014 and
shareholdeas
resolulion
dated March
11,2044)

equity share to < 2.5
per equity share)

a2,135.238 U nlistedJune 04, 2014
(Pursuanl to
the
shareholders
resolulion
dated June 4,
2014)
August
2014

01. 5,163,293 10 Allotment pursuant to
CONVETSiON Of CCDS

17 ,29A,53'l Unlisted

November 10,
2017

666,666 10 Fresh issue of equity
shares pursuant to
lniiial Public Offer
(rPo)

17 .965,197 Listed

December 13,
2018

4,417 10 Allotment pursuant to
ESOP 2017

17,969,614 Listed

For Khadim lndia Limited

Place. Kolkata
Date: October 13, 2023

@
liontofli!(@khrdi'rs.(,,nt

-|(1-
Abhijit Dan
Company Secretary & Head ' Legal
lCSl Membership No. A21358

INITIALLED FOR THE PURPOSE
OF INDENTIFICATION

k"yU-fZ-*,y
RAY & RAY

oJu-4009 050t o] l-aool o50o w\ \!.kh:rdims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMITED clN: Ll er zewBr eBr Pl.cor4r 17

RF.CISTIRED OFTICE : TTII FLOOR, TOWTR C, DL': tT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL- ROAD, BIOCK AF, NEW OWN {RAJARHAT), KOL(ATA - 7OO I56

. CITY OFFICE :7]\, LIIiDSAY STREEI. KOLKATA - 7oo 087

I

Consolidaied of
equity shares from
face value of < 2.5
each to { 10 each
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Comparison of Revenue and Net Worth of the Demerged Undertaking with the total revenue and net
worth of the listed / demerged entity in last three financial years

(lNR in millions)

Net Worth and Revenue of the Demerged Undertaking is based on Management certified Financials for the

Demerged Undertaking as on 31st March, 2023, 31st March, 2022 and 31stMarch,2021. The Net Worth has

been calculated on the basis of the net assets of the division i.e., total assets as reduced by total liabilities.

Net Worth and Revenue of Demerged Company is based on audited frnancial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 31st lVlarch, 2023, 31st March, 2022 and 31st N4arch, 2021,

For Khadim lndia Limited

lndraiit Chaud n
Chief Financi cer
lCAl Membership No.: 61 162

Date: October 19, 2023

Place: Kolkata

@
Irontofl lce@khadinrs.conr 033-4009 0501 033-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHAIIM INDIA LIMITED crN: Lrer2ewBrs8rPlco34337

REGTSTERED OFFICE : 7TH FLOOR, TOWER C, DLIJ IT PARK, 08 MAJOR ARTERIAL ROAD, BLOCK AF, NEW TOWN (RAJARHAT), KOL(ATA - 7OO I56
clTY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEI, KOLKATA - 70o o87

Particulars
Financial Year Net Worth Revenue

Demerged undertaking 22-23 1,334.01 2,185.19

21-22 1,155.02 2,372.34

20-21 983.48 2,073.40

Demerged Company 22-23 2,010,93 6,602,64

21-22 1,833.74 5,910.80

20-21 1,767 .23 6,261.78

Notes:

a:A a

Annexure-Y3Annexure-9D

Annexure-9D
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Annexure B1Annexure-9E
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Symbol: KHADIM

Dear Sir / Madam,

Sub: Application under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),

Regulaiions, 20,l5 for the proposed Scheme ol Arrangement between Khadim lndia Limited (hereinafter referred to

as 
;the Company' or 'the Demerged Company' or'KlL' or 'listed entity'), KSR Footwear Limited (hereinafter referred

to as ,the Resuliing Company' or'KFL' or'unlisted entity') and their respective shareholders and credilors under

Sections 230 to 232 and othlr applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules made

there under ['Scheme'l

ln connection with the above application, we hereby conlirm that:

1. The Scheme is in compliance with the applicable securities laws.

2. The Arrangement proposed in the Scheme is yet to be executed. The proposed Scheme of Anangement to be

presentedio any Court or Tribunal does not in any way violate or override or circumscribe the provisions of the

SEBI Act, 1992 and the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956,

To,

The Manager
The Listing Department

National Stock Exchange of lndia Limited

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 051

For Khadim lndia Limited

{-e-'1--pc.a\_---
Abhijit Dan

Company Secretary & Head - Legal

lCSl Membership No, A21358

Place: Kolkata

Date: October 19, 2023

4D$

\<

@
frontomce@khadi ms.conr

a!A
03l-4009 0501

E
033-4009 0500 www.khadims.com

KHADIM INDIA LIMTTED CIN : L19l29WBl98l PLCol4llT

REGISTEREDoFFICE:TTHFLooR,T0WERc,DLFITPARK,osMAJ0RARTERIALR0AD'BLoCKAF'NEwTowN(RAJARHAT)'K0LKATA-7ool56
CITY OFFICE : 7A, LINDSAY STREEr' K0LKATA - 70o o87

\/

Annexure-Y4

Annexure-9F
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